ncjrs

If you have issues viewing or accessing this file contact us at NCJRS.gov.

National Criminal Justice Reference Service

e

This microfiche was produced from dncuments received for
inclusion in the NCJRS data base. Since NCJRS cannot exercise
control over the physical condition of the documents submitted,
the individual frame quality will vary. The resolution chart on
this frame may be used to evaluate the document quality.

L £ 2
=i 2

EFG
E
Fe

* [l2S
"m Il
= TENTA

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART
NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A

Microfilming procedures used to create this fiche comply with
the standards set forth in 41CFR 101-11.504.

Points of view or opinions stated in this document are
those of the author(s) and do not represent the official
position or policies of the U. S. Department of Justice.

National Institute of Justice
United States Department of Justice
Washington, D.C. 20531

| 10/a/83 |

T T T e e

ey
i,
-

i

R VI
T L o

B al

G,

R SR N SR

IS e e =/

Aj,,& sy

Sy m*mw X

OVERSIGHT INTO THE ADHENISTRATION OF STATE *
AND LOCAL COURT ADJUDICATION OF DRIVING
WHILE INTOXICATED P

HEARING

SUBCOMMITTEE ON COURTS

OF THD

COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES SENATE

NINETY-SEVENTH CONGRESS

FIRST SESSION
ON
COURT ADJUDICATION OF DRIVING WHILBE INTOXICATED

' ?rinted for the use of the Gommittee on the Judiclary

NOVEMBER 6, 1981

Serial No. J-97-79

% h
.

U.8. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICH
WASHINGTON : 1982

e A I s o oo et T




COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY

STROM THURMOND, South Carolina, Chairman

CHARLES McC. MATHIAS, Jr., Maryland JOSEPH R. BIDEN, Jr., Delaware
PAUL LAXALT, Nevada EDWARD M. KENNEDY, Massachusetts
ORRIN G. HATCH, Utah ROBERT C. BYRD, West Virginia
ROBERT DOLE, Kansas HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, Ohio
ALAN K. SIMPSON, Wyoming DENNIS DeCONCINI, Arizona

JOHN P. EAST, North Carolina PATRICK J. LEAHY, Vermont
CHARLES E. GRASSLEY, Iowa MAX BAUCUS, Montana

JEREMIAH DENTON, Alabama HOWELL HEFLIN, Alabama

ARLEN SPECTER, Pennsylvania

Vinton DEVANE Libg, Chief Counsel
QUENTIN CROMMELIN, dJr., Staff Director

SuscoMmMITTEE ON COURTS

ROBERT DOLE, Kansas, Chairman

STROM THURMOND, South Carolina HOWELL HEFLIN, Alabama
ALAN K. SIMPSON, Wyoming MAX BAUCUS, Montana
JOHN P. EAST, North Carslina

RicHarD W. VELDE, Chief Counsel and Staff Director
ARTHUR BRISKMAN, Minority Counsel

(1)

U.S. Department of Justice
National Institute of Justice 1

This document has been reproduced exactly as received from the ‘:
person or organization originating it. Points of view or opinions stated ‘
in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily

repr;asent the official position or policies of the National Institute of

Justice.

Permission to reproduce this~eepysghiad material has been
granted by

PUBLIC DOMAIN/ U.S. SENATE ;

to the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS).

Further reproduction outside of the NCJRS system requires permis-

sion of the eepyrittt owner.

ot g i, ey

1 MCIRS

Moy 17 1962

1
%

coﬁrTﬁﬁ;@gxxsaTmms
s

a

.o g fMSTAGRR
L Pk gt gt A FIPVSD

b

R were v b, & T T
Rt g e e

gy e Al - T AT,

STATEMENTS O¥ COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dole, Hon. Robert, a U.S. Senator from the State of Kansas........cccceerevevecrecveecneane
Heflin, Hon. Howell, a U.S. Senator from the State of Alabami......cceeererververine.

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST OF WITNESSES

Boschwitz, Hon. Rudy, a U.S. Senator from the State of Minnesota...........ccereeneee
Johnson, Skirley, Citizens for Better Drivers, Mothers Against Drunk Drivers,
Washington, D.C.....ireneinircneneenerereesessesssenssssssssssiresssssessessesssssensosssnsassessens
Pell, Hon. Claiborne, a U.S. Senator from the State of Rhode Island...................
Barnes, Hon. Michael D., a U.S. Representative from the State of Maryland ....
Plymat, William N., executive director, American Council on Alcohol Prob-
lems, Des MOINES, IOWa ....vcccvviveeerientinerenrerssrsenicnsonsssssarsssesssssasorassssesiosnsssssassassssessans
Lamb, Cindi, Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, Fair Oaks, Calif...........cccccvevruenne.
Steed, Diane, Deputy Administrator, National Highway Traffic Safety Admin-
istration, U.S. Department of Transportation, Washington, D.C., accompa-
nied by George D. Brandt, Chief, Adjudication Branch; John Moulden,
Alcohol Countermeasures Specialist; and Charles Livington, Associate Ad-
ministrator, Traffic Safety Programs.........nne.
Lough, Lt. Col. Johnny G., chief, }ield Operations Bureau, Maryland State
Police, Pikesville, Md .....ccoveevvrirvecrrininriceecreeinneiserereescessesssnvessvsressosssesssssnesssossense
Layfield, Capt.. Wayne, Alcohol Enforcement Unit, District of Columbia Police
Department, Washington, D.C.........ccccoevreerinicnrniicininrenvinsenresreoresssssessnsiesesssessssassneases
Milner, Chief Joe, Department of Public Safaty, Austin, TeX......cccevvmercvrerrecernens
Skyring, Milton R., city court clerk and judicial administrator and project
director, highway safety program, Baton Rouge, La.......ccccvriveevenccrevnnricrcnennes
Maickel, Dr. Roger, head, Department of Pharmacology and Toxicology,
School of Pharmacy and Pharmacal Sciences, Purdue University, West
Lafayette, INA......ccccorvvererrrrrnrercsenirerissnmsenerenessoresrssssssestssasssesssasssesmsasstssesesserssnesnassesess
Conn, Dr. Alasdair, medical director, field operations program, Maryland
Institute for Emergency Medical Systems, Baltimore, Md.........c.ccocerernrervereerecnes

. ALPHABETICAL LISTINGS AND MATERIALS SUBMITTED

Barnes, Representative Michael D.: Testimony .....cocecevvninvereinnsinensnsesonrenisssnressensens
Boschwitz, Senator Rudy: TestimOony ... ereioiioinimsssmemosssssssssss
Conn, Dr. Alasdair:
TESEIMONY 1evivecirnriisisininsisiisessnsssorereseernasssmssisessanstestrsntsesssassassassesssnsssessessesssssesassenses
Prepared statement ... Frorsesssensras
Hansen, Representative James V.: Prepared statement, submitted by Senator
DIOLE aniiceriiciininiisinistissre et et aesaserasressesrestases st sabensebassarsasaesaerennne .
Johnson, Shirley:
TeStimOnY .....ccccerversersieronnsnes ettt be e r s e b e a e et e s Rsa b e s be et be b b aresbesaReababaas
Prepared statement ...
Lamb, Cindi: Testimony.......
Layfield, Wayne: Testimony ........ rsesserssreenens bebeeteeesreessesnrsanrares ververneaes irveeresnerarersesines .
Livingston, Charles: Testimony.......ccouiveeee rerseseseses Skttt i et st ste e e sananenastiane
Lough, Johnny G.: :
Testimony ...couirsn e palELEs et g a s d bt e hr b e s oS e e e sae R sReaseRbtses b aResnerese
E_Prepared statement ............ <5 A~ N
Maickel, Dr. Roger: ' .
Testimony ....ccecvusnescsnsaes dessssesenasnsrnas e nesesrtesaens T .

-

*

13

19
22

48
71

73
74

75

90
92

At

N

Ameatses




v

Maickel, Dr. Roger—Continued

Prepared statement .......ccvvevvveveeecniccsinere e s esessesessessssesasssenens s

Milner, Joe:

TESLIIMIONLY .voveveveierreeresirmereestessaesensasnanse we srorerescrsssessssssssssessnsssessassesaensissssensronss
Prepared statement ........ e s s R s b0
Pell, Senator Claiborne: Testimony ........ccccevreereeimrnsinnreressssesssessnecseersssesssnes

Plymat, William N.: _

UNSEIITIONLY cueevecireeieiesceeeereesess e e chtenineses beszsxtanresessessssassssnessrsessosarsensasensesannn

LPrepared statement ............. SN 12 S A —— R
Articles, prepared by American Council of Alcohol }f’roblems.

“How (Even A Little) Drinking Affects Drivers” .....cccovevrvercevrnnnes

Alcohol Facts—5 Ways Drinking Can Hurt You.....ccccoreeeereeeecenrunene

Schifrin, Prof. Leonard G.: Prepared statement ..........cccocovreesernrnernurnssennennne

Skyring, Milton R.:

Testimony ......... Sereebestssreases roesutersetesessiteserestosnsrentsisenebtresasestsestastortrtnessesnrns
Prepared Statemant .......cocccceerecreeerircvesecsene st ste s essstsssessssesssessessensneas

Steed, Diane:

Testimony .....ccceeriververrerenreres s 5 S? ....................................................
f _Prepared statement .............&5... oS Bt seens

APPENDIX

ADDITIONAL STATEMENTS FOR THE RECORD

Page

74
86

19
29
42
110

75
89

48
58

121
124

P s S s 4 e

4
3
:

i

G

OVERSIGHT INTO THE ADMINISTRATION OF
STATE AND LOCAL COURT ADJUDICATION OF
DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED :

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 1981

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON COURTS,
CoMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,
Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:45 a.m., in room
2228, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Robert Dole (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding.
Present: Senator Heflin.. _
B Also present: Senators Boschwitz and Pell and Representative
arnes.
Staff present: Richard W. Velde, chief counsel; Kevin Manson,
counsel; Douglas Comer, counsel; and Linda White, chief clerk. -

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN ROBERT DOLE

Senator DoLe. Let me say at the outset that we are pleased that
S0 many outstanding witnesses have been able to appear this morn-
ing. : -

I would also indicate that, as often happens in the Scnate, the
best laid plans sometimes go awry. I have to run down to the
White House after a while to have the President tell us about the
budget. Hopefully Senator Heflin will be here at that time. If not,
we will just have to recess the hearings during the time I am gone.

We are looking for other Senators to chair this session; it is a
very important session. There are a number of hearings going on.
Hopefully we will not delay the witnesses. I would like to be pres-
ent for most of the testimony myself, so we will do the best we can
to accommodate the witnesses, particularly those who have come
long distances, and we are going to start promptly. :

I have an opening statement which I will summarize. While we
are waiting for Senator Pell and Congressman Barnes; Senator
Boschwitz will make a brief statement and then Senator Pell, Con-
gressman Barnes, and Diane Steed, the Deputy Administrator of
the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, U.S, Depart-
ment of Transportation. oo « .

The Subcommittee on Courts of ‘the Judiciary Commitiee con-
venes today for the purpose of receiving testimony on the problem
of drunk driving. In one sense, onr hearing is the result of the cer-
tainty that 1 year from today’s date there will be 26,000 Americans
dead as a result of the deadly combination of an automobile and
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little to respond. I know we get into the problem of States rights
and what the Federal Government might do.

In any event, having served as a county prosecutor many years

- va

ago and having experienced firsthand some of the problems in deal-
ing with those who drive under the influence of alcohol and, in
these days, drugs, I hope that we will not only have the hearing
and focus some public attention through the media but that we will
follow up and be challenged by the witnesses to do that, not only
with their testimony but with thejr subsequent contacts with those
of us who have that responsibility.

I would ask that my entire statement be made g part of the

record, together with that of | enator Heflin. Without objection, it
is 80 ordered.

The prepared statements of Senators Dole and Heflin follow:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR ROBERT DoLe

The Subcommittee on Courts of the Judiciary Committee convenes today for the
purpose of receiving testimony on the problem of drunk driving. In one sense, our
hearing is the result of the certaintly that, 1 year from todays date, there will he
26,000 Americans dead as a result of the deadly combination of an automobile and
alcohol. The very fact that we have somehow learned to live with this carnage is
testimony to our failure to recognize the profound damage that the problem drinker
has done to our Nation’s social fabric,

Our hearings today have a broad focus. We seek to develop an overview of the

the benefit of their experience in seeking to focus attention at the State and Nation-
al level on the drinking driver, and who will discuss legislative initiatives which
have resulted from those efforts. Some of our witnesses are the victims—the faces
behind the numbers reported in the yearly fatality statistics. Representatives of the
medical and statistics fields who have performed the grim tasks of visiting accident
sites and treating victims, and whose work has resulted in compilation of the hard
data which documents the problem, will summarize their findings; and law enforce-
ment officials who have the responsibility for holding the drunk driver in check will
detail their successes, failures and frustrations in protecting the public from this
menace,

We are also fortunate today to have the comments of Senator Claiborne Pell of
Rhode Island, and Congressmar. Michael Barnes from Maryland, both of whom have
been actively involved in focusing attention on the problem through continuing leg-
islative efforts. Senator Pell has introduced a bill in this session of Congress which
would mandate the creation by each State of an alcohol safety actiori prograra, and
establish mandatory minimum penalties designed to remove the drunk driver from
the Nation’s roads.” Senator Pell has a tragic, personal interest in this legislation:

everal years ago, he lost two valued members of his staff to drunk drivers. Con-
gressman Barnes has introduced a companion bill in the House, and has been active
in efforts to persuade the President to create a special commission to recommernd a
national strategy to attack the problem. :

Of.course there are delicate questions of federalism involved in any effective legis-
lation in this field. Our ultimate aim is to find ways in which the ederal Govern-
ment can assume a partnership role with the States in training, education, and gn-
forcement: and our specific interest is the response of law enforcement.and courts of
this Nation to the challenge. In that sense, these hearings are exploratory—to learn
as much as we can about what has been, and what can be, done to cope with the
drunk drivers,

Those who have spent their lives studying this tragedy tell us that the task of
finding a solution must be seized with an expansive grasp, Stricter law enforcement
efforts must go hand in hand with education of the public on the threat that the
problem drinker poses to all of us. I look forward to these hearipgs with the hope
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR HowEeLL HEFLIN

Mr. Chairman, America’s number one highway satety problem is drunk driving.
According to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, one out of every
100 infants born this year can expect to die in an alcohol related traffic accident.

Of all fatal highway accidents which number consistently between 50,000 and
55,000 each year, slightly more than half are the result of the actions of drunk driv-

ers.

I would like to commend Chairman Dole and his most capable staff for their work
in the objective and complete review of this matter.

Six out of every ten drivers who are killed in single vehicle accidents are drunk at
the time. In the 16 to 24 age group alone, alcohol is responsible for 8,000 highway
deaths each year, and causes an additional 40,000 young people to be injured, many
of them crippled or impaired for life.

I beheve the federal government can encourage state and local governments to
expand enforcement against drunk drivers, and at the same time, establish a strong
national deterrent which will put every drinking driver on notice that he or she can
expect strict and meaningful punishment when an arrest occurs. )

There are many problems with our existing state laws, such as a lack of uniform-
ity, and a high probability that convicted drunk drivers will receive suspended or
deferred sentences from the Court.

It is imperative that drunk d~ivers receive education at the state and local level
in order to prevent a reoccurrence of this problem. When I was Chief Justice of the
Supreme Court of Alabama, I encouraged the establishment of more D.U.L schools,
that is, driving under the influence schools. In 1972, there were only three such
schools in Alabama. Now there are 58, one within 35 miles of every Alabamian’s
home. This has been an effective tool in preventing the reoccurrence of drunk driv-
irg.

%n short, improved efforts are needed to combat these problems. Arrested drunk
drivers must be brought to conviction and be punished. Only then will this needless

“tragedy and bloodshed, the root of half of our automobile casualties, be stopped.

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Senator DoLE. I would be very pleased at this time to call on my
colleague, the distinguished Senator from Minnesota, Senator
Boschwitz, who has had a long personal interest in this problem,
for his comments.

STATEMENT OF HON. RUDY BOSCHWITZ, A U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Senator Boscuwitz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

In the event you cannot find another Senator, perhaps, while I
am not a member of this committee, I can come back. As you
know, my office is right around the corner.

, Senator DorLe. I understand Senator Heflin will be here at 10
o’clock. '

Senator Boscawirz. All right. I may come back anyway, but I see
that a great deal of the testimony has been written, and so I will
review it. I have reviewed a good deal of the material already.

I do not claim, Mr. Chairman, to be an expert on this matter of
drunk driving, and I am not going to relate all of the figures, some
of which I am very familiar with. The figures I am not familiar
with are what it does to the people who survive those kinds of acci-
dents and what the cost of their care does to medical care in gener-
al. I am sure that it is very high. : :

I come because of the personal experiences I had with drunk
drivers.in my company when I was in private business. I also come
with the conviction that the Federal Government can get involved,
just as it can get involved in saying that 55 miles per hour is a re-
quirement in the event you want Federal funding for highways.
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I think we perhaps should impose our will in this matter as well.
And imposing our will, in my judgment, should be done very strin-
gently. I am impatient with prosecutors and judges who make
lower types of offenses out of drunk driving.

- I would hope as well that whatever we pass here and whatever
we pass through the Senate will be very restrictive with respect to
Judges and prosecutors who bargain away the nature of the offense.
That, in my opinion, is very, very important. ‘

My experience—and I suppose that many witnesses come and
relate their experiences here—consists of three or four incidents
specifically. In one, the victim luckily survived. The wife of the
fellow who is now running my company almost lost her life a year
?lndta half ago, and luckily no other member of the family was

urt.

As is so0 often the case, in each case associated with my company,
the drunk driver was essentially uninsured. That aspect of it also is
difficult. .

Other than Betty Thompson, whom I just spoke about, there was
Miss Schell, my son’s young violin teacher, a very beautiful young
woman of 26 or 28 who just did wonderful things with young
people in a violin program in the Wayzata, Minn., school system.
}(l)ne day she was just lost because a drunk driver happened to hit

er. :
One of my very long-term employees was John Loker, one of the
best salesmen that my company had among the 400 or 500 people.
One evening he and his wife, who had eight children, were return-
ing from a dinner out together. This was an unusual event for
them, inasmuch as they had eight children. They were hit from
behind by a driver who was so drunk that, in the State of Illinois,
apparently you cannot get consent from such a person to have a
test of the alcoholic content of his blood, so the man got away scot-
free. But John and Ruth Loker did not.

There was no sadder thing in my life than to see these eight chil-
dren, one of them in the arms of her older sister—because the
youngest child was 6 months old and the oldest was 17—following
the biers of their mother and father down a church aisle in St.
Paul, Minn.

There is also the Schroeder family, in my company, who had a
total of nine children. For some reason, these tragedies, at least in
my company, seem to associate themselves with very large fami-
lies. There the father was killed, and I believe one of the children
was killed as well, in a drunk driving accident.

Mr. Chairman, as we have discussed, and as I have also discussed
with Senator Pell and his staff, I have a very abiding interest in
curbing the drunk driver; perhaps an interest that is too stringent
even. I think somebody driving under the influence of alcohol
should be severely punished or his license removed for an extended
period of time.

It just mystifies me why other countries can deal so well with
these problems—the Norwegians, Swedes, Danes, Japanese, and so
on—while we seem to be helpless with respect to it.

I hope, Mr. Chairman, that you will look upon me as a supporter.
I will follow the legislation closely. I will try to get input into it to

. make sure that it is as punishing as possible to the people who
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drive under the influence of alcohol, not only in the event they
create a tragedy but in the event they are caught driving under the
influence and before they create a tragedy. I am very interested, in
addition, in the treatment aspects of those people after they are ar-
rested. B

I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for being a_ble to testify
and to express my interest and to do so on so little notice. .

Senator DoLE. I thank the distinguished Senator from Minnesota.

We will keep you advised, and we appreciate your Wlllll?gness to
assist us this morning if necessary. We will keep that in mind.

Congressman Barnes has a scheduling problem also, I under-
stand, but he will be here any minute. » _ .

In the meantime, if it is satisfactory with the administration wit-
ness, I would like to call the first panel, so you can listen to that
panel, and then have you follow them, along with Senator Pell and
Congressman Barnes. _

At this time I will call the panel, consisting of citizen action and
public interest groups: Ms. Cindi Lamb, Mothers Against Drun}{
Drivers; Mr. William Plymat, executive director, American Council
on Alcohol Problems; and Ms. Shirley Johnson, Citizens for Better
Drivers, Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, Washington, D.C.

Would that panel come forward now?

I see that Cindi is not here. She may be late. We will start, and
she will be here shortly.

STATEMENT OF SHIRLEY JOHNSON, CITIZENS FOR BETTER
DRIVERS, MOTHERS AGAINST DRUNK DRIVERS, WASHINGTON,
D.C.

Ms. JoansoN. Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee,
Tam a vic.im of drunk driving, not physically but emotionally.

Two-aiid-a-half years a, ., my 25-year-old son was driving to
work. He was a civilian paramedic with Aberdeen Proving Ground.
He was going to the 11 o’clock shift, and he was met head-on by a
drunken driver. The road was divided by a concrete barrier. She
had been coming from a bar.

It is hard for me to accept the fact that the system does not
work. This woman had a very bad previous record. She had had
her Maryland license revoked: she had applied for a North Caroli-
na license; she had no insurance; she had 6 accidents in 5 years. In
fact, she totaled another woman's parked car 1 month before. The
police did not give her a breath test because she said she had a
sore throat and was sucking on lozenges.

When she killed my son, she had a BAC of .26. Tt was taken at a
hospital and therefore not admissible as evidence because it was
done for medical reasons.

Following this, there were two postponements. When she finally
came to trial 6 months later, she was found guilty of impairment
- by alcohol, reckless driving, and homicide by a vehicle. She was
fined $500, her license was revoked, and she was sentenced to 1
year in jail. This was suspended for 2 nights a week to go to AA.
That was a little hard to take. Nine months later she was picked
up -again for driving on a revoked license.

7

I will say that originally she was put on probation and warned
that the first time she violated probation sanctions would be im-
posed. I assumed sanctions would be imposed. She appealed the
case to the circuit court. The circuit court judge and the district
court judge discussed this, and they sentenced her again to 1 year
ia jail, and this time they suspended it for 3 years of supervised
probation.

The case was sent back to district court last April. I talked to the
district attorney yesterday, and he said, “You might as well figure
that the whole violation in her record was just thrown out.” Her
license was again revoked.

I thought this was probably an unusual case, and I found out it is
not. For the most part, I think that the public is learning to mis-
trust the courts, not only in DWI but in a lot of criminal activity, I
think they are disgusted with plea bargaining, probation, parole
too soon, and protection of the defendant against fairness toward
the victim. :

I was surprised to learn that so many of these people who cause
these fatalities have very bad records. To me, it is a warning
system, and it is not being used. For instance, the driver register
could help prevent this.

I have talked to police, and they say they arrest them, they go
into court, and they come out the other side of the door. Many
times they pick up the same person. I have been monitoring courts
and have found that about 75 percent get probation and 20 vercent
get suspended, so there is no deterrent and very little risk.

I would like to just read one thing that sums up my feeling, and
this was in State v. Steele in the New Mexico Court of Appeals:

There are few more compelling demands for protection of the public over the indi-

vidual than in the area which insists upon removing the drunk driver from the
public highway. The legislature must let the courts know how they feel about this.

Thank you.

Senator DoLE. Please stay up here, and I will ask Senator Pell to
come up. He is now here.

We have a panel of citizen action and public interest groups. If it
is all right with the panel, I know that Senator Pell has about nine
other things to do, so I will ask him to proceed now. As soon as
g_ongressman Michael Bavnes arrives, we will be happy to hear

im.

STATEMENT OF HON. CLAIBORNE PELL, A U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

Senator PeLL. Mr. Chairman, I would like to commend you and
the Subcommittee on Courts for calling a hearing this morning to
examine a national crime problem that has been overlooked by the
Congress for much too long a time.

I have long been amazed that a society which expresses shock
and outrage over 20,000 homicides annually continues to accept,
year after year, an even greater number of deaths at the hands of
drunk drivers. This complacency is hard to understand when one
realizes that a car with an intoxicated driver is precisely as danger-
ous as a loaded gun in the hands of someone who is blinded by
rage. The combination of an instrument with the power to kill and
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a person who is past the powers of reason is precisely the same in
both cases. In crimes of passion as well as with drunk driving,
there is no premeditated criminal intent, but in both cases the end
result is a crime; it’s just that when drunk driving is the cause of
death, as it is 73 times each day, 26,000 times each year, we are too
rarely willing to treat it as one.

Why does the United States, a society with a sensibility to every-
thing from dangerous toys to the evils of tobacco, continue to
accept the highest number of alcohol-related traffic fatalities per
capita, of any nation in the world? ‘

Drunken driving flourishes in the United States today primarily
because we tolerate it. In Norway or Sweden, if a blood test indi-
cates a sufficient presence of alcchol, the driver knows he’s going
to jail. The jail term for a first offense is not long, but it is virtual-
ly automatic. People who can afford lawyers are as liable for im-
prisonment as those who cannot. As a result, people in these coun-
tries pay attention to the law.
~ In the last 2 years, the West German Government and the police
have cracked down on drunken driving. At roadblocks, at key in-
tersections, and autobahn exits, the police halt drivers at random
to check for alcohol consumption.

Depending on the results of the blcod test, a driver’s license may
be suspended for anywhere from 8 months to 3 years. Many West
German judges fine a heavy drinker 1 month’s wages in addition to
taking away the license. And if the drunken driver was involved in
an accident, the probability is high that he or she will be sent to
prison.

ther countries have tried different approaches which are in
some ways equally harsh. In Australia, for example, the names of
drunk drivers are published prominently in local papers. In
Turkey, the common practice is to take drunk drivers 20 miles
from town and force them to walk back under police escort.

In most of the United States today, it’s a different story entirely.
Drunk driving is socially acceptable and even condoned as part of
the American “macho” image.

But even though it takes a certain degree of effort to be charged
with “driving under the influence,” it’s clear that most judges and
lawmakers believe that because a typical drunken driver doesn’t fit
the image of a “criminal,” it’s not appropriate to invoke serious
penalties. Hence, even drunks who have killed on our highways
frequently get nominal or suspended sentences.

I know this dreadful problem all too well; in the space of just 18
months a few years back, two of my valued aides were killed due to
the actions of drunken drivers.

On November 16, 1974, Elizabeth Powell of my staff was slaugh-
tered by a man named Donald Larsen, whose car went out of con-
trol, crossed a median strip and struck the automobile in which she
was riding. The man had been drinking. After several delays in his
case, he pleaded guilty to the charge of manslaughter by auto-
mobile and received a I-year suspended sentence.

On September 27, 1975, Stephen Wexler, the chief counsel to the
Senate Education Subcommittee and my close friend and associate
for 10 years, was struck down by a drunk driver named Joseph
Rawlings, who was drag racing with another car at the time of the
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accident. Steve left a young widow and an infant son. The driver of
the car that hit Steve was charged with drunk driving, and both he
and the driver of the other vehicle involved in drag racing were

charged with manslaughter by automobile. Again, after innumer- -

able delays, both drivers were convicted of manslaughter and re-
ceived suspended sentences.

Both accidents were well publicized and—just as when any acci-
dent occurs involving drinking and the loss of young lives—there
was a sense of outrage and—on the part of some—a call foir swift-
er, stiffer penalties.

Can anything be done to improve this dreadful situation? Are we
powerless to confront a problem which in the space of a decade has
wiped out the lives of one-quarter million of our citizens?

I have concluded that our legal system is not as incapable of de-
terring this life-threatening behavior as most of us have assumed.
As the Scandinavian and West German experience shows, the cer-
tainty of facing an embarrassing penalty gives a special pause to
people who are not accustomed to severe treatment by the law.

I have introduced legislation, Senate bill 671, which would attack
the drunk driving menace in three ways:

First, all convicted drunken drivers would be subject to the same
minimum penalties, namely at least 10 days of community service
for a first offense, and at least 10 days in jail for those convicted
two or more times within a 5-year period.

These penalties are intended to be light enough to be readily in-
voked yet real enough to make a genuine impression. The commu-
nity service alternative is intended to consist of weekends, or eve-
nings, assisting in hospitals where accident victims are brought, or
similar activities intended to deprive drunk drivers of their person-
al liberty for the equivalent of 10 days.

Second, recognizing that we are a car-bound society in which
most people are genuinely dependent on the automobile for their
livelihood, my bill proposes that first offenders have their licenses
“restricted” to essential or work-related travel. Such restrictions
could be made enforceable by the issuance of readily identifiable
special marker plates. The public embarrassment of having to
drive with such plates would be a powerful incentive not to run the
risk of being caught.

Third, my bill would require sentencing judges to determine if
the offender is a problem drinker in need of a referral to an alco-
hoel treatment or rehabilitation center, or followup by alcohol abuse
counselors. No legislative effort dealing with this problem can be
effective unless it includes a strong emphasis on identifying and
treating the problem drinkers. .

My bill is currently pending before the Commerce Committee
where it has been’ cosponsored by Senators Glenn, Goldwater,
Huddleston, and Inouye. An identical bill has been introduced in
the House by Congressman Barnes, and has 67 cosponsors.

The cornerstone of my legislation is one idea—that the key to re-
building the deterrent potential of the law in this area is to create
certainty that even a first offense will bring down real and un-
pleasant sanctions. I believe a single piece of Federal legislation is
the most constructive means of establishing this expectation of
punishment on a national basis. The punishment does not have to
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be too severe for a first offender—indeed if it is too severe, judges
and prosecutors won’t invoke it—but the sanction must sting and
embarrass. Causing a drunk driver to miss his standing golf or
poker game because he’s at the local hospital accident room or
house of correction is just the kind of moderate sentence judges
need to avoid the persistent entreaties of defense lawyers.

Of course, my bill encourages the States to set only minimum
standards; there is nothing to prevent a State from imposing a
more stringent mandatory sentence, or outright license revocation.

Obviously, there is no readymade, single, easy solution to the
drinking driver problem. Legislation is not the total answer to the
problem, and never will be. Drunk driving will continue until
public acceptance of it is withdrawn, a process that may take dec-
ades if not generations. The passage of Federal legislation, howev-
er, would be a powerful incentive for everyone from insurance com-
panies to educational institutions to mount public education cam-
paigns. Drunk driving is a problem that is truly national in scope,
and its estimated $5 billion annual cost to our society relates to
much more than just the criminal justice system of the individual
States. '

Already, there are encouraging signs of a national consensus on
this issue. Maine has recently enacted a very tough drunk driver
law, with a 48-hour mandatory jail term, a $350 fine, and 90-day
license suspension. That State is averaging more than 800 arrests a
month for drunk driving, and now has the toughest laws on the
books. '

On the other side of the country, California has just enacted sev-
eral laws dealing with drunk drivers. One would require a manda-
tory 48 hours in jail or a 90-day license suspension and fine for first
offenders. Another bill is designed to restrict plea bargaining in
these cases by treating reckless driving involving alcohol as the
equivalent of a drunk driving offense in terms of the penalties ap-
plied. Finally, the new California laws wiil add $1 to the State ve-
hicle registration fees so 670 new highway patrol officers can be
hired to enforce the stronger laws.

The Maine and California laws, together with similar legislation
in States like new Hampshire and Maryland, and a flurry of grass-
roots lobbying groups, suggest that our citizens are finally demand-
ing more effective drunk driver laws. Our task, as legislators must
be to mobilize this public support for stronger laws, and translate
it into realistic, workable legislation which will help reduce one of
our country’s most widespread and destructive crimes.

I thank you very much indeed, Mr. Chairman, for letting me
mall«:e this statement. If there are any questions, I will be glad to
reply.

Senator DoLe. I want to thank you, Senator Pell, for your leader-
ship in this area and also Congressman Barnes who has now joined
you. We will hear from him next. ' ,

I do not know how you view the problem, but it seems to me a
national disgrace in the sense that nothing has been done. I under-
stand the federalism involved, and I think the edministration may
find some areas of your legislation that raise some p:oblems, but I
cannot think of a better way that the President could serve this
country than to come to grips with this problem.
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I know that Congressman Barnes, Congressman Hansen, and
others on the House side, as well as many on the Senate side have
sent a personal letter to the President suggesting that he address
t}fl;s i?ro]ulem at a very early time. Certainly we will support that
effort.

Ag you indicated in the early part of your statement, we focus on
homicides.-I remember during the Vietnam war there was almost a
Wegkly body count, but nobody seemed to add up the thousands
and thousands of innocent victims in accidents involving drunk
driving. |

I would hope—and I know that your interest will persist—that
we in th}s cqmmittee at least could focus on the problem, and if not
your legislation, something that would address the problem. I think
that is your primary concern.

Senatfor PeLL. It does not matter whose name is on it; the impor-
tant thing is to try to reduce those 20,000 deaths on the highway
down to a smaller number.

P %%nator DorE. Senator Heflin, do you have questions of Senator
ell?

STATEMENT OF SENATOR HOWELL HEFLIN

Sen.ator HeFLIN. I have had conversations with Senator Pell over
a period of many monthe on this. I have been interested in this.

When I.Wa§ chief justice of the supreme court, we went through
a reorganization of courts and attempted to get into this matter of
dealing with driving while intoxicated. I think we had a pilot pro-
gram under which it ended up that judges had, among their other
authorities, the. right to sentence a person to go to a school, and
they were required to go to a school, largely under the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration.

They went throqgh a 10-hour required course that they would
ha_ve to _mee!:‘. During this, they would come to grips with certain
things like: “First, why was I drunk while I was driving?” They
would have to write it out.

Ag a result of our program and a similar program that existed in
Florida on what we would call DWT referral schools, the recidivism
rate droppeq from around 80 percent to about 6 percent. It had a
tremendous impact.

This was a State approach. There has been a lot of talk about it.
That is Just one area that I am interested in. There is no question
that accidents and the driving-while-intoxicated-related deaths is a
serious problem. . :

There is the problem of federalism involved in this. This is a seri-
ous problgm, but I congratulate you on your interest in this matter.
The fact is that we ought to look at it very carefully. I think we
have to loc_)k at it within the parameters of federalism. We have to
deal with it in a lot of different ways. It is a serious problem, and
iln m{hmtmd'l\ive nelc;':d tfo have a nationwide program. The details of

ow that will work, of course, are something we wi to gi
careful study to in the future. 8 we will have fo give

I congratulate you, Mr. Chairman, for your interest and your
statement on this. 3
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Senator Dore. As I understand it, in Rhode Island they uspd to
have a special tag for anyone convicted of drunk driving. I think it
was a red tag. At least you could spot them if you could see them
coming. I am not certain whether that had any impact in that
State.

Senator PELL. We have a bad record in connection with intoxica-
tion, I. guess, because we are the only State that did not ratify the
Volstead amendment, and we have the second highe:it rate of alco-
holism in our State.

Senator HEFLIN. Mr. Chairman, might I ask if the tags were on
the front or the back?

Senator DoLE. I imagine that in the early days they had them on
both ends. That is just an aside.

As I see it people grope with ways to deal with the problem. As
Judge Heflin indicated, we may have some problems with the so-
called federalism issue. However, it seems to me that there are
enough fertile minds around this country that we ought to be able
to come to grips with this problem.

Do you want to stay, or do you need to go on to another meeting?

Senator PeLL. I will just drop back, but I will listen for a little
while. I know Congressman Barnes is here. I am delighted. He bas
really carried the load on the House side on this. Between us, we
hope, before too many tens of thousands have been slaughtered,
that some form of this legislation may be on the books.

I thank you for your hospitality. .

Senator DoLE. I might explain to Senator Heflin that I am going
to have to leave in just a minute or two to run down and see about
taxes and the budget, but I will be back. I have a lot of balis in the
air right now.

We have a panel here, and I did indicate to them that as soon as
you and Congressman Barnes arrived we would interrupt their tes-
timony. So we will now hear from Congressman Barnes.

I would like to insert in the record, without objection, a copy of a
statement from Congressman James Hansen, who has been work-
ing with Congressman Barnes.

[The prepared statement of Congressman Hansen follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF CONGRESSMAN JAMES V. HANSEN

I am pleased to provide testimony for this subcommittee on the serious problem of
drinking driving. I consider the drinking driver problem as one of our nation’s
greatest tragedies. ) ‘

My first contact with the drinking driver came when I worked for a large insur-
ance company. I handled most of the claims of auto fatalities and I was appalled to
find that almost 70 percent of our fatal auto accident claims involved drinking driv-
ers.

In recent years, I have owned my own insurance agency where I have continued
to see the same deplorably high percentage of deaths caused by drinking drivers.
Also, as the past Chairman of a Joint Insurance Study Committee in the Utah State
Legislature, I received evidence and figures showing the staggering number of inno-
cent people who are maimed or killed by drinking drives. Perhaps one of the saddest
things I witnessed as I served on the Study Committee was the large number of chil-
dren who had needlessly lost one or both of their parents to careless, drinking driv-
ers.

During the past six months, I have suffered two serious automiobile accidents at
the hands of drinking drivers. In both accidents my cars were totaled and in both
cases the people who ran into me had been drinking.
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In the first accident, which happen in Oakton, Virginia, a car ran a stop sign and
hit my car broadside. The impact pushed my car into another lane of traffic where
it was struck by a second automobile and forced off the road where it came to rest
after colliding with a telephone pole. I sustained cuts, bruises and sprains, was
treated at a local hospital and released later in the evening.

In the second accident, my wife, myself and our five children were traveling north
in the far right lane of Interstate 15 in Utah, just outside of Salt Lake City. A
driver on our left hit the left shoulder of the freeway, over corrected to the right,
and smashed into the left side of my car. Both cars rolled and were demolished. For-
tunately, I only had a few bruises. However, my wife sustained a compression frac-
ture of the back, my daughter suffered a cervical fracture in her neck, and my son
fractured his elbow. My wife was tlat on he back for weeks and still has problems
getting around.

I truly believe that the problem of the drinking driver is one of America’s great-
est tragedies. It is time that my colleagues and I in Congress take action to help
stem the useless carnage on our nation’s highways. This year, alone, 26,000 Ameri-
cans will be needlessly killed by drink’ng drivers. The human suffering inflicted on
the American public by the drinking drivers can no longer be tolerated by a sane
society. Thank you,

Senator DoLE. We are very pleased to have you here this morn-
ing. We have certainly expressed our interest in your lezdership,
and I commended you for that.

If Senator Heflin will trade places, I will be back as quickly as
possible.

Senator HerFLIN. I will have some problems. If I have to leave,
could our friend and very distinguished staff director and former
director of LEAA preside? ' v

Senator DoLg. No; I think we will just recess the hearing. I will
be back soon, unless they raise taxes too high. I may not want to
come back at all. [Laughter.]

I should be back within 30 or 45 minutes. I know you have an-
other conflict. We are trying to find other Senators, but I think we
will just recess the hearing for a few minutes. :

STATEMENT OF HON. MiCHAEL D. BARNES, A U.S.
REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE STATE OF MARYLAND

Mr. BarNEs. Mr. Chairman, before you go, I just want to com-
mend your leadership on this critical issue and your taking the
trouble to schedule this very important hearing. I know it is appre-
ciated by many, many people.

I also want to say how pleased I am to appear this morning with
Senator Pell, who has demonstrated outstanding leadership over a
long pericd of time, the result, unfortunately, as the Senator indi-
cated, of two very tragic incidents involving close friends of his.

I particularly appreciate the opportunity to offer my viewpoints
as one who has now dedicated the past year and a half to bringing
to the forefront the drunk driving problem with the hope that it
will receive the kind of attention that it deserves and to help to
Take the resolution of this tragedy a nationally recognized prior-
ity. : _

Today I want to describe two major initiatives that are already
underway in Congress which directly confront the drinking driver
menace. One is the one that was outlined by Senator Pell. The
other was alluded to briefly by Senator Dole. :

I believe it is important to understand the broad scope of this
tragedy as it exists today on our Nation’s highways. From this sce-
nario I believe that it will be clear that drinking drivers constitute
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the most critical threat to the health and safety of citizens on our
roads. It is a threat which deserves immediate and responsible
action at all levels of government—at the local level, the State
level, and the Federzl level. .

Just last year, about 52,000 Americans were kﬂ}ed on the
Nation’s highways. Another 2 million were seriously injured. We
find that cars are getting smaller and lighter; that trucks are get-

ting bigger and heayier; that severe budget cuts threaten the safe’

upkeep of our highways; and, typically and tragically, motor vehi-
cle collisions pose the greatest threat to the lives of Americans
under the age of 35. ‘

Yet just last week the administration rescinded all standards re-
quiring U.S. automakers to provide automatic safety restraints for
passengers, which we had expected to save at least 9,000 lives each
year. These short-term cost savings to automakers, in my judg-
ment, do not justify the long-term human suffering experienced by
Americans which could be averted with a national policy on man-
datory passive restraints.

Senator, what is most alarming to me is the fact that over one-
half of these auto fatalities are directly related to alcohol use and
abuse. Last year alone, 26,000 Americans lost their lives and an-
other 750,000 persons were seriously injured, many of them crip-
pled and maimed for life in drunk driving collisions. ,

Paradoxically, according to the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration, on an average day only 1 of every 2,000 drinking
drivers is apprehended, and the chance of conviction is slim. As
Senator Pell indicated, even when convicted, the penalties are very
limited. ’

I am sure that you will learn today from the variety of persons
offering testimony, especially from victims of drunk drivers, that
this threat to life and limb is all too real, and it will not go away
unless we take some vital steps to provide a coordinated effort
among the Federal, State, and local governmental bodies.

I first became active in bringing this issue to the attention of the
American public and our colleagues in the Congress in 1980 when I
learned just how serious a threat drunk driving poses to people in
every community nationwide.

Later today we will hear from a young woman who, along with
her baby daughter, has experienced firsthand the harsh realities
and human suffering inflicted on innocent victims of drunk drivers.

I, along with thousands of citizens in my State of Maryland and
across the country, were deeply moved and motivated by the trage-
dy that struck Cindi Lamb and her daughter Laura. Laura Lamb is
now paralyzed for life from the shoulders down due to the actions
of a repeat offender drunk driver. Laura Lamb is living proof that
this problem is real and that none of us is immune to this daily
threat.

Just this week the 16-year-old daughter of close friends of my
family was killed by a drunk driver not very many miles from here
in Burtonsville, Md.

Looking at the problem nationally, the statistics alone convince |

me that drunk driving is a neglected national crisis which experts
unfortunately tell us is getting worse, much worse.
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Over the past decade, one-quarter of a million Americans have
been killed in alcohol-related crashes. In the past 2 years, more
people were killed in drunk driving collisions than all of our young
citizens who lost their lives in the decade-long Vietnam war. Last
year, drunk driving created economic costs soaring above an esti-
mated conservative cost of $5 billion.

Late in the 96th Congress, I introduced legislation which was
identical to the bill that Senator Pell has described and which he
sponsored in the Senate, to offer a needed first step in what has
been an emerging battle against drunk driving and to encourage
the States to take firm and effective action to protect our citizens.

My legislation, H.R. 2488, was reintroduced early in the 97th
Congress along with Senator Pell’s bill in the Senate, and it has

received increasing support among our colleagues and the Ameri-

can public. Currently, over 70 Members of Congress have joined in
a strong bipartisan effort which specifically attempts to assist the
States to better coordinate comprehensive programs in each State,
in close cooperation with local communities, to deter drunk driving
and to punish and rehabilitate those who are convicted of this act,

The Dill includes mandatory minimum standards to assure three
key elements of any successful program aimed at discouraging
drunk driving—that is, some tough laws, stringent enforcement of
those laws, and ongoing effective public information efforts.

An advantage of the legislation, if adopted by the States, is that
these programs could pay for themselves. The bulk of the money
needed to pay for the programs would come from the mandatory
fines imposed at the time of conviction and from fees collected
when entering correctional programs.

The bill, which received the full support of the previous adminis-

tration, has been endorsed by a wide variety of organizations, in-

cluding Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, an organization called
Remove Intoxicated Drivers; the American Academy of Pediatrics;
the American Council on Alcohol Problems; Independent Living for
the Handicapped; the Rehabilitation Institute of Chicago, the
Nation’s largest medical center treating spinal cord injured per-
sons, many of whom, cbviously, are the victims of drunk drivers,

The Reagan administration, although it has not endorsed the
bill, agrees with our longstanding contention that drunk driving is
not only our most critical highway safety problem but is also one of
the Nation’s most serious health and safety concerns.

The administration questions the bill’s threat of loss of Federal
highway safety funds as a means of enticing effective State and
local action as an infringement upon the States rights.

It is true that if the bill is passed by Congress the States would
be called on to adhere to its provisicas or risk losing their annual
share of Federal highway safety money. The final discretion, how-
ever, is up to the Secretary of Transportation. '

While the administration suggests that the legislation is an un-
welcome threat to the States and the livelihood of their individual

highway safety programs, I have to point out that the administra-

tion, in fiscal year 1982, has sliced those same funds nearly in half,
from about $200 million last year to an expected $100 million this
year. These are the funds that the States have -depended upon to
carry out the objectives of their highway safety programs, the very
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kinds of programs, Senator, that you were alluding to just a few
moments ago. .

I believe these specific Federal budget cuts pose a very serious
threat by the Federal Government to the States’ ability to provide
their citizens with sufficient protection, particularly in law enforce-
ment and public information efforts that are so vital to any signifi-
cant and long-term crackdown on drinking drivers. _ _

The administration has praised the intent of the bill, and it sup-
ports specific components of the legislation. The administration
also has offered to work with me, with Senator Pell, and with the
various committees on the Hill to resolve any existing problems
that they have with the bill. I welcome and look forward to work-
ing closely with the administration and with members of this com-
mittee as well as my colleagues in the House on this matter.

Realistically, the bill does not provide a panacea to a problem
which our society has allowed to continue and to worsen to the
point where we are faced with a crisis of what is clearly epidemic
proportions.

However, the bill does offer a needed initial step toward what
must be a comprehensive effort among the Federal, State, and lp_cal
levels. The bill does offer a workable skeletal system from which
the States and local communities can gear their problems to effec-
tively deter and treat drinking drivers. . o

In the end, it is up to the States and localities, with continuing
assistance, I hope, from the Federal Government, to assure that the
system works. This is why I have publicly endorsed statewide and
community-wide efforts to form solution-oriented volunteer task
forces to uncover existing deficiencies in the system and to directly
address them with realistic, workable solutions.

Over the past year, such statewide efforts were launched by the
Governors of Maryland, California, and New York, and they have
successfully led to important and needed changes in each State,
both legislatively and administratively. o

Recently, local task forces have begun to emerge, bringing to-
gether diverse groups of individuals representing the numerous
fields which touch upon the drinking driver problem, such as law
enforcers, legislators, judges, prosecutors, clergymen, alcohol reha-
bilitators, officials of insurance companies, victims of drunk driv-
ers, and other concerned citizens. : _

In my own' community, Montgomery County, Md., a special task
force was recently appointed by our county executive, Charles
Gilchrist. My office is represented on this panel, which currently is
walking through the system in our county, learning from testimo-
ny and a thorough investigation just what has worked as well as
what has failed and how to correct those flaws.

I might note in that context that our police department in Mont-
gomery County, just within the last few days, has instituted a new
experiment, and that is setting up a roadblock at a time when a
large number of drunk drivers might be anticipated to be on the
roads, and stopping everybody, checking to see whether or not they
appear to be intoxicated. They tried this for the first time just a
few days ago. They stopped over 500 drivers and made 10 arrests
based upon that.
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I salute what is being done by the police in our community. It is
similar to what I saw when I was a graduate student living in Swit-
zerland, where routinely the police would just stop drivers, and
anyone who was drunk would be arrested. It is understood in Swit-
zerland that if you are arrested for drunk driving you go to jail. It
should be understood in the United States, as Senator Pell has
said, that if you are arrested for drunk driving you will lose your
freedom.

Mr. Chairman, this leads me to the second and most recent ini-
tiative that I have undertaken which, as Senator Dole indicated,
calls on President Reagan to take a firm public leadership role
against this nationwide disgrace by appointing a blue ribbon na-
tional commission, not to study the problem, because this problem
has been studied, restudied, and studied again, but to finally bring
together the finest minds, the most qualified persons, and the
wealth of resources and technologies available to develop a realistic
master plan to curtail the tragic suffering that is caused by the
drinking driver epidemic.

One month ago I launched this new effort along with my two col-
leagues in the House, Jim Hansen of Utah and Glenn Anderson of
California, to coalesce congressional support for our proposal.

Jim Hansen’s active leadership on this initiative has been
spurred by his own firsthand experience, similar to that that Sena-
tor Pell’s staff has had. In the past 6 months alone, Congressman

Hansen has been struck twice by drinking drivers, the last collision v

seriously injuring his wife and his daughter.

Glenn Anderson chairs the House Surface Transportation Sub-
committee, which has direct jurisdiction over the drunk driving
issue. Obviously, we are very pleased to have his involvement in
this effort. ‘

Since launching it, we have been circulating a letter to President
Reagan among our colleagues in the House and the Senate. At the
moment we have collected signatures from over 200 Republicans
and Democrats in what is one of the broadest displays of bipartisan
support that I have seen during my 8 years in Congress. We have
joined together to ask the President to use the powers of his office
to finally bring under control the senseless and preventable car-
nage due to drunk driving nationally.

Our effort has also received wide and active support from numer-
ous groups throughout the Nation, including the American Council
on Alcohol Problems, the Alliance of American Insurers, the Gov-
ernment Employees Insurance Co., the Maryland chapter of the
American Association of University Women, the California District
Attorneys Association, and organizations such as RID and MADD
that I referred to earlier. I commend these organizations for their
great help.

I would like to note that last year, when I formally announced
introduction of my legislation and Senator Pell’s legislation, MADD
launched its own petition drive at that time urging the formation
of a presidential commission. I was proud to have been the first
signer of their effort which has now collected over 100,000 signa-
tures from citizens all over the country. -
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Finally, I would like to stress two additional aspects related to
reducing the incidence of drunk driving and the subsequent death
and injury that it causes.

One, the Congress with the support of the administration should
pass legislation sponsored by Jim Oberstar of Minnesota and Sena-
tor Pell that would establish a fully funded, fully functioning na-
tional driver register. As an original cosponsor of this bill, I am
aware of the necessity to establish and maintain a comprehensive
national network to help States track repeat offenders before issu-
ing driving permits to applicants.

Second, we need to focus attention on developing and expanding
the use of shock trauma centers to quickly and effectively treat the
type of shock that is most often due to motor vehicle collisions.
Often people die on our highways because of lack of immediate
treatment of the symptoms of shock.

In Maryland, specifically at the University of Maryland in Balti-
more, we have established one of the first such shock trauma cen-
ters in the country, and I believe it has become a model for physi-
cians and other medical facilities all over the Nation. The main
function of these centers is to treat the hundreds of thousands of
persons who are severely injured in automobile crashes each year.

In closing, Senator Heflin, I would point out that one of every

~two of us in this room this morning—one of every two of us in this
recom—can expect to be involved in an alcohol-related auto crash in
our lifetime. As a recent U.S. News & World Report article points
out, our Nation is allowing itself to be led up a steady and steep
incline in deaths and injuries primarily due to drunk drivers.

As I have stated repeatedly, this problem is nothing less than a
holocaust on our highways, and it will not disappear on its own. It
is clear that our Nation is going to have to do everything possible
that is reasonable and responsible to finally stem the tide against
what I believe is clearly a preventable problem.

I am convinced that, with the cooperation of the administration,
the Congress, the Nation’s lawmakers, law enforcers, judges, pros-
ecutors, educators, parents, and the public generally, we can make
significant and lasting changes to save lives and to reduce crippling
injuries.

This subcommittee, as I said at the outset, is to be commended
for its leadership in scheduling these hearings to bring this crisis to
national attention. I am very pleased to have had the opportunity
to make this statement, Senator.

Senator HEFLIN [acting chairman]. Congressman Barnes, I con-
gratulate you on a very thorough and comprehensive statement of
testimony directed to this very crucial issue. *

I have read in the past, and amn more familiar now, with statis-
tics of the number of deaths on the highways each year more than
50 percent of those are alcohol related. Would that be a correct
statement?

Mr. BarnEs. That would be absolutely correct, &cnator. Every
study that I have seen and the statement of every expert that I
have ever seen indicates that that is correct. In fact, when I talk to
the State police in Maryland, they argue that it is very substantial-
ly higher than that.
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Senator HEFLIN. Are there age brackets in which we find that
the.re.are more offenses that result from driving while intoxicated,
or is it a universal problem? We know today, for example, that in
crime, in the age group 16-21, a substantially higher percentage of
the people who are convicted of criminal offenses fall into that
group. Is this a problem that not only exists among certain age
groups but is prevalent in all age groups?

Mr. BarNEs. Senator, it is something that is prevalent in all age
groups, although the data would indicate that the young driver
who becomes intoxicated is a major factor in the problem.

I hatg to keep referring to what we are doing in our State, but
our legls_lature is now considering raising the age again. They had
!owered 1t a few years ago, but they are now considering again rais-
ing the age for purchase of alcohol because of the incidence of
drunk driving among young people.

Not only are young people potentially the drunk drivers, but per-
haps an even more striking statistic is that young people between
the ages of 18 and 25 are more likely to be killed by a drunk driver
than to die in any other way. They are more likely to be killed by a
d;'unk driver than they are to die of cancer, heart disease, or any
disease. one could name. This is the biggest threat to the life of
yogng peopI%Ie in America.

enator HEFLIN. Thank you, sir. We appreciate our testimony.

Mr. BArRNES. Thank you, Senator. PP d v

Senator HEFLIN. At this time we will call Ms. Cindi Lamb of

Mothers Against Drunk Drivers [MADD] from Fair Oaks, Calif.
Ms. Lamb?

[No response.]

Seneiltor HEFLIN. Mr. Plymat, executive director of the American
1(lfouncﬂ on Alcohol Problems of Des Moines, Iowa, we welcome you

ere. o

We request you tc_> summarize your statement. Your prepared,
written statement will be made a part of the record. We all have

time problems this morning. If you would, we would appreciate it if

you would summarize your statement,

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM N. PLYMAT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,

IA(l)\'IERICAN COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL PROBLEMS, DES MOINES,
WA '

Mr. PLyMAT. Senator, I shall certainly do so.
- I'should perhaps tell you that I am a lawyer, a retired State sen-
ator in the legislature of Iowa, and chairman of the Iowa Commis-
sion on Substance Abuse, having just. completed 4 years on the

commission and having Just been reappointed to another 4 years by
Governor Ray.

I am executive director of a private organization, the American
Qouncﬂ on Alcohol Problems, which has an affiliate in your State,
sir. I am board chairman emeritus of the Preferred Risk Mutual
Insurance Co. I have been involved in this area of concern since I
was a very young man and am still active. , o g

The announced purpose of this hearing is to examine actions of

State and local courts as they respond to the severe drinking driv-
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ing problem. But if we are to make real progress, we must examine
the whole spectrum of the drinking driving problems; )

We need to find out what is going on across our country, what is
being done that works, and what has been done that fails. The gen-
eral public needs to be made aware of the problem in a way in
which they have not been made aware, due to the failure of the
media to do the job. _

The judicial system is highly overburdened. It cannot possibly
handle the load. The police are often reluctant to arrest because
our laws are antique. The drinking-driving law is as antique as a
model A Ford, and we have got to change the basic law of this
country on the offense of driving an automobile under the influ-
ence of alcohol.

I feel qualified to respond to this because, as I have indicated, I
have practiced law in Des Moines. I worked to improve the laws in
my State. I managed to get a 2-day jail sentence put in operation in
my State. I tried to get a per se law. I organized an auto insurance
company, and I do not want to belabor that point except to say
that it started out in a humble way. It is one of the largest compa-
nies in the country today. It insures people who, for religious and
other reasons, do not use alcohol. _

We need to classify drinking drivers in two categories: One, they

are alcoholics. Two, they are social drinkers and just do not care.
They are driving without any regard to what the effects are.
"~ So we need to grab the persons who are charged with the offense
and put them into an intensive investigation with testing and ex-
perts examining them to find out if they are alcoholics. If they are
indeed, they should be immediately put into therapy under penalty
of immediate prosecution. But to lock them up in jail or stall their
charges in a court of law does not get at their problem.

We are doing that innovatively in Des Moines, Iowa, today. The
results of this are not yet known, because it is too soon, but we are
deferring prosecutions even in the case of persons who are obvious-
ly alcoholics, while we are going after the volitional violators.

The volitional violators are a large group. It is arguable whether
they are 80 percent, 50 percent, or what percent they are of the
total, but the thing we have got to do if we are going to make any
progress in this country is to change the drinking-driving law of
the United States in all States except 15.

We have got to set a speed limit on drinking and driving. We
have got to say that when the blood alcohol reading is over .10 it is
an offense in itself. Then we have got to slap these people in jail, in
my opinion, for 2 days to give them shock treatment, except where
they are ill and have to be sent to a court.

There was a very notable experiment in Chicago in 1970 during
the Christmas season, where they announced that everybody con-
victed would get 7 days. That was a great success in reducing the
problem in that are:.. ' ‘

I see that my tivue is about to expire. Let me just say to you that
we need a mass €ducational program, the kind of thing like this
[indicating leaflet], “Half drunk drivers are dangerous too.” This
was authored by my son and is being widely distributed. We have a
little leaflet [indicating leaflet], “Alcohol Facts: 5 ways drinking
can hurt you.” - : .
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In_ your State, Senator, the State liquor store system is going to
receive 150,900 copies of this to go in the sacks of every bottle of
liquor sold in your State. That is going to increase public knowl-
edge and information.

_ The most important thing that needs to be done, in my opinion,

is to have a national task force or commission appointed by Presi-

dent Reagan. I have had a big part in that development here in

flecent days and have been very supportive of what is going on
ere.

I want to say that even in Anchorage, Alaska, they have had a
referenglun} on closing the bars at an earlier hour, and we ought to
be monitoring people coming out of bars with these kind of breath-
testing devices, so that they can be challenged to check their
breath._We ought to be going in the direction of closing the bars at
an earlier hour, because drinking all night in bars is insanity.

Thank you very much for the courtesy. My testimony is on the
yellqw paper for the press that are here. I am sorry that F cannot
possibly cover all the points. Thank you, Senator.

Senator HerLiN. We appreciate your excellent testimony, Mr.

Plymat.

You _obviousl_y have spent a great dea! of time and a great deal of
your life dealing with this problem and have many, many ap-
proaches toward it. It is a problem, I suppose, that it would be nice
to say we couid find a simple solution to, but it is a complicatea
matter, a matter that heeds innovation and needs the thinking
that you have given it. We appreciate your information.

Mr. Prymar. Thank you.

Senator HEFLIN. I am going to have to close the hearing for a
iholl;t recess. I believe that Senator Dole or Senator Mathias will be

ack.

Unfortunately, we all belong to an institution that has been
prpbably. correctly described as a 100-ring circus, there is some-
thing going on in every one of those rings at the same time, and
most of us are required to be in at least three or four rings at the
same time. Ii:, 1s-a real problem, but I am sure that the recess will
not be anything other than what you probably need to stretch and
that Ser}ator Dole or Senator Mathias will be back very shortly.

We will stand in recess for a brief period of time.

[A brief recess was taken.]

'Sena!:or DoLe. Again, I apologize for my absence, but we were
dlscussn}g budget matters with the President. Since I am chairman
of the Finance Committee and will have the bulk of the responsibil-
ity, it was necessary that I be there. :

As I understand,.' both Senator Pell and Congressman Barnes
have completed their testimony. We have heard from two members
of the citizens’ panel. Cindi Lamb is now here. '

~We certainly will welcome your testimony, and I will have ques-
tions of the panel. Then we will follow with Diane Steed. -

You may proceed. ' :

P
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STATEMENT OF CINDI LAMB, MOTHERS AGAINST DRUNK
DRIVERS, FAIR OAKS, CALIF.

Ms. LamB. I am here today, not only as a representatlYe _of
MADD [Mothers Against Drunk Drivers] but as a perseonal victim
of a drunk driver. . )

My 2-year-old daughter Laura has been and will remain para-
lyzed from the shoulders down since the age of 5 months due to a
four-time repeat offender drunk driver. . o .

I am sure you are all aware of the staggering statistics of deat
and injury caused by drunk drivers and of the constant threat j:he,y
pose to all of us every minute we are on or near our Nation’s
roads, otherwise we would not be here, so I will not go over those

tistics again. )

StaSilice | h%ve become extensively involved in this issue on a local,
State, and Federal level, I would like to address all of you on cer-
tain issues where I feel Federal legislation can definitely help to

ect all of our lives. . o
pr?twould like to see a .10 blood alcohol level limit for driving
while intoxicated and a .08 to .10 for driving while impaired in all
States. : .

I feel that any open containers of alcohol of any kind should not
be permitted in a vehicle, and should open liquor in a vehicle be
found that in itself should be an offense punishable by fine or tem-
porary loss of license. _ .

Generally speaking, without a doubt I would like to see specific,
across-the-board guidelines set up for much stiffer sanctions
against repeat offender drunk drivers, including loss of license,
higher fines, and jail time. _ .

Victims of drunk drivers should be considered and included as a
victim of crime and should be financially compensated whenever
possible from State-operated victims of crime compensation boards.

I could go on for days with a list of things I would like to see
changed as far as Federal legislation is concerned, but I would like
to close with two thoughts: .

First, there is existing legislation, both in the House, by Repre-
sentative Mike Barnes, and the Senate, by Senator Ppll. I would
really like to see both the House and the Senate working together
on this issue. I would like to see them meeting together, coming up
with the most viable solutions for all of us.

And T would like to tell you that it will be 2 years on Tuesday
since my daughter and I were hit by this drunk driver. I still have
really bad nightmares, and I still cry a lot, an awful lot. Laura still
does not move or feel anything, and she is not geing to. She could
die very quickly because of all of her complications, real quick.

I am still scared, and I hurt inside really bad, and I want you _tg
know this, not because I want pity or, “Oh, let’s feel bad for Cindi,
but because it is fact and it is happening to so many other people.

Today 1 am still lucky enough to have Laura. She is still alive.
There are going to be 70 families today that are just going to die
inside because somebody they love is going to be killed today by a
drunk driver. . . - .

I am begging you, and I am pleading with you to move as swiftly
as possible on this issue. I strongly feel that some good, tough Fed-

- L .
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eral legislation with some teeth in it is vital in helping to remcve
drunk drivers from our highways-and hopefully saving some lives.

I would just like to reiterate a ~tatement that I have said for a
long time now. Drunk driving is .ot an accident; it is a crime, and
it should be treated as one. '

Thank you very much.

- Senator DoLE. Thank you very much.

Did Senator Heflin pose questions to the panel earlier?

Ms. Jounson. No.

Senator DoLE. First of all, I think what we would like to learn
from the panel, in addition to the tragic firsthand experiences you
have had, is how you feel you can motivate law enforcement, pros-
ecutors, and the courts to more effectively attack the drunk driver

‘problem. What are you doing as an organization or organizations.

Cindi, we will start with you.

Ms. LamB. In Maryland we have worked very closely with the
Maryland State Folice. In some of our ways of getting the issue out
and getting things done, we do not attack people and go to the
press, yell and scream, and act like wild people. We will try to
work as rationally and closely as we can with arybody.

The State police have been more than helpful in their efforts to
remove the drunk drivers. In the court system, we have done some
court watching; we have monitored the courts. We are trying to
change the judges’ attitude; this is vital. :

I feel that a lot of judges, when they see a guy in a three-piece
suit standing in front of them, all cleaned up, even though he has
been arrested for drunk driving, may say, “Gee, that could have
been me; let’s give this guy a break.” That attitude needs to be
changed, and we are working with the judges now regarding hope-
fully changing that attitude. ' |

Our organization has grown tremendously; it is a national orga-
nization now. People are just standing up and saying, ‘“This is
enough; we are going to do something about this,” and they are.

Senator DoLe. Have you actually identified any judges that you
believe give drunk drivers preferential treatment where it is not
deserved? Is that part of your efforts to try to identify those law
enforcement officials or judges? '

Ms. Lams. Yes. ,

Sgnator Dore. What do you do after you identify a judge, let us
say?

Ms. Lams. Speaking of my particular case, for the man who hit
me it was his fourth time for drunk driving. He had been in front
of the same judge for his three prior convictions—dJudge Stanley
Bennett of Frederick County. When the judge was asked why he let
this man back out on the road, his answer was, in effect: “If I put
him in jail, he will just get out and do it again,” ,

I do not mean to sornd like we take an ax to everybody, but this

-kind of attitude is disgusting and is exposed to the press. We have

worked very closely with the press, and we are learning how to uti-
lize the media as far as exposing this type of attitude is concerned
and getting out the fact that more people are killed by drunk driv-

ers than victims of crime. Yet drunk driving is not considered a
crime. - :

Qs et et
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Senator DoLe. What about other members of the panel? What
are you doing to motivate the public interest and action, not just to
support your efforts but te pressure law enforcement officials, and
in this case Congress to not only look at the problem but try to find
some way to address it?

Ms. JounsoN. We are writing a great many letters, and I have
started monitoring the courts. It has been kind of an eye opener,
not just in DWI but in finding the attitudes of the judges. It is a
very difficult situation, because judges do not want to have any-
thing mandated to them—their power and their influence. I thlnl’{’
they do feel, as Cindi said: ‘“There, but for the grace of God, go I.

More than that, I think they do have an argument, in that if you
put a person in jail, the first thing they do when they come out is
go to a bar. I am talking about alcoholics. I personally feel it would"
be a very good thing, at least in the second offense, if they gave the
choice to either go to jail or to in-house treatment. Sending them to
AA is putting a burden on AA. They do not really feel their job is
to be police. .

I also know that a lot of them can go to AA meetings, and the
first place they go when they are out is a bar. There is a great deal
of time between their arrest and their conviction. They are still
driving for maybe 6 months or a year. * .

Our own county, Baltimore County, is beginning to monitor the
judges. At the end of this period we are going to compile our fig-
ures and find out who we think is doing what. Then I guess we will
have to go to the press with it. There is no other way to get the
word out.

Senator DoLk. I would not wait too long to go to the press.

Ms. JounsoN. We want facts.

Senator DoLe. I know—once you have facts.

Mr. PLymAT. Senator, I cannot emphasize too strongly the need
for a per se law that sets a legal limit in the amount of alcohol you
can have in the blood.

I am a lawyer, sir, and a former State senator. In the early days
we had the provision on speed that unreasonable speed was wrong,
and then it would be a jury question.

Then we got smart, and we put in a speed limit. Today, if you get
caught going 80 miles an hour and the radar says so, you plead
guilty; you do not have a jury trial on whether you behaved badly;
that is it, and you pay up.

What we need to do in this country—and only 15 States have
done it—is get all the States of the Union to pass a specific stand-
ard of law violation. If your blood alcohol reading is over 0.10, it is
an offense in itself. Then the juries go out of the picture and all the
fancy defense tactics go out, and people have to face the fact that
they are going to get hit.

I happen to believe in a 2-day jail sentence. It is somewhat argu-
able, but it has worked. It is working i my State. I was responsi-
ble, as a State senator, for getting that adopted in Iowa. Now we
have got the per se law in lowa, and we are going after it. When
that is done, then we need the media to get that to everybody.

I am chairman of the Substance Abuse Commission in my State,
and I am very sympathetic about alcoholizs. Right now in Des
Moines, we are sending the people who look like they are alcoholics
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into intensive investigation to see if they are. Then we are putting
them into therapy, and we are watching them for a year. We are
on their shoulder. Everybody who drinks and drives knows that he
is going to go to jail, he is going to get hit, or he is going to go into
that tiresome analysis and be forced into therapy.

I cannot emphasize too strongly that half of this problem or
more occurs between 9 o’clock at night and 3 o’clock in the morn-
ing. We need to get people to realize that they are not safe on the
roads. They should stay off the roads. I do not drive after 9 o’clock
at night, particularly on Friday and Saturday night when 30 per-
cent of the cases occur.

We have to tell people, and when pecnle begin to realize that
their freedom is being impaired because they cannot drive after 9
o’clock at night, they are going to be sympathetic and say: “Well,
I'm going to stop this and help.” You see?

In the absence of a per se law, a lot of enforcement officers say:
“What’s the use? We can see that he has got a blood alcohol level
of 0.13, and the courts will not do anything.” We need to see that
when .they are convicted they get some suspension. Maybe not a
year—of course not—the law will not sell.

I think we need to monitor people coming out of bars with these
things [indicating machine]. We need to have a policeman, not
saying, “You have tc blow this,” but saying to the guy coming out,
“You appear to us to be impaired. Shall I tell you what yous blood
alcohol reading is?’ They can take the reading and say, ‘“Look,
man, you are 0.12. Get somebody to drive you home who is sober.”
If the guy says, “I won’t,” they can say, “OK, we’ll follow you, and
if you leave we will arrest you.” We cannot really have roadblocks
in this country vefy easily on account of the U.S. Supreme Court
decision. So we are stumped there. :

We need mass education, such as this little leaflet [indicating
leaflet] which will be used to the extent of 150,000 copies being put
into the sacks of every bottle of liquor sold in the State of Ala-
bama, Utah, and Iowa. We need to tell people that they have a 25-
percent impairment in driving ability at half of the legal limit. We
need mass education in that area.

I also think we need to close bars at earlier hours. They run all

night in Nevada. They have been running until 5 o’clock in the.

morning in Alaska and opening at 8. The citizens referendum in
Anchorage last month came down 2 to 1 to back it up to 2:30 in the
morning and keep it closed until 10.

We have got to realize that drinking all night long in bars is just
crazy. We have got to zero in on that. There are just so many
things. My testimony is' 18 pages long, sir, and I do not have the
time to do it here.

The most important thing of all, beside the per se law, is a na-
tional commission needed to find out what good things work in one
State and what have failed, pass the information back and forth,
and get citizen involvement.

President Reagan has stressed the fact that citizen involvement
is right, and we have multitudes of volunteers who will work for
nothing. We do not need piles of money, but we need a Federal
commission. I am sn pleased that you have added your signature to

the letter going to President Reagan. I know you have plenty of ex- -
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posure to our President, and I hope you will pass your own person-
al word along to him if you get a chance.

Seqator Dotre. I did not mention it to the President, but I did
mention it to Mr. Friedersdorf, the director of congressional rela-
tions, this morning. That is just the beginning. I did indicate to
him that I thought it might be something the President should
take a close look at.

Are you working with the industry? Do you have any contact
with the industry? :

Mr. PLymaT. You mean the alcoholic beverage industry? Well, to
some extent I do. I am a member of a Coalition for Adequate Alco-
holism Programs, and they are represented on that commission. I
realize that they may have mingled feelings about some of this, but
I find some constructive attitudes. They are concerned about drunk
driving too.

Of course, if you really start buttoning down on bars operation,
there are going to be some people in the industry who might have
conflicting views on that. But we have got to sacrifice that in terms
of saving lives.

I think the intelligent people in that industry will go along with
reasonable restraints. I personally think so. I have no personal ani-
1r;r}1losﬂzy toward them, although 1 might be suspected of having

em.

d%gnator Dote: Cindi, dv you have anything else you would like to
add?

Ms. Lams. I just want to briefly give you an outline of what hap-
pened in Maryland this past year. Shortly after my daughter’s and
my accident, we went to Governor Hughes and asked for a State
task force. We utilized the press in this request, which I believe did
put some kind of pressure on Governor Hughes to take some
action, and he did. .

. A State task force was initiated. It included all of the top offi-
cials and all of the different outlets as far as drunk driving is con-
cerned, with police officers, Jjudges, rehabilitation experts, AA
people, State senators, et~cetera. They have met, and they are still
meeting. They came up with six suggestions for changing the
Maryland_ laws. They were revised, re-revised, and they were
‘passed this year. That was action taken on the State level.

On ‘the local level, we have county task forces in six different
counties in Maryland now. They are looking at their particular
problems within their own counties and hopefully making what-
ever changes are necessary to protect the people right in their own
communities. That is where it starts—within the community.

I am hoping that a Presidential commission can be appointed
and the top officials from around the country can get together and
do the same thing and come up with some Federal legislation for
across the country. I think it would be excellent. I really would like
to see that.

Senator Doik. I think that if it is properly structured, it would
be good. Many Presidential commissions expend taxpayers’ dollars
and file their reports, they are filed with all the other reports of
Presidential commissions, and nothing ever happens. It would have
to be structured in such a way that there would be some responsi-
bility to report some findings as well as suggested legislation.
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Ms. Lams. 1 can assure you that the people of MADD will be
monitoring whatever the commission does. If there is nothing that
is new, then the voice of MADD will be heard.

Senator DoLE. Ms. Johnson, is there anything you would like to

add? : :
Ms. JornsoN. Just briefly. The American Council on Alcoholism
asked me to say this if I had a chance. They would suggest to you
the idea of # minimum drinking age throughout the country. They
feel a great deal of damage is done with young people going from
one State to the other and coming back. They think it would be a
great help. I am passing that on to you.

Senator Dore. I think the biggest problem there would be en-
forcement, at any age; that might be helpful.

Mr. PLyMAT. Senator, when Michigan raised the legal drinking
age from 19 back to 21, there was a marked reduction in fatal traf-
fic accidents and offenses among this group. Many States have 21,
and that is where it ought to go, and hopefully it will. They are
sweeping the country now to raise it. That is not going to stop
every kid from drinking, but it is going to help the school officials,
and it is going to dampen down the idea that you can do it.

Young people, when they are learning to drive, are also very sen-
sitive to being influenced by alcohol in their driving conduct.

Senator Dore. Yes; I assume that we will hear statistics from
other witnesses on which age group most offenders fali into and
other data of that nature that will help us make a judgment.

I appreciate your testimony very much, and I again apologize for
keeping the panel waiting. We will make every effort to keep this
moving. I know that the two ladies involved will make every effort
to keep the public focused on the problem.

I would hope that we could encourage this administration in a
nonpartisan way to really look at this problem and find some way
to address it. Our next witness will be Ms. Steed. Maybe she can
give us some indication of what they are doing now.

Ms. LaMs. Thank you very much.

Ms. JounsoN. Thank you.

Mr. Prymat. Thank you.

[The prepared statements of Ms. Johnson and Mr. Plymat and an
?rltlicle] prepared by the American Council of Alcohol Problems

ollow:

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SHIRLEY W. JOHNSON

On a Sunday night two and a half years ago my twenty-five year old son was
killed on his way to work by a drunken driver driving on the wrong side of a divid-
ed highway at high speed. John was a paramedic and had many times expressed his
anger at drunken drivers when he had to care for the dying and the injured.

The woman who killed him had had her Maryland license revoked and was driv-
ing on a North Carolina license. She had had her insurance cancelled due to three
times losing control of her car and hitting objects.

One month before killing my son she totaled a womans parked car and told State
police she was sucking on throat lozenges, so they did nof test her though they as-
sumed her intoxicated. In my son’s death she had a blood alcchol level of 0.26 taken
for medical reasons and therefore inadmissable as evidence. Twice her trial was
postponed, and when finally brought to trial, after plea bargaining, she was fined
and sentenced to one year in jail which was suspended for attending AA three
nights a week; and her license was revoked. This is not satisfactory for a fatality in
my mind. Six months later she was picked up for drunken driving, and her license
was again revoked seven months later. I found this out and asked the judge to check
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it out; her sanctions were imposed for breaking probation but she had the right to
ap(II)e:}nlg;faiting for further information from the District Court in Belair, Maryland.
i e is still pending—2% yrs.) ) ) )
! lﬁéliv?):gnfgs involved.li learned that there is ,nothl{zg unsual about ?hlS cas:}.1 Ig
fact the Maryland State Police said thic woman received a stricter sentence tha
mgg&el that the United States Judicial System is failin_g thg p}lblic. %{yt fanéi.lgr auﬁpti
bringing and my schooling had always taught me to believe in it arad o rusd if ar
now I am disillusioned and so is the public. This applies to not just drunken driving,
i i 1 CLS. . » 3 ) -
bu’f‘}?;i: rllén gil:a Ei)argaining to a lesser charge, inconsistency in sentencing, fproé)}ia
tion, parole, dismissal on technicalities, alllld W'hiis ap});?ﬁrs t_;ot.l;?l overconcern for
igh! he defendant at the expense of t e rights of the victim. )
rlglgt;gcﬁ:ifallir all fatal alcohol related agcxdelzts the de?rg%litahizs?s p%oer ﬁ':g(érg
ded license, suspended sentences, an ar . W ;
Sfa;i‘ilglg{eg'sqcz;xuzailnit is not used or not on the record. The National.Driver Regis-
h St Auete j ing the computer to check
lice told me that many judges do not bother using the co pu
thgo::::logg 1a(rald the police feel discouraged as they arrest drunken drivers only to
i , in a month later. .
pl(ikhgifznll);e% iﬁﬁiﬁtﬁring the court on DWI cases and found 75 per{:intdric;:ll{:iddgxi‘g-
i is i t *. Jdeterrent to dr -
bation, and 20 percent suspended sentences. This is no 0 drunken driv-
i tter how good they are, are useless L .uey are not en .
illi'%{'elx"arvx:is? (l)mrgsv that the%e is a real chance that he’ll bg arrested and convicted,
and taken off the roads until he is judged a responsible dr1'ver. Then maybe we vic-
tims of drunk drivers will not have to live with such tragedies.

'
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PREPARED ‘SJATEMENT OF WIUA&M N. Pymat

The announced purpose of this hearing is to examine the actions of state and
local courts as they respond to our severe drinking-driving problem. If we are to
make real progress, however, we must examine the whole spectrum of the drinking-
driving problem.

We must find out what is happening across the country--what the specific problems
are and how they are now being approached. We must examine all phases of the problem.
This may involve many things not related to the court system directly. And we should
come up with a comprehensive program of action. This will require research, exchanges
of information between states, cities, courts, public officials, legislators, police,
safety organizatijons, schools, and multitudes of ordinary citizens.

The general public needs to be made aware of the nature and extent of the
problem. Citizen involvement in prevention should be invited. Then they will
become volunteers who can aid Taw enforcement officials and courts and back the
acfions of judges who develop the courage to assess adequate penalties and provide
proper restrictions.

Today our judicial system is overburdened and can not handle the volume of
cases that normally arise. We must do things that find the alcoholics and get
them off the roads and into therapy. We must also dea] with the careless social
drinkers who drink and drive with Tittle concern for others.

Police are often reluctant to arrest drinking drivers because they feeil
the courts will not do Justice to the cases. The foundation of this problem is
the fact that in most states we have inadequate laws which are vague and indefinite.
These Taws operate with presumptions instead of a specific standard of law violation.
Tperefore police feel it is futile to arrest those who are drinking and driving.
Often charges are reduced to reckless driving. Often bail is set at a low figure
and the driver is back on the street, quickly drinking and driving again. Unti]
our péople become educated and become active in supporting police and the courts
there will be no really effective judicial action, A

I feel qualified to respond with my testimony today because I have been
involved in the area of alcohol concerns for the past fifty years. 1Ip my high
school” and college days I was a leader in youth education about alcohol. After
entering the practice of law in Des Moines, I worked to improve the laws in my
state which related to the use of alcohol, and also a number of years later when
I became a State Senator. While affiliated with an auto insurance company, I became

interested in the specific problem of alcohol~-related accidents. I conducted
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a national study of the nature and extent of the drinking-driving problem, con- or the penalties will be reached and hopefully they will conclude that the day
sulting traffic officialsand coroners. I became convinced in the early 1940's of reckoning has arrived. _ L. der to make an
that drinking was involved in 50% of all fatal traffic accidents. X ) The average judge need$ a great deal of educat1o? in order to m -
This Ted me to conceive the idea of an auto insurance company to insure = initial decision on the category that each offender fits as he comes be .
exclusively persons who did not use alcohol. This company, the Preferred Risk Mutual ! _ However, judges, even.if well educated, can not always be expected to do a
Insurance Company of Des Moines, started with a very modest capital in 1947. Today - ? . really efficient job of this task. This is where specialists are needed.
it is one of the largest and most successful companies in the country. Its ; A PROGRAM DEALING WITH ALCOHOLICS AND PROBLEM DRINKERS
1980 asset total was over $160,000,000; its premium collection over $119,000,000; ; In Polk County, Iowa (Des Moines) an innovative program is in operation. If !
its policies in force over 400,000; it's current surplus (net worth) is over ; an cffender has ne felony record and is not otherwise barred, he or she is turned ’
$67,000,000. It is a mutual company owned by its policyholders; it has 2500 agents, g e over to an assessment center for evaluation. This evaluation takes over two
is Tlicensed in 48 states and has 37 branch offices. Best's Insurance Reports gives § f/ hours. It uses testing, a mental examination, contacts with others, use of a
the company an A+ rating and says that its rate structure averages 15% to 20% E ;C »+ check 1ist of factors that indicate addiction, etc. If this study indicates that
below the so-called "Manual” which are the rates charged by the "Bureay" g P the offender is truly an alcoholic or severe problem drinker, lacking in adequate
companies, which comprise 60% of the companies writing casualty insurance. The ; : mental control over his or her conduct, the person is referred to a therapy facility
record of this company provides some evidence of what might be hoped for if we were é ’ for a long term program which hopefully will result in the solution of the problem.
able to substantially reduce the excessive -costs of drinking-driving accidents ; In the past fiscal year, ending June 30, 1981, the total arrests in Polk County
across our country. The losses as a result of a drinking-driving accident are i . were 1963 and 968 persons were referred to this agency for assessment. In the
sometimes astronomical in dollar costs. ? %7 case of the 968, around 90% were referred to a therapy facility, and the remainder
I have served Préferred Risk for many years as President and then Board - were returned to the Country Attorney for immediate prosecution. Those who were
Chairman and am now Chairman of the Board Emeritus. For many years I served as i | turned over to the therapy groups were given deferred prosecution, which will
legal counsel for the American Council on Alcohol Problems. Since my retirement f’ e continue for one year, provided there is no recurrence of a drinking-driving charge.
from active duty at Preferved Risk, I have served the organization as Executive g At the end of the year, if the therapy appears to have resulted in success, and they
Director. This organization has operated in the field for over 75 years and has % do 40 hours of public service work, the charge is dropped. :
some thirty state groups affiliated with it and some 2000 individual associate g, o At this time it is 1mposs1b1e to know if this program is effective in handling @
members. It issues a quarterly publication, The American Issue, and its main office ; : the problem of repeat offenses. One may question how many of this group do find ?
is at 6955 University Avenue in Des Moines, Iowa. ’ é and maintain sobriety, i.e., continuing total abstinence (the on]y_real answer to f
........ f ?4 these problems), but it is possible that if some of these people do continue to é
COURTS NEED TO ‘DEAL DIFFERENTLY WITH TWO CLASSES OF DRINKING DRIVERS. ; %ﬁ drink, they may conclude that they will not drink and drive under any circumstance: ;
There are two kinds of drinking drivers. One consists of alcoholics or severe “ i; d A study will be made to determine the Tong term effectiveness of this program. This g
problem drinkers who should be viewed as addicts to the drug alcohol and who do if deferred prosecution response is based upon the claiméd prosecutor's discretion §
not have adequate control of their actions in drinking. The other group consists 51 o right. These pecple are considered to be entitled to this type of handiing on the §
of persons who drink excessively in bars and in socfal groups without real concern” « }. ‘ ‘}'t ’ basis of the belief that the individuals are sick and unable to control their conduct §
for the dangers they create. Hopefully their minds can be reached and actions ' f: T;; at the time of the offense and this fact Justifies the different treatment from ;
can be controlled if they are dealt with quickIy by immediate prosecutions aﬁd L; o those who may be considered purely volitional v101at0rs. This innovative program %
penalties. Prompt and positive actions by courts will reach the press and the ; was instituted by Polk County Attorney Dan Johnston and John Tapscott, who s head % i
minds of thousands who are drinking and driving without regard to the dangers i g; ‘ of the Des Moines Chapter of the Nationa] Council on AIcoho]ism. Mr. Tapscott.; sg -
' %l : with the aid of state and county MOney, set up the assessment center, 2

*q




32

IMPORTANT ACTIONS NEEDED FOR RECKLESS SOCIAL DRINKERS

Records indicate that many offenders are persons in their teens and twenties.
Most often these persons are not alcoholics or severe problem drinkers. Also,
many others do not classify as alcoholics. The courts should view these people

as purely volitional law violators. They should be handied firmly by the courts with

adequate fines, etc. 1In one recent case a young teenage driver (the press reported
as intoxicated on alcohol and drugs) ran into two girls on bicycles and killed one
and injured the other. The bail set by the court was only $300. In another recent
case in Iowa a 19~year-old drivgr who had been convicted of speeding seven times
in 1981 was driving between 75 and 100 miles an hour at 2:35 A.M. While traveling
in the wrong lane of an intérstate four-lane road, he ran into another car, killing
the other driver and severely injuring the driver's wife. The police had been
Tooking for this youth for many months to serve a suspension of driver's license.
He is chargod with mansiaughter and drunk driving. He was released from jail the
same day upon posting a Bond of $5500.00.

Skould our law and court administration be such as to permit such a driver
to be free to drive again immediately, as he might do,keven withéut a legal Ticense?

‘What should penalties be in the case of this offense? Should deferred sentences

be permitted under the law? If so, on what terms? In such cases should there be
suspension of licenses to drive for some period of time? Some states require a two-
day mandatory jail term for convicted drivers? Is this a wise penalty? I will
consider this a bit Tater.

THE IMPORTANCE OF A "PER SE" LAW IN ADMINISTRATION

We need the passage of "per se" laws by all states which have not already
passed such laws. Such a law simply says that operating a motor vehicle with
an alcohol level above a specified percentage in the blood (.10% in the usuaT
case) is an offense “per se" (in itself). A penalty is then éffixed for the
offense. 1 believe ten states have such Taws. They constitute an imp&rtant and
necessary .improvement over the usual laws which simply outlaw *driving while intox-
jcated" or "driving under the influence." These usual laws have defined this state
in terms of a percentage of blood alcohol and then said that if an alcohol reading
is that percentage or above, the driver is “presumed" guilty of the offense. Unfor-

tunately, those presumptions are often quite effectively overcome by testimony

of the defendant and his friends. Under a “per‘se" Taw a specific and effective
"speed Timit" is put on drinking and driving. »
Under the presumption laws the judgas submits thé chemical test (blood or:

breath) of the defendant for the jury's consideration in connection with the testi-
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mony of the defendant and friends. Under the “per se" law the judge simply iqstruets
the jury to determine if the test of blood or breath has been properly given.
If that is found and the test given has revealed (the usual) .10%,»the judge says
the jury shall find the defendant guilfy of an offense.

In the early days of our country the offense of speeding was simply defined
as "unreasonable speed." Ve got nowhere in controlling speed under such a vague
standard. In a similar way we have not made progress under our presumption laws in
controlling drinking driving. We need the specific limit, as we have in the case of
speed. ¥

When we have a "per se" law we can expect a new attitude on the part of potlice.
When an officer finds a reading of .10% or above he can tell the driver this is an
offense. The offender may decide he has no real option but to plead guilty. Today
when police radar says a person has been exceeding the speed limit, there is not
much he can do bit plead guilty. That has caused most drivers to decide they

must obey the law. When "per se" laws are adopted and the public is adequately

educated, with the help of the media, there is reason to believe drivers will
decide they can no longer get away with drinking and driving if caught. Courts
will find their case Toads dropping to reasonable levels. There will be very few
Jjury trials on the queé%ivﬁ of "driving while intoxicated." Such a case may still
occur, however, Qhere for one reason br another no chemical test reading has been
obtained. ) | ' '

It is believed that with "per se" laws, police will be inspired to intensify
their efforts to apprehend those who are drinking and driving. And with the pubiic
demanding such action, we will begin to reduce the problem. I am informed that the

following states now have "per se" laws: Vermont, New York, Delaware, North Carolina,

Florida, w1scohsin, Minnesota, Missouri, South Dakota, Nebraska, Utah, Oregon, Maine,

California and Iowa.'

There is ample justification for “per se" laws based on blood alcohol Tevels
of .10% or lower. Researchers have known for years that even a small amount of
alcohol in the blood impairs driving ability. In 1951 the Reader's Digeét reported
on a well-known Swedish study of expert drivers which revealed that even a slight
amount of alcohol "caused a deierioration’of between 25 and 30 percent in driving
performance." This and many other tests have revealed the somewhat surprising
conclusion that impairment is significant after as little as two beers or two mixed
drinks, at a blood-alcohol Tevél of .05%. Various eéxperts have concluded fhat when
a blood alcohol level of .10% is reached, a person is physically unfit to drive a car,

Dufing my term in the Iowa Senate (1972-1976) T was unable to convince the
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Senate that lowa should pass a "per se" law; but in 1981 the Iowa Legislature did

pass such a law with the level of .13%, which I belijeve is too high.

SHOULD MANDATORY TWO-DAY JAIL SENTENCES BE REQUIRED?

While I was unable to secure a "per se" law, as a result of my efforts in the
Senate, the Iowa Legislature finally passed a requirement of a two-day jail sentence
for convicted drinking-driving offenders. At that time I sincerely believed this -
was wise and would have deterrent value on the drinking-driving public. For
those who went through the traumatic experience it would be a powerful message
not to repeat the performance.

I came to this belief upon learning about experience in the courts of Chicago.
In 1970 a study was conducted there under the supervision of Dr. Edward J. Kelleher,
Director of the Circuit Court Psychiatric Institute. The study was of 400 Qrivers
who had been arrested for driving while intoxicated--250 of which were convicted,
100 found not guilty and 50 of whom were defendants from suburban courts. It
revealed that only 20% were alcoholics and 80% were occasional or social drinkers.
This Ted Judge Raymond K. Berg to say that there existed a prevalent and deplorable
attitude among the driving public that DWI laws were made for chronic alcoholics
and not for the occasional or social drinker. He said he thought the pccasional
drinker would think, "That manvthey're talking about is a drunk, an alcoholic,
not me." This attitude, Judge Berg coacluded, increased the possibility that the
social drinker would overdrink and drive.

- It is well-known that during the Christmas and New Year season there are

higher levels of drinking and resulting drinking-driving. In December, 1976,
under the 1ea8ership of ﬁudge Berg, then supervising judge of the Traffic Court
in the Circuit Court of Cook County, I]]inois,'an announpement was made by the judges
of that court that anyone convicted of driving while under the influence after
December 17th that year would be senteﬁced to a minimum of seven days in jail
coupled with a one-year's driver license revocation. This was widely publicized
by the media in Chicagq and known throughout the area. In fact, when I rode a
plane to Chicago during that period I was warned by'a passenger sitting next to me
to avoid all drinking-drivjng in‘Chicago. ,

Fatalities during_the period Dec. 18 through Jan. 3 tota]ed 8 compared with 4
22 for thevsahe périod in 1959; 23 in 1968; and 25 in 1967. During'that period
also there were 994 personal 1njury accidents, a substantial drop from the totals
of 2003, 2028 and 2156 in the three previous years. This program was continued
during the first quarter of 1971, The fatalities for the first quarter of 1971

represented a 32% decrease from the first quarter of 1970; a 42% decrease from
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the first quarter of 1969; and a 41% decredse from the first quarter of 1968.

The March 31, 1971 report of the I11inois State Police covering traffic fatalities
throughout the state indicated that they were up throughout the state with the
exception of Chicago, Also, personal injury and property damage accidents
dropped during the first quarter of 1971 over 1970. Personal injuries dropped
from 9491 to 8341 and property damage accidents dropped from 36,116 to 32,891,

A year later there was a report of study by three researchers which claimed
that the Chicago "crackdown" produced no reduction in the city's number of car-crash
fatalities or arrests. I read the report and was not impressed by what seemed to
me to be efforts to explain away the figures by suggesting other possible factors,
and a claim that Milwaukee had had similar reductions without a “crackdown", It
is quite possible that the "fear" of arrest on drinking and driving developed in
Chicago may have carried over -into nearby Milwaukee and caused the comparable
reduction without an actual “"crackdown."

I hear comments that some experts in the field of traffic safety are opposed
to the mandatory short jail sentence. They say it would fi11 the jails beyond
capacity. But an Iowa state safety official who supports mandatory jail terms
says that during the week most county jails are only 20% filled, There is some
fear that a jail sentence provision would cause some peopie to believe this is
all that needs to be done. Many times the jail sentence is avoided by Yudges who
permit persons to "plea bargain" down to reckless driving. The severity of
penality is less important than the feeling that one will be caught and suffer
almost certain conviction and penalty. ‘

New York this year passed a law mandating jail sentences of.7 to 180 days and
fines of $200 to $500 for those convicted of drunken driving after their licenses
were suspended or revoked for an alcohol-related driving offense.

Maine has just passed new laws on drinking driQing. In the case of repeat
offu.ders and speeders charged with criminal violations and convicted,  judges
are required to jmpose a minimum $350 fine and at least a two-day jaii.term.
Governor Joseph Brennan recently said: "I never believed in-mandatory. jail
sentence before, but we felt that nothing else had worked."

Whether the fear of a jail term provides good deterrence can probably only
be ascertained'by further research--interviews with those who have received this
punishment and study of records to determine whether those so punished repeét_
their offenses as frequently as those who have not been jailed,

When I was in the Iowa Senate and we were considering_decrimiha]izing intoxica~

tion, a lawyer who was a recovered alcoholic called me.and urged me not to vote
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for that. He said he had had a severe drinking problem but had been refusing to
admit that he was an alcoholic. Then one night he was picked up and taken to jail.
He said: "When that jail door swung closed on me and I found myself locked up for
the night 1ike a caged animal, it hit me 1ike a ton of brick. The next morning
when I got out I made a decision that this was the end of my drinking days. I
went for therapy and have been 100% sober since." This caused me to decide that

the two-day jail sentence was at least worth a real try in my state.

MONITORING COURT ACTIONS

Practices of deferred sentences, deferred prosecutions and plea bargaining
have had an adverse effect in éausing many persons who drink and drive to feel that
even if they are caught, the penalty will not be severe, The Iowa Legislature
has passed a law requiring a period of suspension of driver's license if a
deferred sentence is granted., There are serious questions on the granting of Tow
bail and paroles for persons who have been arrested for drinking driving offenses.
Sometimes very modest amounts are set, even where there is a death or severe injuiy
in an accident. Citizen groups need to monitor what is going on in the courts
and perhaps see that there is adequate publicity on outcomes, which in turn may
result jn improved actions in our court system. The suspension of drivers' licenses
is important because, as it has beeﬂ said: "Many a man will not stop drinking and
driving to protect himself or others from injury or loss of Tife, but he will
do so to protect his driver's Ticense.”

I¥ the courts Tearn that their actions are being monitored by persons who
are in the court when cases are heard and by those who may check and Fabu]ate
résults, it will create strong pressure on judges to resist the often ski]?fu]
work of defense lawyers who are able to get people quickly released on modest
bail, pled down to lesser charges, and in other ways dealt with leniently.

MONEY FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS

! 1t is widely believed that the police do not have sufficient funds to

properly seek out and arrest drunk drivers, even where federally funded alcohol

action safety projects have been in operation. I hear that many of theﬁe federélly
funded programs are being eliminated because of the reduction in federal expenditures.
Money is needed to provide adequate numbers of police, court efficials and othetrs

in an effective program seeking out and arresting violators.. It is believed that
even where drivers' licenses are suspended, Tlarge numbers of drivers continue to
drive without a license. We need officers to-monitor such persons by frequently
watching them when they depart from their residences or business places.: Severe

penalties should be imposed upon the offense of driving without a license,

-
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Efforts have been made in Minnesota to pass a law to asses< a 5¢ tax on
Tiquor-by-the-drink sales. The amount of money that such a tax would raise is
very large indeed. It would fund good action programs as well as needed funds
for alcoholic reh@bilitation programs. So far the legislature there has refused to
bring such a bil] up for serious consideration.

A good so]ut1on would be to raise the federal tax on beer, wine and whiskey.

There have been proposals in recent days to raise such taxes and taxes on

tobacco by 100%, which might come close to meeting the federal deficit. 1t
appears no s;ch sizeable taxes will be seriously coﬁsidered with the 1982 elections
looming. But a modest tax increase might well be adopted to meet money needs in

dea11ng with the drinking driving problem,

MONITORING OF BARS

When Prohibition ended,Amany states set up state-owned Tiquor stores. It was
claimed that the oid saloon would not come back. The contention was that those
wanting to drink should buy their bottles and take them home. Yet in due course
Tiquor by the drink came'back. Most of today’s bars run into the wee hburs, some-
times to 4 and even 5 AM. I betieve it is all night in Nevada.

My study in Iowa covering. the years 1970, 1971 and 1972 showed that the period
from 9 P.M. to 3 A.M. of each day of the week accounted for 351 out of 665 fatal
alcohol-related accidents, or 52.8%. These periods starting at 9 P.M. on Friday and
Saturday n1ghts accounted for 196 out of the 665 total or 29.5%. A similar study I
did of the years 1976, 1977, 1978, and 1979 showed that these hours accounted for

514 such accidents, or 56.9% of the total, and the Friday and Saturday night periods

accounted for 289, or 32% of the total. ,

When 1iquor-by-the-drink became legal in most states it was argued that a
man should be able to have a drink with his dinner. But bars do not close at the
end of a normal dinner period, but run hours afterward.

It would be wise to require that any bar legally operating after 9 P.M.
shouldtbe required at itsAcost to have an officer in attendance to observe patrons

leaving the bar. The officer could jnvite patrons to test themselves with a

. convenient breath- -testing device. If one suspected of being impaired Were to

refuse, the officer could say that he or she would be followed. If the dr1ver s

conduct.seemed impaired, then the person wou]d be stopped and requlred to submit

to a test on pain of losing a license in states which have the 1mp11°d consent laws.
Since the passage of the new tough Maine laws on dr1nk1ng and dr1v1ng. one

popular night spot in Bangor added to their estab]ishment 2 pocket-size gadget

which would test the blood alcohol level. A green light indicates the‘driver‘
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can drive safely and an amber light indicates that someone who is sober should

take the person home .

If lawmakers are unwilling to reguire bars to pay for sucn monitoring, it

could be done with public funds, and then on a spot check basis, if funds were

not ample to serve all bars in an area.

CLOSING BARS AT AN EARLIER HOUR

If bars were required by law to close at 9 or 10 P.M., I believe there would
be 1 great reduction in our alcohol-related accident toll. Some'claim this would
merely shift the problem from the late night hours of closing to the hour after
an eariier closing. This might be true to some degree. But when bars run into the
wee hours, people who might have to go home earlier before they became impaired

sit and drink on and on, often losing track of the number of drinks ticy have had.

They wind up a real menace on the road. Perhaps it seems unrealistic to expect

that state Taws could be passed to do this in the immediate future, but undoubtediy
many city and county ordinances could be passed in areas where public concern

proves adequate.
MEDIA SHOULD RESPOND TO THE PROBLEM

1t is believed that the media has not given proper attention to the problem,
There should be special efforts to get the media to carry the message to the
public about the fact that in the case of arrest there will be adequate investiga-
tions, license suspensions, adequate bail, and that citizen groups will monitor

court actions. This would have deterrent value. The recommendation for people

.to avoid driving on streets and higpways after 9 P.M, to the maximum extent

possible would eliminate many targets for drinking drivers. There is a real

challenge for the media in educating the public.

NEEDED WARNINGS ON DANGERS OF MODERATE DRINKING AND DRIVING

-

Most Americans drive with 1ittle knowledge of the dangers irvolved in even
moderate drinking. They need to be informed that the National Safety Council has
recommended‘that everyone should wait one hour after every drink before driving.
The alcoholic beverage trade has campaigned with the statement that everyone
should "know your 1imits." "This implies that there is a safe level of alcohol
as fa; as driving is concerned. The focus should be on the avoidance of all
drinkfng and'driving. Attention should be giveﬁ to the fact that "HALF DRUNK
DRIVERS ARE DANGEROUS, T00." This is the title of a very popular and effective
educational ieéflet.which has been widely distributed by the P.aferred Risk
Mutual Insurance Company and the Amébfcan Council on Alcohol Problems. My son,

William N. Plymat, Jr., was the author of this leaflet.
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The following pages 42-45 contain material
act of 1976

HALF DRUNK DRIVERS ARE DANGEROUS TOO! ,American Council of Alcohol Problems
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The following pages (46-47) contain ma
Act of 1976 (17 U.S.C.): ALCOHOL FACT
American Council on Alcochol Problems,

terial protected by the copyright
S, 5 WAYS DRINKING CAN HURT YOUu,
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A NEW NATIONAL ETHIC NEEDS DEVELOPMENT -

This same idea is now being presented in the State of Wisconsin. Dr. Ralph F.Hudson

of Eau Claire, Wisconsin, has challenged his fellow doctors in a three county
medical society to adopt a resolution that all drivers be required to follow

the requirements imposed on public vehicle drivers and operators who must have

zero- % level of alcohol in the bloocd. Railvoad engineers; bus. drivers, airplane

pilots and ambulance drivers and others are required to, be total abstainers while
driving. As a result their safety records are outstanding. This doctor, who has
seeh the sad results of many alcohol-related accidents, ask why all drivers should
not be required to refrain from all use of alcohol. He is asking his state
medical society to urge that pelicy as a matter of law. Following his leadership,
a high school Teader in his town and his principal have just dispatched a letter
to all high schools in Wisconsin, calling atteation to the fact that one of their
student leaders was killed by a drunk driver, and asking that the above-mentioned
policy of no alcohol for drivers be made a matter .of law in Wisconsin. Hopefully
the day will arrive when this would become a national policy. Similar citizen
action throughout the country may hasten that day, In the meantime, even

without such a law, good citizens should be stimulated to indicate their

intentions to refrain from driving after drinking.

NEED_FOR EDUCATION

As we said at the beginn1ng, there is a need to face the ent1re alcohol
prob]em if we are go1ng to solve the dr1nk1ng’dr1v1ng;prob]em, and this calls
for much education of the public, especially youth and newly licensed drivers.
The American Council on Alcohol Prpb]ems last ye#r brought forth a leaflet titled,
WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW ABOUT ALCOHOL FOR YOUR HEALTH AND SAFETY. This covered
the subject ofldrinking and driving, as well as other shbjects end presented
a proposed warning for a]coholfc beverage bottles. We printed 600,000 copies of
this lecaflet for w%despread’distribution. we managed to persuade state-owned
Tiquor stores .to distribute these to their customers. Now we have brought forth
a new leaflet considered to be of special value in}edueatjng youth. 1t is titled,
ALCOHOL FACTS--5 WAYS DRINKING CAN HURT YOU. It also deals with drihking ahd
driving. dver 200,000 of these will be printed and made available very shortly.

f NEED FOR LABEL WARNINGS

Th1s need 15 now being vecognized. S, 1543 which would requ1re warn1ngs

on labels of llquor bottles 1s a b111 which shou]d pass. Purchasevs of bott]ed

~hquor should be’ confronted w1th the 1nformat1on such warn1ngs wou]d contain.

and constant]y reminded of the dangers involved. A section of such a warning
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refers to the danger of drinking and driving. S. 1543 is being co-sponsored by
12 U. S. Senators. There is a companion bill in the House sponsored by Rep.
Geo. E. Brown,Jdr. and co-sponsored by 17 other Representatives. Senator Jepsen
proposes to amend S; 1543 to include warnings on beer and wine bottles also.

ALCOHOL_ADYERTISING

It is reported that about $500 million a year is expended by the alcoholic
beverage industries in promoting consumption of their products. Much of this
is glamorous in nature and directed at youth, women and minority groups, It
would be very desirable if such a velume of advertising could be reduced. Even
where it is permitted, so-called “1ifestyle" ads should be avoided. If the
industry wishes to prove ‘its sincerity in preventing alcohol problems asd .
accidents, without the requirements of legislation, it could avoid such advertising.

The passage of the bill, H. R, 1800, by Rep. Geo. E. Brown, Jr. {D., cA) to_
make expenditures for alcoholic beverage advertising a non-deductibie business
expense in computing net income for tax purposes would be of value, and also
increase tax revenues into the U, S, Treasury., It couid, in itself, provide the

extra funds needed for the actions specified above.

CURRENT EFFORT TO OBTAIN A NATIONAL COMMISSION

The current Congressional effort to secure a National Commission to be appoint-
ed by the President on the drinking driver problem follows the effort which began
with the American Council on Alcohol Problems to obtain such a Commission. In
August I was contacted by Sandy Golden, of Gaithersburg, Maryland, an investigative
reporter, who told mé of his effort§'spanning 15 months to secure such a Commission.
I invited him to speak at the Annual Board Meeting.of our Council in Minneapolis
on September 17th. Heksuggested a letter to President Reagan and presented a pro-
posed text. The Board responded immediately and 45 persons present at that
meeting, representing some 30 organizations, joined in signing it. This was sent
to the President and we are hopefully awaiting a reply.

This Ted, in turn, to a Congressional press conference on October Gthg“ The
conference was hosted by Repreéentatives Michael D. Barnes, James V. Hansen and
Glenn Anderson, and resulted in many newspaper articles across the country and
including the Washingfon Post. Mr. Golden was involved in helping preparations,
testifying at the héaring and exhibiting a film which showed the problem and the
needs. At this conference, the Representatives mantioned announced they were

sending a “Dear Colleague" Tetter to all members of the House and Senate, asking

them to join with them in signing a Tetter tg President Reagan, which was
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essentially. the same in text as our Tetter. Already, at the time of preparing
this statement, 30 Senators and 143 Representatives have duthorized their names
to be attached to the Jetter going to the President.

Sandy Golden left private investigative work to dedicate himself to this

mission of research, public speaking on the issue, working with goverriment agencies,

and organizing public education and activities in this field. He ‘has worked
independently without compensation during this period and deserves much credit.
It shows what can be accomplished by one person when a serious human problem is

recognized and needs attention.

WHAT CAN A FEDERAL COMMISSION DO?

As this statement inditates, there are many important aspects to be cong}Eered
in responding totally to the seriousness of the drinking driving probiem. I have
outlined a number of them. This leads to thg realization of the reascn why a
National Cdmmission on this preblem would be helpful--even necessary, It could
produce a master plan to cope with this prob]em. It could provide leadership and
coordination for the task. It could devé]op public dwareness and inspire
individuals, communities and states to volunteer their vigilance and support.
Further, it could:

1. Make investigations and réceive repdrts of cbhditions %n\the various
staies; study trends in the problem and actions quen which have worked and could
be followed in other states; study lqws in various states and suggést changes;
seek uniformity of laws across the country. ‘ '

2. Encourage formation of‘state and local task forces to take needed agtion.
Efforts of citizen task forces in Maryland and Célifornia have a]réady accomplisheq
much with new Taws being passed, law enforcement enhanced and citizen involvemen:
accomp]ished.

3. Seek collaboration with enforceMent,authorities, courts, meéia,
rehabilitation agencies, public offi&ia]s, schools and citizen groups.

4. Develop changes in public attitudes on drinking and driving to prevent

accidents.

A National Commission on the drinking driving problem would implement many
of the ideas and suggestions Contained in this statement, and in the end result
in a substantial reduction of the annual dezth to11 from this problem. It would
result in the reduction also of many other costs which are now borne by the
taxpayers of this country. I am hopeful there wili be imediate forward moticn

in this direction.
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The human brain has often been
g compared to a computer. Like a com-
® puter, the brain handles incoming
data, then draws conclusions and
makes decisions. However, unlike the
computer, the brain takes a longer
time to solve some problems and fre-
& quently makes mistakes. Unfortun-
§ ately, some mistakes are fatal, es-
{ pecially those made behind the wheel
of a car.

Approximately 50,000 pecople lose
their lives every year in traffic acci-
dents, and about half of all traffic
¥ deaths result from accidents involving
j drinking drivers—drivers whose brains
are “impaired” as a result of consum-
ing alcohol.

In most states a blood-alcohol con-
§ centration of one-tenth of one percent
(0.10%) is considered evidence of
drunk driving. The blood-alcohol con-
§ centration (or “b.a.c.”) is usually de-
termined by the arresting officer who
requires the suspected drinking driver
to exhale into a breath analyzer; later
| a blood test may be taken to confirm
how much alechol was present in the
driver’s body.

The figure of 0.10% should be
kept in mind as the legal measure of
“drunk driving”. (The average person
would have to drink 4 beers or mixed
drinks in one hour, or 5 in two hours,
or 6 in three hours to reach this blood-
alcohol concentration since the body
buras up alcohol at the rate of about
one beer or mixed drink or glass of
wine per hour) The blood-alcoho!
concentration is important to under-
standing how alcohol affects driving
performance,

ARE DANGEROUS TOO!

How Do We Know?

There arc two methods by which
researchers study the effects of alcohol
as it relates to highway accidents. One
is to give experienced drivers measured
amounts of alcohol, then observe their
actual driving performance in specially
designed road tests, Another method
is to test the effects of alcohol on
various components of driving skill
while the subject is scated in a labo-
ratory.

In the 1950's a number of research-
crs conducted driving performance
tests obtaining very similar results, One
such test ‘vas designed by Dr. Leonard
Goldberg of Sweden’s Caroline Insti-
tute. He chose 37 cxpert drivers, most
of whom were driving instructors, and
gave them enough to drink to produce
blood-alcohol concentrations of .05%.
The drivers performed a number of
tests on a closed course, and their ini-
tial sober scores were compared with
their performance after drinking. Al-
so, part of the group did not consume
any alcohol, scrving as a ‘“control
group”. As rcported in a Reader’s
Digest article published in 1951:

*The drivers in the drinking group
took longer to make their second run
than their first, although they now had
the advantage of familiarity with the
tests and the feel of the car. In con-
trast, Dr. Goldberg's control group-—
the drivers who did not drink between
first and second runs—shortened their
driving time by almost 20 percent. Dr.
Goldberg concluded that even a slight
amount of alcohol ‘caused a deteriora-
tion of between 25 and 30 purcent in
driving performance of expert drivers.
And on the three tests most closely
corresponding to actual driving, ability
was impaired on the average by 41.8
percent.”

The most noteworthy resuit of this,
and many similar tests, is not that al-
cohol impairs driving ability, which is
a well known fact, but rather the some-
what surprising conclusion that inipair-
ment is significant after as little as two
beers or two mixed drinks, at a blood-
alcohol level of .05%.

How Does Alcohol Affect
Driving Performance?

Road tests can show that alcohol
does impair driving performance. But
they do not explain how alcohol pro-
duces jts detrimental effect. Labora-
tory tests, however, have provided
that information, and impairment of
various driving skills under the influ-
ence of alcohol has been precisely
measured.

The 1974 report, “Alcohol, Drugs
and Driving”, prepared for the U.S.
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Department of Transportation, states:

“Alcohol affects driving because
driving demands division of attention
between a visual search-and-recogni-
tion task and a tracking task. This
conclusion is supported by evidence
that alcohol impairs the rate of pro-
cessing information, an important in-
gredient in rapid time-sharing of atten-
tion between several inputs.

The phrase “visual search-and-rec-
ognition task” simply means that driv-
ing requires continual observation of
other vehicles, potential obstacles, stop
lights and signs and road conditions.
Looking through the windshield is not
cnough, the driver must also rely on
the rear-view mirror and an occasional
turn of the head to check the blind
spot when changing lanes. All these
visual procedures constitute a “scarch-
and-recognition task”.

The term “tracking task” simply
means “using the steering wheel”,
What the eye sees through the wind-
shield must be translated by the brain
into corrective movements of the
wheel to keep the vehicle in the proper
lanc of traffic, and to accurately nego-
tiale turns at intersections,

“Time-sharing” can be translated as
“doing scveral things at once”. Driv-
ing is a time-sharing activity, requir-
ing the brain to divide its attention be-
tween  “search-and-recognition” and
“tracking”. Different bits of incoming
information must be analyzed in com-
puter-like fashion, then different kinds
of decisions must be made. With these
definitions in mind. consider what the
scientists have learned.

What The Tests Show

When a person visils an optome-
trist for an cye examination, they are
asked to read letters from a chart on
the wall. The ability to sec the letters
clearly is referred to as “static visual
acuity”, Static visual acuity is not
greatly affected by alcohol, so that the
ability of the cye to resolve images
clearly is not impaired if the visual
target is standing still.

The ability to clearly sce objects in
motion is called “dynamic visual acu-
ity”. This visual ability is very im-
portant for driving, and it is impaired
at blood levels as low as .02% in
some subjects. So, at one-fifth the
blood-alcoho! level necded for a drunk
driving conviction, after as little as one
drink, a driver’s ability to sce and dis-
tinguish moving objects will be im-
paired,

in bascball, the batter must follow
the flight of the ball after 1t leaves the
pitcher’s hand. That is an cxample of
“motoric coordination of binocular
molility”, and it is impaircd by alcohol

at blood-levels as low as .03%.

“Dark adaptation” rclates to the
ability to see clearly at low light levels
such as occur when driving at night.
The ability to detect low contrast, low
illumination targets is usually impaired
at blood-aicohol levels of .08% or
higher.

“Peripheral vision” refers to what
is ccmmonly known as “sceing out of
the corner of the eye”. When the ef-
fects of alcohol on peripheral vision
were first tested, no impairment was
found. However, one team of research-
crs tested . . . the signal detectability
of intermittently presented lights over
an extensive rauge of the ., . visual
field . . . (while) the central visual field
was occupied with a simple tracking
task.” Under these conditions peri-
pheral vision was impuaired by 10%
at a blood-alcoho! level of .05%, and
by 28% at a level of .10%. The re-
scarchers concluded that the effect of
alcohol on peripheral vision is a func-
tion of the information load on central
vision,

What This Means

To sum uvp the effects of alcohol on
“scarch-and-recognition tasks”, con-
sider the following example. A driver
is approaching an intcrsection which
is controlled by a traffic light. It is
night, and the intersection is dimly -
luminated. Also, this hypothetical
driver has had two beers in the pre-
ceding hour and has a blood-alcohol
level of about .05%. As the driver ap-
proaches the intersection the signal is
green, but another car enters the in-
tersection from the other street, run-
ning the red light. Will an accident
occur? The driver with the green light
has been drinking. His ability to see
the other car approaching is impaired
because he is concentrating on steer-
ing his own car. The ability of his
cyes to follow the other car is im-
paired, as is the ability to see it clearly.
The question of whether an accident
will occur depends on many  other
factors. How quickly will the driver
react after seeing the other car? How
quickly can his foot reach the brake
pedal? Merely from the standpoint of
“'search-and-recognition”, the impaired
driver is faced with a much greater
likelihood of an accident than if he
were stone-cold sober; however, “track-
ing” and “time-sharing” will also de-
termine the outcome of this situation.

Complications

“Tracking”, as we have defined it,
means the ability to steer a car accu-
rately. Eye-hand coordination 1s the pn-
mary ingredient. Tracking cxperi-
ments conducted in Taboratory settings




have shown that alcohol does not pro-

ducc any substantial decline in per-

formance when attention can be de-

voted solely to the tracking task, at

least not at low to moderate blood-

alcohol levels. However, when “time- -
sharing” is introduced into the ex-

periment, such as when tracking is

combined with a search-and-recogni-

tion task, performance will decline

substantially at blood levels below
05%.

It appears that the “time-sharing”
requirement is the most important
factor in predicting the outcome of
drinking-driver situations. Just as peri-
pheral vision was found to be impaired
when a central-vision task was, taking
place, tracking performance will also
deteriorate under the influence of a
“time-sharing” requirement, The more
complex the driving situation, the
more visual inputs that must be moni-
tored, the greafer the degree of impair-
ment that wiil result from a given
blood-alcohol level.

“Time-sharing” then, is the critical
factor. While search-and-recognition
and tracking have been shown to be
somewhat resistant to the effects of
alcohol when studied individually, the
time-sharing function is highly suscep-
tible to even small doses of alcohol.
One research team found measurable
impairment at blood-alcohol levels as
low as .015%, equivalent to less than
one beer or mixed drink.

The portion of the brain that con-
trols time-sharing activities is called
the “reticular activating system” (RAS).
When attention is divided under the
influence of alcohol, the RAS works
more slowly and with less accuracy.
Alcoltol may not greatly inhibit a par-
ticular system within the brain, such
as motor coordination necessary for
tracking, however, when systems are
called upon to work together, alcohol
has a profound influence on fhe ability
of the brain fo rapidly process infor-
mation and make accurate decisions.
Since a vehicle traveling 55 miles per
hour covers more than 80 feet every
second, time is a critical factor in
highway safety, and alcohol reduces
the time-efficiency of the brain.

Consider once again the hypothet-
ical situation in which an alcohol-im-
paired driver approaches an intersec-
tion, only to encounter another vehicle
which has run a red light. The likeli-
hood of an accident depends upon
rapid visual recognition of the danger,
and rapid processing of information
to arrive at a successful defensive ac-
tion, such as steering to avoid colli-
sion or stepping on the brake. The key
ingredient in this situation is “reaction
time”?, defined as the time taken to
initiate response.
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In the laboratory, reaction time ap-
pears not to be greatly affected by
small and moderate doses of alcohol,
so that, in a simple reaction time ex-
periment, the subject will not take any
longer to press a button when a light
flashes. However, as we have seen,
individual functions tested separately
often do not show much alcohol im-
pairment, while functions combined
into a complex task are highly sus-
ceptible to alcohol's effect.

Road tests designed to measure re-
action time have yielded contradictory
information. Onc test reported no in-
crease in time taken to initiate a lane-
change mancuver when a light flashed,
however, drivers with alcohol in their
blood streams made more tracking
crrors while executing thc maneuver.
Another test found a 35% increase in
braking distance when drivers reached
blood-alcohol levels of .10%.

So the question of alcohol’s impair-
ment of the reaction-time function has
not been answered conclusively. Yet
it scems rcasonable to conclude that
since defensive reaction to a crisis sit-
uation depends upon time-sharing be-
tween visual and motor functions, re-
action time must be impaired by alco-
hol in practical applications.

Summing Up

From the information presented
above, it is obvious that alcohol has
a profound impact on driving skill

since it affects the ability of the brain to

rocess information quickly and accurate-
y. However, the impact of alcohol on
traffic safety extends beyond its effect on
those functions and tasks reported above,

As a mind-altering drug, alcohol re-
sembles sleeping pills and tranquil-
izers in that it acts as a depressant
of the central nervous system.
Enough alcohol can induce stupor and
sleep, though in social settings, small
doses tend to produce a kind of stimula-
tion. This apparent stimulation results
from the loss of inhibitions which is
caused by alcohol’s depressant action. The
individual may become more talkative,
may laugh more easily and more loudly,
and may engage in exiravagant behavior
that would be unlikely w sccur if the
person were completely sober. Thus
alcohol may produce the seemingly
opposite effects of relaxation and stimula-
tion.

The depressant action of alcohol,
depending on the dosage, will produce
sedation and increased fatigue. It will
also produce inattention and drowst
leading to a greater likelihood of in-
sufficient  response in a  driving
emergency. ’

The disinhibitory effect of alcohol wiil
often result in fear-reduction and increased
assertiveness. Thus a driver may take
more risks, such as by driving too fast, and
may be less cognizant of the need for
caution and self-restraint, One of the most
common effects of drinking is the
erroneous belief that driving ability
remains unimpaired. Gn test courses,

PR —

oKL st A

T

)

drivers have often reported the subjective
feeling of driving as well as if they were
sober, even when pylons knocked over
and other performance deficits proved just
the opposite.

So, it appears that in addition to
visual search-and-recognition, track-
ing, and reaction time, alcohol also
impairs the emotional and psychologi-
<cal requisites for safe driving.

Conclusion

. Drunk Driving is a crime. The offi-
cial charge as recorded by police is
usually referrcd to as OMVUI (Ope-
rating a Motor Vchicle Under the In-
ﬂuenge) or as DWI (Driving While
Intoxicated), and in most parts of the
United States a blood-alcohol concen-
tration of .10% is required for con-
viction. Unofficially, many law cn-
forcement officers report that they wiil
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let drivers off with a warning unless
the blood-alcohol level exceeds .15%
and a majority of drivers actually
arrested and convicted for OMVUI
have blood levels of nearly .20%.

Studies have shown that for every
lcgally-drunk driver on the roads,
there ‘are at least 30 others driving with
lesser degrees of impairment. Addi-
tionally, a number of statistical anal-
yses have shown that while drunk
drivers take their toll, the majority of
alcohol-related fatal accidents arc
causcd by drivers who are close to or
under the illegal blood-alcohol level.
This i3 startling, and a cause for con-
cern, since some 25,000 lives are lost
cach year in alcohol-related accidents.

The law establishing 0.10% b.a.c.
as the line between drunk and sober,
legal and illegal driving, has in effect
sanctioned alcohol-impaired driving.
All the available -indicators show that
drinking drivers with b,a.c.s below
0.10% arc substantially impaired in

their ability to drive safely. The pub-
lic needs to know what level of alcohol
consumption constitutes a hazard,
since most Americans who drink and
drive arc almost totally ignorant of
the potential danger of small doses of
alcohol. Given such information driv-
crs might cut down on driving after
drinking, and the public might be
more supportive of Jaw enforcement
crackdowns on drinking drivers.
When thinking about drinking—
and driving, these points are important
to keep in mind:
~—According to the National Safety
Council, a person should wait one
hour for every drink consumed, be-
fore driving since it takes the body
onc hour to burn up the alcohol
from the usual “drink”, Black cof-
fee, fresh air or cold water will not
speed up the process,

——Driving ability is impaired about
30% after as’little as two drinks.
—Any drinking will cause some jm-

pairment of driving ability.
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4. Traffic Accidents
Alcohol in the blood slows reaction time, reduces

muscle coordination; and impairs eyesight. Two A
beers, two four-ounce glasses of wine, or two mixed

~ drinks can impair driving ability by 25% — enough to

turn a near-miss into an accident. Four or five drinks

can make a person “legally drunk” and subject to
arrest. : - )

The degree of impairment ,depénds bhjihe number of
drinks consumed and a person’s weight. A 100-pound

- person is usually twice as impaired as a 200-pound
. person by the Same amount of alcohol. ‘

Safety experts Say that before driving you should
wait one hour for each drink consumed. It takes the
body that long to burn up one beer or other drink.

~ Black coffee and fresh air won’t help.
A person does not have to be really drunk to be

dangerous. Half-drunk drivers are dangerous too.

2. Fatal Overdose

* Everyone knows that an overdose of sleeping pills
~can be deadly. Alcohol works in much the same way.

Someone who drinks too much can actually stop
breathing and die. o »
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Persons who have consumed a large amount or pass

out after drinking may be in danger. Rush them to

- the emergency room of a hospital. There life-saving

~actions can be taken. Don’t jUSt let them “sleep it
ij ]

1 e

Sleeping piils and alcohol together are more
“dangerous than either by itselt. Aicohol and other
‘ drugs mteract in unpred:ctable ways

:3 Blrth iDefec:ts

. Babies born to women alcoholics are often deformed
or retarded. It’s called the “fetal alcohol syndrome.”

Research has not yet determined how much aicohol
in a mother’s blood will harm the baby. Since alcohol
“reduces the blood’s ability to carry oxygen to the
unborn child any drinking may be risky, even in the
first few weeks of pregnancy.

““The Surgeon General of the United States has said:
“Pregnant women shouid avoid aicoholic beverages.”

Damage to the Body
Alcohol goes directly into the blood stream. It

damages the liver, kidneys, heart and brain. Some
doctors believe that every drink a person consumes

-

kills some brain cells. Chronic alcoholics often suffer

- structural brain damage.

Drinking is the third leading cause of death in the
United States, right behind heart disease and cancer,

- though it may actually contribute to both those .

diseases as well. Heavy drinking can lead to
congestive heart failure. it increases the risk of
cancer of the mouth, throat, and esophagus.

Cirrhosis of the liver is probably the most common

“alcohol-related cause of death.

‘5. Addiction

Ni4

Alcohol is an addictive drug. Addiction may be due to
physical or mental conditions, or both. Alcohclism
has been linked to many factors, such as inherited
genetic makeup and individual body chemistry. A
person may have strong will power and still be
unable to stop drinking.

A compulsion to drink, inability to limit the number of
drinks, or memory loss after drinking are symptoms
of addiction. A person experiencing one of those
symptoms should seek help.

-

e




48

i is Di ty Adminis-

) DoLE. Our next witness is Diane Steed, Depu -
tra%t?)?'atlc\)lrational Highway Traffic Safety Administration, U.S. De
’ Transportation. . . .
paﬁ;r'leszﬁ%gi Ir?lrrllcferstand you have staff with you. You might in

troduce them. '

Y ADMINISTRATOR, NA-
STATEMENT OF DIANE STEED, DEPUT :
TIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION, XCSC(I))B%.
PARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI(ZNMDngSéII}II;IgFTOIXDI?IgBICATION
PANIED BY GEORGE D. BR ) . -
BRANCH; JOHN MOULDEN, ALCOHOL COUNTERMEASUIIII?ISS’%%;f-
CIALIST; AND CHARLES LIVINGSTON, ASSOCIATE ADM
TOR, TRAFFIC SAFETY PROGRAMS

. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am pleased to appear

belf%i'e ?rrg}flErDsubcomm}i,ttee today to address the extremely critical
k driving in this country. o

pr?&télfgrilggggr?g me togay are Mr. Charles Livingston, our AISVSIO“

ciate Administrator for Traffic Safety Programs, as well ’ast flf."

John Moulden and Mr. George Brandt of Mr. Livingston’s staff.

They are the real experts in this area, while I am a relative novice

on the subject.
EXTENT OF DRUNK DRIVING PROBLEM

heard a lot of the statistics today and a lot of the infor-
mzz“c,iil? ?)‘rlxethe scope of the problem, so I am going to try to summa-
i ion of my testimony. . _
rlzIe vfr};?lficf cﬁl?(aor’éo sayythat the de@nis,tratlon does recogmge th%t
drunk driving causes one of the Nation’s most serious health prob-
lems, and it is one of my agency’s highest priorities for the coming
Y Maay i ivi blem as an epi-
ay people have classified the drunk driving proble: ]

degiaé.lxl‘%e ?atality statistics are shocking, and as I said % xévﬂl not
go through them since we have heard them several times today. T

The real question is: Why are so many drunk drivers on iy i
roads? One reason is that the drunk drivers do not bel.letyga a11
they are going to be caught. Statistics show that their behek 13 we
founded. The agency estimates that the chances of a drunl rljaer
being stopped are between 1 in 500 and 1 in 2,000. l\Iatlonmffg,
police officers average fewer than five drunk driver arrests per offi-
cer per year. . . _ 1 ot

, drivers assume that if they are caught they will
beI%oi%dilc?:clll of an alcohol-related offense. Further, they believe
that if they are convic‘iedlthelzeptenge \ﬁ’lll. l;ei:eclilght, and in some
that on in 10 is actually jailed. .

St?{tgsvvs;g l1‘};:}Iltioswpossf,ible?yHcoW can the drunk .drgve;' be ireated so
lightly in view of the fatality and injury statistics? I think it %an
fairly be stated that the public has only recently come to cons;der
alcoholism a serious health condition. They still do not consider
driving under the influence of alcohol a serious crime. p

A drunk driver was not considered responsible for his ac uf?ns,
even if his actions resulted in a death or serious injury. There ﬁr?;
he was not held accountable, and the general wisdom has held tha
the driver should not be severely punished.

[N
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For example, a study in Michigan revealed that, although one
driver in four could have been charged with either manslaughter
or negligent homicide as a result of a fatal crash involvement, only
about 1 of every 12 was actually charged.

Furthermore, within the small group actually charged with man-
slaughter or negligent homicide, only one in four was convicted on
the original charge; 18 percent of the drivers charged were cleared
of the manslaughter or negligent homicide charges.

Today, however, I am happy to say that there is a shift occurring
in the general public’s attitude toward the drunk driver. Local citi-
zens, such as the ones that you have just heard from, are organiz-
ing te force State and local authorities to expand their efforts to
fight the drunk driver. . .

In Maryland, an organization known as Mothers Against Drunk
Drivers [MADD] was instrumental in persuading Governor Hughes
to organize a State task force on the issue. Grassroots organizations
have also been responsible for the establishment of State task
forces in New York, California, Pennsylvania, and West Virginia.

In this environment, I believe that it is an especially good time
for your subcommittee to hold a hearing on this issue. It will help
us focus national attention on th problem and possibly catalyze
more grassroots action. ' -

Recognition of the problem, we all know, is not going to solve it,
but under the pressure of greater public concern State legislatures,
public officials, and agencies will have a mandate and thus a great-
er resolve to establish and maintain more effective programs to
deter those who drink to excess and drive. :

NHTSA EFFORTS

Let us talk just briefly about what the Federal Government is
doing about: this problem. Since the passage of our Highway Safety

ct, my agency has worked to determine the magnitude cf the
drunk driving problem and to devise solutions and test them in co-
operation with State and local governments.

Our most important effort has been a-series of demonstration
projects run in 85 communities across the country between 1970
and 1976. Known as alcohol safety action projects, or ASAP, these
projects were designed to discover what could be done at the local
community level to increase the effectiveness of drunk driver pro-

grams. Much of what I say here today is based on an evaluation of
those projects.

PARALYSIS OF THE JUDICIAL SYSTEM

There is no question but that the drunk driver is a national prob-
lem, and yet we believe it can only be solved at the State and local
level. State and local laws govern this area, and State and local
courts are the only forums for these cases,

The crux of the drunk driver problem in most States is not the
lack of adequate laws on drunk driving but the lack of consistent,
convincing enforcement of those laws by State and local officials.

The risk of punishment is low and the deterrent effect of the laws
is therefore weak.

i




60

Right now, most State judicial systems cannot handle the drunk
driving cases in a swift and certain manner that indicates to the
public that this is a serious offense.

Although drinking driving cases form a large percentage of lower
court dockets, most States have not coordinated the actions of
police, prosecutors, judges, licensing officials, and health officials to
improve the processing of these cases. Independent action by any
one of these groups may only aggravate the system at another
level. Let me just quickly highlight some of the problems in identi-
fying, arresting, penalizing, and rehabilitating the drunk driver.

At the enforcement level, the police are reluctant to arrest
drunk drivers because arrest procedures for DWI (driving while in-
toxicated) are more cumbersome and time consuming than for any
other traffic offense. It can take as long as 4 hours for an officer to
process a driver arrested on a drinking driver charge, not to men-
tion the time involved in his subsequent court appearances.

At the trial level, the courts are often reluctant to convict on the
drunk driver charges. In many instances judges consider the penal-
ties established by a State legislature for this offense, such as man-
datory jail sentences and license revocation, too harsh. Defendants
appear in court as normal, law-abiding people for whom harsh
sanctions seem inappropriate. Legislative actions to set harsher
penalties may well result in fewer convictions and a less effective
program.

Drunk driver cases are also time consuming, and Jjudges become
very amenable to case processing shortcuts, such as plea bargain-
ing, to reduce their docket loads. Some States have sought to use
nontraditional methods to deal with those arrested for the first
time as drunk drivers. The availability of a less severe penalty and
an array of possible sanction combinations such as fines, treat-
ment, and education, encourages some judges to find more drivers
guilty of the offense as charged—28 States screen those arrested
and allow the judges to refer drivers to aléohol violator schools or
rehabilitation programs. We find that this flexibility often does
more to deter the drunk driving than a stiff sentence.

Another problem is that drunk driving cases, like all traffic
cases, are heard at the local court level, and at that level a high
turnover rate for judges exists. Novice judges often do not have the
experience to deal with the legal and procedural complexities of a
trial for drunk drivers. Accordingly, the agency has devised a spe-
cial judicial training course to give judges information on the pro-
cedural and constitutional issues most frequently raised by the de-
fense counsel in drunk driving cases and what penalties can be im-
posed depending on the circumstances of the particular case.

Due to plea bargaining and dismissals, many persons originally
charged as drunk drivers are not convicted, and without a convie-
tion no record exists. If arrested again on the charge, the person
would be considered a first-time offender.

All States currently have laws requiring courts to report all con-
victions to a central driver record repository. Yet even when the
court convicts, we find that it frequently neglects to send a record
of the conviction to the central repository. As a result, local pros-
ecutors and courts are unable to identify multiple drunk driving of-
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fenders and consequently fail to prosecute, convict i
. 2 - 'y and 1
harsher sanction that such defendants deserve. mpose a

In addition to having an accurate record of prior convictions, the

ant from driving drunk in the future.

While the social drinker can be humiliated and deterred by the
typlcal. penalties imposed on the drunk driver, an alcoholic cannot
help himself, He requires more extensive attention, which may in-

clude Alcoholics Anon mous, group th v, indivi .
and probation. Y group therapy, individual counseling,

At the punishmept level, most States have legislated fines and

stiff sentence sanctions, license suspensions, or revocations as pen-

?lties for the drunk driver. Some States prescribe a minimum jail
erm.

As I mentioned, however, many judges are rel i
stiff punishment such as licenseystjlspegnsion or jatill(?tant fo Hpose &

Also, dqe to the time-consuming nature of the process, the penal-
ty is not imposed until many months after. By losing its immedi-
acy, t}}e pe_nalty may’ become, in the mind of convicted drivers
society’s unjust intrusion into thejr lives and a threat to their live-

THE SOLUTION: A COORDINATED PROGRAM

Let us talk a little about the solution. Despi alli
L _ . pite the appalling sta-
tistics and the apparent continued inability of the crirggnal jgsfi;z

be’%‘iﬁve a s%'st?matic solution is at hand.

e goal of any State drunk driving program should be to in-
crease the perceived risk of arrest, conviction, and punishxglélrllt
among the drunk driving population. To accomplish this, arrests
and adjudication must b_e swift and sure. The bottleneck in the en-

State and local officials must not only increase arrests
must also shorten bogkjng time, shorten trial time, raise ?zll:t; 2}(1::131
viction rate on the original charge, assure appropriate punishment
for thpse convicted, kepp a record of the conviction that is easily
accessible to the court in case of future arrests on the same charge
and conduct a public information and education campaign. ’
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To achieve these changes, we believe that a program intended to
deter drunk driving must:

First, aim to deter the majority of drinking drivers who are not
arrested; .

Second, we must generate citizen support to provide a political
base for increased enforcement;

Third, we must place responsibility for management in the hands
of the local officials;

Fourth, we must coordinate all levels of enforcement, adjudica-
tion, and sanctioning so that the case processing system works
quickly and self-sufficiently by using fines, court costs, and treat-
ment fees to defray the costs of a program; and,

Finally, we must use educational programs to change general
public attitudes on drinking and driving.

NHTSA intends to work with the States to develop a comprehen-
sive, coordinated alcohol safety program based on these six ele-
ments. We hope that these efforts will provide notable improve-
ments and practical information and encourage other States to es-
tablish their own programs. A good starting point for any State
would be a State task force on drunk driving, such as the one Cindi
just mentioned.

In response to the rise of citizen action groups, such as MADD,
RID—remove intoxicated drivers—PARK-IT, and Citizens for Safe
Drivers, and political pressure over the drunk driving problem, a
number of States in recent years have established drunk driving
task forces, and the results have been very impressive.

New York has improved its drunk driving laws and now sends
fines back to the local jurisdiction to establish comprehensive, lo-
cally managed alcohol safety programs. ' ’

Maryland has enacted a preliminary breath-testing law which
allows police to test the blood-alcohol level of those arrested in
order to establish probable cause to arrest.

California has enacted an illegal per se BAC law and new mini-
mum penalties. It is also presently holding legislative hearings on
a proposed 5 cents per bottle liquor tax as a means of financing
comprehensive alcohol safety programs.

An effective local drunk driving program places greater demands
on the police, the prosecutors, the courts, licensing agencies, and
the health and education agencies, and a successful campaign will
drain money from the municipal treasury.

One solution to the funding problem is found in a recently adopt-
ed New York statute ‘which redistributes all drunk driving fines
back to the county for their drunk driving programs.

Virginia also sends money collected from DWI—driving while in-
toxicated—fines back to the counties, and under this approach the
drunk driver—the driver who creates the problem—pays for its so-
lution.

A law making it unlawful, per se, to drive with a high blood-alco-
hol content is also a useful component of a coordinated drunk driv-
ing program—19 States have enacted such laws that make a high
. BAC level in a defendant sufficient proof of intoxication. These
laws reduce not guilty pleas, requests for trials, and thus the pres-
sure to plea bargain or to dismiss drunk driving cases. As a result,

&
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less police time is spent in court and officers have more incentives
to make more drunk driving arvests. '

It also stands to reason that publicity in the new State cam-
paigns, particularly the increased vigilance by the police as well as
the rise in the number of actual arrests and convictions, will
heighten the perceived risk. This approach is presently being used
effectively by the Maryland State Police. :

THE FEDERAL ROLE

I want to say just a word about the Federal role in the drunk
driving question. We, in NHTSA, recognize that it ic the State’s re-
sponsibility to police the roads to protect the health and safety of
its citizens. The Federal role, we think, is to assist the States to
perform this function through research and coordination.

To give you an example, we are distributing a manual for police
on the detection of drunk drivers and a manual for court casework.
ers to improve case processing and disposition. We have developed
the only reliable interview questionnaire for presentence investiga-
tion and have conducted studies to improve State reporting systems
for traffic convictions. _ '

We have developed a model traffic case management system as
well as model laws to improve prosecution of the drunk driver, and
we have cosponsored a national prosecutors conference on DWI and
vehicular homicide.

. We are also presenting courses to judges and to police on effi-
cient processing of those arrested as drinking drivers and to alcohol
safety program coordinators on how to organize and implement a
comprehensive, locally managed program.

Last year the agency conducted a series of workshops, and we
are pleased to see the ever-growing public determination to do
something about this national health problem. ‘

SUMMARY

In summary, the drunk driving problem is not insurmountable.
We know what needs to be done. The States do not so much need
new laws on the problem as they need greater resolve to enforce
existing laws and technical assistance to streamline the criminal
Justice procedures.

The necessary resolve to change current State practices, howev-
er, can only be summoned if local citizens show active and vocal
interest. Congressional hearings such as this provide a national
fcﬁ'lum to elicit comments from these people and inspire action by
others.

The grassroots efforts of citizens’ groups in some States have

. been extremely successful, and task forces have been set up, as I

mentioned earlier. Now is the time for more citizens to convey to
their S’paj:e legislators, police, prosecutors, and Jjudges that drinking
and driving is a serious offense. The criminal justice system can
work if Government institutions that maintain the system receive
this clear signal.

This concludes my statement, Mr. Chairman. My colleagues and
I will be pleased to try to answer any questions you may have.
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Senator DoLk. I think the first question we need to ask is: Where
does this problem rank in the priorities of the administration? You
are probably now in the assessment period, but does it have a pri-
ority? If so, can you tell us anything in addition to what you have
told us in your prepared statement about future plans? Do you
foresee any legislative proposal? I understand your problem with
the Federal Government and States, but generally does the admin-
istration set this as a priority matter?

Ms. Steep. We certainly do. As a matter of fact, when we tock
office in the Reagan administration, we looked at what the agency
had been doing in the past. Too often we found we had been con-
centrating too much on making the car safer—designing in safety,
if you will.

We think we have got to spend some time on human behavior.
One of our two top priorities in the coming years is going to be the
alcohol problem and getting people to wear their seat belts. Those
two things are very closely related.

I am very pleased to say that, even though we are in a cutback of
funds, this year we see about 40 percent of the 402 grant program
moneys going into alcohol. It is the second largest category into
which that the States are programing Federal funds to solve high-
way safety problems. It represents a very real increase of $6 mil-
lion over what the States spent last year on alcohol. In fiscal year
1982, the States plan to spend approximately $28 million on alcohol
countermeasures.

So we see, and we are very pleased to see, that this is a continu-
ing priority and an even higher priority in the future. We support
that wholeheartedly, and we are encouraging the States to spend
their highway safety funds for alcohol programs.

As far as what we are going to do in the future is concerned, we
are establishing a special task force within the agency to concen-
trate our resources on this issue. We believe that is a systematic
approach to the problem. That is one that helps the police officers
identify the drunk driver, helps the States assess their own laws
and come up with more effective local solutions, helps the court
system understand what the problem is with drunk driving, and
teaches both prosecutors and judges what needs to be done in the
drunk driving case, working with local rehabilitation efforts to
cure the serious drunk driving that we have in the country, cou-
pling all of that with what we see as an enormous public sentiment
to do something about this problem—we think if we have all of
those elements combined in a program we are going to succeed in
solving that drunk driving problem in this country. It is going to
take time, and it is going to take determination, but we in the ad-
ministration are determined to succeed.

Senator DoLe. Have you specifically addressed the legislation
that has been introduced by Senator Pell and Congressman Barnes,
I guess about 70 House Members, and I am not certain how many
Senators? As I understand, you have addressed that in a letter to
Congressman Howard.

Ms. SteED. Yes, sir, we have. We agree wholeheartedly with the-

objectives of this legislation, but we are troubled by some of the
very specific provisions that would be enacted into law and applied
nationwide.
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As you mentioned earlier the i
, problem is really one of enforce-
I (izpt, and ‘the enforcement team is at the State ariyd local level. Iigfe
elieve it is better to encourage the States to come up with their
1(:)Ivlvr.l task forces to assess the problem in their own States and in
h ;1Sr own local cornmunities and develop local solutions to those
We also think it is better, for exarn i
X: , s ple, not to impose a -
tory jail sentence or a mandatory community servi(I:)e pr%ergta%? a;
f:‘lr':?m length in Federal legislation. That is better left to the local
For example, I have been over to Mar i ith {
, . yland and ridd
State troopers towatch' their very effective drunk drivilicl,lrl g;:)glr;gle

better deterrent than a jail sentence or a mandatory 10-day, 10-

week, or whatever, community service, | .
ble and in the hands of the juc}i’ges. ice- 1t has really got to be flexi-

Senator Dore. You mentioned highway safety funds. Has there

been any thought about withholdi ;
certain things that might be helg fulll‘.;g those funds until States do

s. STEED. I know that is a proposal in the Pell-Bar i
that, too, troubles us a little bit. We think thzt Sve sﬁz)ﬁfg gg%’lf;}g

tively with them by encouragin the Go ) {
alcohol task forces and througgh glrocal tasﬁefl"ori'%zs. offices to establish

S ; .
o f;%;or DoLe. Nineteen States now have the per se law; is that

Ms. StEED. Yes, sir.

Senator Dore. It would seem to me in, i
. —and again, it m i
pf{'(r)Ic‘:ess—that would be an area where the pressg and the S%e};rgiail‘;
% f1:ansporta1:10n could have some influence at the next Governors’
¢ ;’1;11 :cxi'eggg.u;l‘%ey havedt}}l)ezg fxi;equently. Sometimes we get so con-
axes and bu
haé'e lzeenl yjiaxes gets that we overlook people. It may
ertainly in those areas—and I would be interested t j
ok
how you plan to structure the tagk force, who is going to Egvgrillisi:t

be some way to e
States to move. But even after States move, againyit getsn f)(;%f(a%s

cases. There is not much in it fi
: or the States or the local ¢ i-
ties as far as revenues are concerned. commun

_Then you have the problem with the judges, and you have, par-

one, as Ms. Lamb pointed out the situation wher
A ) e th
ggté)zi?e tg:;-:;l fél%geeuanﬁ he”s:%rs,‘ ‘}‘IWell, you know, I could }?Z flfg?ed
( _ Ip here.” You have all those mixed feelj ,
a Juldgment is made._It would seem to me that theegelzl'1 gsse vﬁ&:
weuld at least make it much easier. It sort of takes the people in
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law enforcement off the hook. They cannot plead illness or what-
ever. I have been through some of these as a county attorney in a
small county. ‘ .

Are you doing anything in that area regarding encouraging
States to move?

Ms. STEED. As a matter of fact, we sent a model per se law to all
the States, and we are working very closely with some of the citi-
zens’ groups to get this adopted and to get the State and local task
forces set up out there to do just exactly that. We do hope tc take
advantage of forums like the National Governors’ Association to
encourage action at the local level.

If T might, I would like to have Mr. Livingston describe one of
the State laws that we think is a model in this area.

Mr. LivingstoN. What has been described before is the delay
from the time of arrest until something happens to the individual.
It is upwards of at least 6 months.

Minnesota has an illegal per se law, and they also enacted an ad-
ministrative procedure wherein, when the individual is arrested,
brought into the station, and tested, as soon as they find that he
has tested above 0.10, the police automatically at that point in time
lift his driver’s license for 90 days and send it to the Motor, Vehicle
Department. So you have the immediacy of the sanction right
there, which is the type of thing we are pressing for.

Senator DoLe. Since several data banks routinely exchange

driver’s license information, have you considered combining the
National Driver Register with the National Criminal Information
Center files or the National Law Enforcement Telecommunications
System?
" "Ms. StEED. As a matter of fact, we have. I have to say that I
think one of the mistakes that we made early on in the agency was
to consider abolishing the National Driver’s Register. We took a
look at it and found it is not being effectively run at the present
time. It is not supported by all of the States, and it takes us far too
long to get the information back out to the States.

We are going to continue that system, and we are going to im- '

prove it. In the meantime we have also been in touch with the Jus-
tice Department. As a matter of fact, I have a meeting next week
with them to explore the use of systems like the NCIC for this
purpose. .

Senator DoLE. I have another question or-two, but I think what I
may do is submit those questions in writing, because they deal with
areas that have some relevance.

I want to commend you and the members of your staff and to
indicate that I would hope that this administration would put this
on the front burner.

I know there are a lot of things that I think should be on the
front burner, and I know changes are being made for the better
each day, each week, each year, but we really need to focus on this
at the highest levels, and the highest level I can think of is the
White House level. '

I am certain that if you focus on it that will be more reason for
the President to focus on it, because he will have the information.
It is one thing to say the President should do this or that, but with-
out good information I would not recommend that he do anything.

b
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Hopefully, you will move ver i
) y quickly, and we can do what
should be dom,g,r as Members of Congress where we have theaco‘rvne-3
mlgtee responsibility. I again thank you for coming and waiting
f;llfo 111:121 31?1; your coope;a%gg with the public interest groups, law
groups, and others, and i ’
oy coment gro 1 and for your work with the Gover-
Do we have a per se law ir Kansas? Yo i
4 y ? ? You might know. I should.
Ms. SteED. I am afraid to say we do not. We will work on gﬁatti;.

S ) ]
- ne:aasifor Dore. We had better work on that when we are both in

Ms. SteED. That is right.
Senator DoLg. Thank you very much.

ing vsv i 3;1‘}}«3’?)1131 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We loqk forward to work-

[The prepared statement of Ms. Steed follows:]
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PREPARED EI}ATBVIENT OF DiI_I_S:NE K. Steep

Mr. Chairman and Members of tue Subcommittee:

I am pleased to appear before your Subcommittee today to
address the problem of the drunk driver in this country.
Aceompanying me today are Mr. Charles Livingston, our Associate
Administrator for Traffic Safety Programs as well as
Mr. John Moulden and Mr. George Brandt of his staff. Under the
terms of the Highway Safety Act of 1966, the National Highway
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), helps the States improve
their highway safety programs and reduce the number of traffic

. n-
accidents, deaths and injuries. NHTSA carries out that respo

sibility through a State yrant program in highway safety under
Section 402 of the Act as well as through a highway safety

i i he
research program under Section 403 of the Act. NHTSA is t

- . ; he
principal Federal agency working with the States to attack t

drunk driver problem in this Nation.

Extent of the Drinking Driver Problem

Drunk drivers cause one of the Natjon's most serious health
. . . it
problems. Many have classified it as an epidemic. The fatality
£
statistics are shocking. Over the past 10 years the number o

persons killed on our highways in motor vehicle accidents involving

-

' ple
alcohol has averaged 25,000 per year. In 1979, over 650,000 peop

were injured in accidents involving alcohol.

A recent study of alcohol and health problems by tne Department
alcohol—related'motor vehicle accidents in 1975 exceeded $5
billion. These deaths and injuries are a direct result of the
large numbers of people who are driving drunk on the Nation's
roads, particularly at night, According to a study conducted by
the University of the Pacific for the Stockton, California Police
Department, one out of every 10 drivers in Stockton on Friday and
Saturday nights ie legally drunk, i.e., their blood-alcohol

concentration (BAC; level exceeds 0.10 percent.
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Why are so many drunk drivers on the roads? One reason is
that drunk drivers do not believe that they will be caught.
Statistics show that their belief is well founded.‘ NHTSA estimates
that the chances of a drunk driver being stopped are hetween
one in five,hundted and one in two thousand, Nationwide, police
officers average fewer than five drunk driver arrests per
officer per year. 1In addition, drivers assume that if they are

caught, they will not be convicted of an alcohol-related offense.

Further, they believe that 1if they are convicted, the sentence ®

will be light. Again, studies confirm this.  The State of Majne's
Bureau of Highway Safety issued a report in January 1981 on
enforcement of its drunk driver laws. With respect to its law
mandating jail for drivers convicted for the second time of

driving drunk, it found that only one out of every 10 drivers

-

arrested for and convicted of a second offense was actually

jailed.

How is this possible?  How can the drunk driver be treated

S0 lightly in view of the fatality and injury statistics? 1

think it can be fairly stated that the public has .only recently

come to consider alcoholism a serious health condition. They

stlll do not consider driving under the influence of aleohol a

serious crime.. A drunk driver was not considered,responsible

for .his actions, even if his actions resulted in a death or

serious injury. Therefore, he was not held accountable and the

wisdom has heJd that the driver should not be severely

punishedqd. Statlstlcs on’ penaltlee meted out to drunk drivers

involved in ac01dents rnsultlng in the death of another attest to

to the strength of this attltude. A NHTSA study of drlvers

MJchlgan, revedled many prosecutlon and court 1nadequa01es.
Although one drlver in four could have been charged with elther

manslaughter or negllgent homicide as a result of fatal crash

1nvolvement, only about one out of evervy 12 was actually

charged. Fur thermore,

within the small group actually charged
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with manslaughter or negligent homicide, only one in four was

convicted on the original charge. Eighteen percent of the

drivers charged were cleared of the manslaughter or negligent

homicide.
Today, however, there are signs that a shift is occurring

in the general pdblic's attitude toward the drunk driver.

Local citizens are organizing to force State and local authorities

to expand their efforts to fight the drunk driver. In

Maryland, an organization known as Mothers Against Drunk Driving

(MADD) was instrumental in persuading Governor Hughes to organize
a State task force on the issue. Grass-root organizations have

s
also been responsible for the establishment of State task forces

in New York, California, Pennsylvania and West Virginia.
tiith the emergence of the drunk driver as a more visible

issue, I believe that this is a good time for the Subcommittee

to hold a hearing on the issue. This hearing will focus national

attention on the problem and possibly catalyze more grass-roots
Once

action. Recognition of the problem will not solve it.

greater public concern is manifest, however, the State legisla-

tures, public officials and agencies will have a mandate and,

thus, a greater resolve to establish ana maintain more effective

programs to deter those who drink to excess and drive.

) NHTSA Efforts

Since the passage of the Highway Safety Act, NHTSA hasvworked

to survey the magnitude of the drunk driver problem, devise
solutions, and test them in cooperation with State, county and

city governments.l Our most important effort has been a series of

demonstration projects run in 35 communities across the country

between 1970 and 1976. Known as Alcohol Safety Action Projects

(ASAPs), these projects were designed to discover what could be
done at the local community level to increase the effectiveness

of 4runk driver programs. Much of what I say today is based

on our evaluation of the ASAPs.

§
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Paralysis of the Judicial System

The drunk driver is a national prcblem, yet it can only
be solved at the State and local level. State and iocal laws.
govern in this area and' State and local courts are the only forum
for these cases. Unfortunately, despite the thousands of ﬁighway
deaths and injuries attributable to alcohol, State and local
officials have.notifocused sufficiently on this problem.

The crux of the drunk driver problem in most States is
not the lack of adequate laws on the drunk driver but the lack
of consistent, convincing enforcement of those laws by State and
local effieials. The risk of punishment is low, and the deterrent
effect of the laws is therefore weak.

As presently constituted, most State judicial systems cannot
handle drunk driver cases in a swift, certain manner that
indicates to the general motoring public that it is a serious
offens%, Although drunk driver cases form a large percentage
of lower court dockets, most States have not coordlnated the
actions of the Police, prosecutors, Judges, llcen51ng officials
and health officials to improve the Processing of these cases
Independent action at any one level of the system may only aggra-

vate the problems at another level =

Arrest Level

At the enforcement level, the police are reluctant to arrest
drunk drivers because the arrest procedures on that charge are
more cumbersome and time-consuming than for any other traffic
offense. It can take as long as 4 hours for an officer to process
a driver arrested on a drunk driver charge. He may then spend
additional time in subsequent court appearances. Moreover, police
chiefs traditionally have not made the arrest. of drunk drivers
a high Priority. They would rather have their men invest their
time in patrolling for major. cr1m1nal act1v1ty. When the police
do initiate a crackdown and increase the number of arrests of

drunk
drivers, they often discover that the courts are unabile
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to handle the increased case load. To manage the increased case
load, prosecutors plea-~-bargain with defendants to reduce the
charge to a nonalcoholic one or dismiss their cases entirely.

As a consequence, the conviction rate plummets} the morale of the

police falls proportionately, and the crackdown comes to an end.

Trial Level

The courts are often reluctant to convict on the drunk
driver charge. In many instances, judges consider the penalties
established by the State legislature for this offense (mandatory
jail sentences, license revocation) too harsh. Apart from the
defendants' problems with alcohol, they appear to be normal law-
abiding people, for whom harsh sanctions seem inappropriate.
Legislative action to set harsher penalzies may well result in
fewer convictions and a less effective program. In our survey
of local court actions in those States with mandatory jail
penalties, we were repeatedly struck by the degree to which %he

courts did not impose jail terms in cases calling for them. We

found that the judges commonly allowed plea pargaining the c@arge
to a lessir, nonalcoholic offense to permit themselves the dis-
cretion t» fashion their own remedies in lieu of the "mandatory"
penalties.

The courts also find the drunk driver cases are very time-
consuming. When the penalties are increased the demands for jury
trials also increase. Jury trials take more time and further
clog the system. Judges become very amenable to case processing
short cuts, such as plea bargaininé, to reduce their docket load.

Given large caseloads the reluctance of judges to convict
drivers when severe penalties are mandated and the time-consuming
nature of a standard trial for the offense, some States have
sought to use non-traditional methods to deal with those arrested
the first time as drunk drivers. The availability of a less
severe penalty and an array of possible sanctionsg combinations

such as ines and treatment or education encourages some judges
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to find more drivers guilty of the offense charged. Twenty-eight
States screen those arresteg and allow the judges to refer those
drivers to alecohol vioclator schools or rehabilitation Programs. ‘
Arrests under the Statewide Virginia Alcohol Safety Action
Program (VASAP) have increased considerably in the past years
from 28,578 in 1977 to 38,472 in 1980. Minnesota has instituteqd
An administrative Procedure to Process, very rapidly, drunk
drivers based on the results of the standard blood test given
those arresteq. Any driver found to register a blood~al;ghol
concentration (BAC) level above 0.10 percent has his license
automatically suspended for 90 days regardless of his case's
subsequent disposition. A high BAC level is sufficient in'itself
to prove the offense, without the need for evidence as to the
defendant's impaired behavior. A driver refusing to take the BAC
test has his license administratively suspended for 180 days.
The Minnesota system raises the Probability of swift and certain
sanctions.
Another organizational pProblem hampers judicial effective~
Ness. Drunk driver cases are heard, as are all traffic cases,
at the lower court level. At that level, a high turnover rate
for judges exists. Novice judges often do not have the experience
to deal with the legal and procedural complexities of a trial for
drunk drivers., To Provide them with a quick education on the
subject, NHTSA has devised a special training course, The coursé
was pilot-tested in Tampa, Florida in December 1980 before
49 judges under the auspices of the Florida State judicial educa-
tion office. The course gives judges information on the pro=
cedural and constitutional issues most f;equently presented
by traffic cases with emphasis on those issues in drunk driver
cases., It also shows judges the diversity of peralties they
can impose depending on the circumstances of the particular
defendant, At present! 22 States have shown interé;t in

including the Package in their judicial education Programs .-

- . :
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Due to plea bargaining and dismissals, many persoli.

originally charged as drunk drivers are not convicted on the

charge. Without a conviction, no record exists. If arrested

again on the charge, the person would be considered a first time

offender. All States currently have laws requiring courts to

report all convicticns to a central driver record repository.
Yet, even when the court convicts it is not uncommon to find
that it neglects to send a record of the conviction to the central

repository. Further, local courts often do not request driving

records on defendants from the State motor vehicle department.
Judges may be reluctant to order records because of the cumber-
some, time-consuming access procedures required to obtain the

records. As a result of these problems, local prosecutors and

courts are unable to identify multiple drunk driver offenders

and consequently fail to prosecute, convict and impose the

harsher sanction such defendants deserve. Ideally, the States

should strive to develop a Statewide driver record system to
which courts will report drunk driver convictions and from
which the courts can readily obtain conviction reports. To go

one step further, cases which are plea bargained should be

recorded as being alcohol-related. This is now being done in

Virginia.

Based on our ASAP experience, we have found that in
addition to having an accurate record of prior convictions,»the
coarts must also know the nature of a driver's alcoholic problem,
With this knowledge, the courts can fashion the penalty that is
best calculated to deter the defendant from driving drunE in the

future. While a social drinker can be humiliated -by the typical

penalties imposed on the drunk driver and may be deterred, an

alcoholic cannot help himself. He requires more extensive

attention which may include Alcoholics Anonymous, group therapy,

individual counseling and probation. NHTSA has developed a

course to train court caseworkers and probation officers to

perform presentence investigations to screen defendants to deter-
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mine the lesel of their alcohol Problems. This course has been
presented in New York, Virginia, Pennsylvania and Texas.

Courts in Pennsylvania currently conduct the pPresentence
Screening through the use of a Statewide computer system

known as the Court Reporting NMetworker (CRN). The central

data bank consolidates all existing traffic records on a
defendant and also evaluates the extent of his alcohol problem.
The CRN system standardizes presentence investigations and
makes them less costly and timeconsuming. With such a

system, prosecutors and judges are more likely to order

Presentence investigations.

Punishment Level .

Most States have legislated fines and stiff license sanctions
(suspensions or revocations) as penalties for the drunk dzlver. |
Some States prescribe a minimum jail term. This agency has been
instrumental in getting the States to use education or treatment
as an additional sanction for those conv1cted. As I explained
beforehand, many judges are reluctant to 1mpose the stiff punish-
ment of license suspension or jail. Also, due to the time-

con i
suming natqre of the brocess, a penalty is not imposed until

many months after arrest. By losing its immediacy, the penalty
may become, in the mind of convicted drivers, society's unjust
intrusion into their lives and a threat to their livelihood.
This produces resentment rather than contrition.

Despite the difficulties in achieving convictions and
imposing license sanctions, studies have found license suspension
or revocation to be more effective in deterring future violations
than either fines or jail. a study in California showed that
drivers whose licenses were revoked either 4id not drive, or
drove more cautiously and were less likely to drive during those
times when the pProbability of accidents is higher. as 1 mentioned
earlier, Minnesota, in an effort to shorten the time between

arrest i ‘ initi
and punishment, has initiated an automatic license suspen-
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sion system for drivers found with a BAC level above 0.10 percent.
This is in the right direction for the first offense. If the
change can also be processed administratively, the court or
administrative agency presiding over the case may be more willing

and able to speed the case along and impbse the legal penalty.

The Solution: A Coordinated Program

Despite the appalling statistics and the apparent continued
inability of the criminal justiée system to treat’ drinking and
driving as a serious offense, Federal State and local officials
are not indifferent to this problem. As we all know, for decades,
Federal, State, and local governments have attempted to Combat
the drunk driver with projects and programs. Based on our
evaluation of our ASAP projects, I want to make the following
general recommendations. ‘

The goal of any State drunk driver program should be to .
increase the perceived risk of arrest, conviction and punishment
among this group. To accomplish this, arrest and'adjudicat}on must
be swift and sure. The bottlenecks in the enforcement and
adjudication system must be eliminated. Therefore, a number éf
procedural actions must be taken simultaneously to prepare the
police, judges, the prosecutors, probation officers, correction
officals and health officers for the resultant surge in the number
of arrests, trials, and convictions. State and local officials
must not only increase arrests, they must also shorten booking
time, shorten trial time, raise the conviction rate on the
original charge, assure appropriate punishment for those con-
victed, keep a record of the conviction that is easily accessible
to courts in case of future arrests on the same charge, and
conduct a public information and education campaign., These
procedural efforts will broadcast to the public the high priority
that all elements of the legal community accord a drunk driver
arrest and their common resolve. to punish it swiftly.

To achieve these changes, we believe that a program intended
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to deter the drunk driver must embrace the following elements.
it must: 1) aim to deter the majority of drunk drivers who are
never arrested; 2) generate citizen support to provide a political
base for increased enforcement; 3) place responsibility for
management in the hands of local officials; 4) coordinate all
levels of enforcement adjudication and sanctioning so th&f the
case prcnessing system works quickly and self-sufficiency by
using fines, court costs and treatment fees to defray the costs
of the program; 6) use education Programs to change general .
public attitudes on drinking and driving. NHTSA intends to work
with a few States to develop a comprehensive, coordinated alcohol-
safety program based on these six elements. We hope that these
efforts will provide enough practical information so that other
States will be encouraged to establish their own Programs.

A good starting point for any State would be a State task -
force study of the drunk driver problem. In response to the
rise of citizen activist groups such as MADD, RID (Remove Intoxi~
cated Drivers), and QARK—IT and po;;tical pressure over the
drunk driving problem, a number of States in recent years
have established drunk driving task forces. Task forces have
been established in New York, California, Maryland, Pennsylvania,
and West Virginia.

Thg results of these task forces have been impressive.
New York has improved its drunk driver laws and now sends
fines back to the local jurisdict;ons to establish comprehensive,
locally managed alcohol~safety programs. Maryland has enacted a
preliminary breath-testing law, which allows police to test the
blood-alcohol level of those arrested ip order to establish pro-
bable cause to arrest. California lmis enacted an illegal per se
BAC law and new minimuﬁ penalties. It is also presently holding
legislative hearings on a propésed 5 cénﬁ per bottle liquor tax
as a means of'financing compreﬂensive alcohol-~safety pfo;rams.

An effective local drunk driver program blacesvgreater

demands on the police, the prosecutors, the courts, licéqsing
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agencies and the health/education agencies. . A successful campaign

drains money from the municipal treasury. To meet the demands of

a program, new sources of funding may be needed, such as the fines

collected in the campaign. Many local governments, however, cannot

retain fines collected from convicted drunk drivers. They must
forward them to the State treasury. One solution to the

funding problem is found in a recently adopted Hew York

statute, which redistributes all drunk driver fines back

to the counties for their drunk driver programs. Virginia,
based on its experience with the Federal ASAP project in Fairfax

County in the mid-1970s, also sends money collected from fees back

to the counties. Under this approach, the drunk driver,

the driver who creates the problem, pays for its solution.
A law making it unlawful per se to drive with a high blood-
alcohol level is also a useful component of a coordinated drunk

driver program. Nineteen States have enacted illegal per se. laws

that make a high BAC level in a defendant sufficient proof of
intoxication. By reducing the elements of the crime to one item -
blood alcohol concentration - this law reduces not~-guilty pleas,

requests for trials and thus the pressure to plea bargain or to

dismiss drunk driver cases. As a result, less police time is

spent in court and officers have more incentive to make more

drunk driver arrests.
It also stands to reason that publicity of the new State

campaigns, particularly the increased vigilance by the police as
well as the rise in the number of actual arrests and convictions,
will heighten the perceived risk. This proved effective in
Great Britain (1964) and Hew Zealand (1978). It is presently

being used effectively by the Maryland State police.

The Federal Role

Under the system of Federalism in this country, the States
have retained the responsibility for policing roads»to protect

the health and safety of their citizens. NHTSA was organized,
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in part. to help the States more efficiently carry out their

responsibility and reduce the number of traffic deaths and

. injuries. It has traditionally éimed at providing the States

with the latest highway safety research, demonstrating results,
and serving as a central clearinghouse for the result to State
pLojects Oor experiments in all areas of highway safety.

Today the Stétes look to NHTSA keep them up-to~date on
the latest developments in the drunk driver field. The
States want NHTSA to‘keep them informed on the Success or failure
of innovative Projects in other States. They want to learn from
the experience of other States and avoié repeating the mistakes
already made by other Stateé. For similér reasons, the States
have requested NHTSA assistance to develop the in-house expertise
to evaluate the success or failure of their own Projects™and
Programs. 1In an effort to éummarize drunk driver techniques
that work, NHTSA has prepared'a series of manuals and courses
that are in great demand. We are distributing a manua} for Qolice
on the detection of drunk drivers and a manual for court case-
workers to improve case Processing and disposition. We have
developed the only reliable interview questionnaire for presentence
‘investigation. We have conducted studies to improve a State's
reporting systems for traffic conviction, We have developed a
model traffic case management system as well as model laws to
improve prosecution of the drunk driver. We have co-spopsored
a national prosecutors conference on DWI and vehiclular homicide.
We are also presenting courses to judges and police oh efficient
Processing of those arrested as drunk drivers, and to alc6h01~
safety program coordinators on how Eo organize and implement a

comprehensive, locally-managed program.

Summary
The drunk‘driver problem is not insurmountable. We know .
what needs to be done. The States do not so much need new laws

on the problem as a resolve to enforce them and to streamline

88-986 O—82——¢




70
their criminal justice system procedures. NHTSA stands

ready to work with the States and provide practical information

so that they can set up coordinated and comprehensive drunk

-

driver programs.

The necessary resolve to change current State practices,
however, can only be summoned if local citizens show active and
vocal interest. Congressional hearings such as this provide a
national forum to elicit comments from these people and inspire
action by oﬁhers. ‘The grass-root efforts of citizen groups in
some States have been extremely successful and task forces’have
been set up. Now is the time for more citizens to convey to
their State legislators, police, prosecutors and judges that
drunk driving is a serious offense. The criminal justice

system can work if the government institutions that maintain the

system receive this clear signal.
This concludes my statement. I would be pleased to answer

any questions you might have.

Senator DoLe. Senator Boschwitz has agreed to come; he should
be on his way now.

This should be a very interesting panel of representatives of law
enforcement: Lt, Col. Johnny Lough, chief of the Field Operations
Bureau, Maryland State Police; Chief Joe Milner, Department of
Public Safety, Austin, Tex.; Capt. Wayne Layfield of the Alcohol
Enforcement Unit, District of Columbia Poiice; and Mr. Milton
Skyring, clerk of the city court, Baton Rouge, La., formerly in
charge of the video program of DUI offenders, Baton Rouge City
Police Department. :

I do not want to depart in the middle of someone’s statement. I
am waiting for Senator Boschwitz to arrive.

Colonel Lough, are you going to be first?

Colonel LoucH. Yes, sir. :

Senator DoLe. OK. Please proceed, and if you see a change up
here, Senator Boschwitz will be presiding.

Again, I would say that we appreciate your taking time to come,

and we appreciate the good work you are doing in Maryland and

t}le othgar States. We also will try to follow up, and your sugges-
tions will be most helpful, as you deal with it on a daily basis.
While we deal with it in a general way, you deal with the real

1\;gorld. We are very appreciative of your coming and giving your
ime,
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TESTIMONY OF LT. COL. JOHANNY G. LOUGH, CHIEF, FIELD
OPERATIONS BUREAU, MARYLAND STATE POLICE, PIKES-
VILLE, MD.

Colonel LougH. Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the invitation to
testify in regard to the drinking driving problem. It is not a Mary-
land problem alone; it is a national problem.

In 1980, approximately 51,700 people died on our Nation’s high-
ways, and over 50 percent of those were alcohol related. In Mary-
land, 782 people died. An indepth study of those 1980 fatal acci-
dents revealed that 62 percent of the drivers, 65 percent of the pas-
sengers, and 50 percent of the pedestrians killed had a positive
blocd-alconol content. : .

On May 1 of this year, Gov. Harry Hughes and State Police Su-
perintendent Col. Thomas Smith announced the most comprehen-
sive effort ever undertaken in Maryland to identify and remove the
drunk drivers from our highways. :

In 1980, 6,212 persons were arrested for drunk driving in Mary-
land. In the first 9 months of 1981, 8,575 drivers have been arrested
for drunk driving in Maryland by the Maryland troopers. This indi-
cates a 38 percent increase over the 1980 totals. ‘

If we continue at our present rate, the projection for drunk driv-
ers by Maryland troopers alone will exceed 11,500 by the end of the
year. The statewide total by all police officers in Maryland will
exceed 20,000.

This program is also supported by a Federal grant of $150,000.
The majority of that is allocated to the payment of overtime for
our troopers. ' _

One of the most frustrating problems of our troopers is the dispo-
sition of their cases in court: 4.1 percent of the cases that the troop-
ers took to court received probation before judgment, 17 percent
were convicted of driving while intoxicated, and all others were re-
duced to a lesser charge or violation.

In 1980 Governor Hughes appointed a task force on driving while
intoxicated, and as a result of their efforts six new laws were
passed and became effective on July 1, 1981. Those six laws can be
found in the handout that I have presented today.

I would just like to comment very briefly on one of those laws.
That is, when an individual is stopped for drunken driving and re-
fuses to take the breath test, the law is that he receives a 60-day
minimum suspension of his driver’s license or a mandatory 6-
months suspension. The records of our State Motor Vehicle Admin-
istration indicate that 89 percent of those people have received a
minimum suspension and only 6 percent a maximum suspension.

Also, in addition to those figures, 20 percent have restrictions
placed on their driver’s license which permit them to drive while
their licenses are suspended. v

On August 21 of this year, the drunk driving problem took on a
new perspective for me. On that day my 8-year-oid grandson, Brian
Robertson, was struck down and killed by a drunk driver. He was a
second offender and was also driviug on a revoked license.

- When I enter my daughter’s 2ad son-in-law’s house and see the
pain and hurt in their hearts and the change in their lives, and
when I see little Laura Lamb who is paralyzed from the shoulders
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down and what a drunk driver did to that little girl, I say that it is
about time for all those people who are in responsible positions to
get off their behinds and do something about the problem. If they
do not have the fortitude to do something about this problem, then
they should get out of their jobs and be replaced by somebody who
has the guts to do the job.

Enforcement alone cannot solve the problem of the drunken
driver. All people involved with these problems must do their job
and do it well. T am talking about the law enforcement officers, the
courts, the probation departments, the motor vehicle administra-
tors, and all others dealing with the drunk driver.

I thank the Federal Government for the support that they have
given the Maryland State Police, and I would ask their continued
support. I would suggest to this subcommittee that they recom-
mend to the President of the United States that he appoint a blue
ribbon task force, not to study the problem of the drunk driver, but
deal with it on a national basis.

I thank you for the invitation once again.

Senator DoLe. Colonel, I thank you very much for that excellent
testimony. Certainly, a personal tragedy reinforces what you said.

I think we do have a responsibility. You are right: We do not
need a task force to study the prublem; we need a task force to
make strong recommendations and then put enough heat on the
Congress or on the States, depending on what the task force might
recommend, to do something. We are going to need the help and
support of men like we have on this panel. :

I am going to now ask Senator Boschwitz if he would be willing
to preside for the next 30 or 40 minutes. ‘

Senator BoscHwiTz. Certainly.

Senator DoLE. He may have some questions of the panel later.

Senator BoscHWITZ [acting chairman]. Colonel, what happened to
the driver? What kind of a suspension did that driver receive who
struck down your grandchild?

Colonel LoucH. The case has been adjudicated, sir. He was
charged with three different charges. He was charged with homi-
cide by intoxication and was found not guilty of that charge. He
was charged with driving while intoxicated and was found guilty.
He was charged with operating on a suspenaed license and was
found guilty on that charge. He was sentenced to 1 year in jail and
fined $250 for the suspended license, which will mean actually that
he will receive the fine of $250 and will be on the road again in 3
months because of good behavior in all probability.

Senator Boscewitz. The jail sentence was suspended?

Colonel LoucgH. It was not suspended. '

Senator Boscuwirz. We are certainly of a like mind.

Have each one of you on the panel already testified?

Chief M1LNER. No, sir. :

Senator BoscHwirz. In that case, would you please introduce
yourself and make your statement? .

We are going to continue the hearing until its conclusion, so
please proceed. '
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TESTIMONY OF CAPT. WAYNE LAYFIELD, ALCOHOL ENFORCE-
MENT UNIT, DISTRICT CF COLUMBIA POLICE DEPARTMENT,
WASHINGTON, D.C.

Captain LAYFIELD. For the past 2 years the District of Columbia
has recorded the lowest traffic death rate among the 50 States. The
District’s rate of 1.6 persons killed for every 100 million vehicle
miles traveled is well below the national average of 3.4.

This success has been achieved primarily through limited 402
funding. The alcohol countermeasures program led by the enforce-
ment efforts of the Metropolitan Police Department has spearhead-
ed this attack upon the No. 1 killer on the highway today, the
drunk driver. .
~ Between 1970 and 1974, prior to establishment of an alcohol
countermeasures program, traffic fatalities were at an all-time
high, with alcohol being a major factor in over 57 percent of all fa-
talities. Fewer than 900 drunk driving arrests were made per year,
and the average blood alcohol level was an astonishing .31 percent
at time of arrest.

With the assistance of 402 funding, the Metropolitan Police De-
partment was able to update its archaic programs by replacing
time-consuming processes such as urine testing, with modern

- chemical test instruments; by expanding the DUI enforcement unit

through overtime programs; and by developing new DUI arrest pro-
cedures through utilization of a mobile alcohol van for on-the-scene
testing, thereby significantly reducing arrest downtime from 6.5
hours in 1974 to less than 30 minutes in 1980.

Senator Boscawrrz. What does that mean—the amount of time
an officer’s downtime?

Captain LAyrieLD. That is correct, sir. In 1974, officers were.

down as much as 6% hours. With the advent of the new equipment
and with the advent of the mobile van, we have now reduced that
time to less than 30 minutes.

These funds also provided expansion of training programs and
over 100 officers were trained on a yearly basis in the operation of
the breathalyzer. In 1979 an automated training system for refresh-
er training of police officers was funded. This self-train computer is
equipped with an inherent feature that provides for around-the-
clock availability allowing the officer to train at his most conven-
ient and less busy time during any tour of duty. .

Funds also provided for the purchase of roadside breath testers, a
screening device used at the scene to determine borderline drunks
rat?er than utilizing less scientific methods such as psycho-motor
testing.

Through the alcohol countermeasures coordinator, a diversion
program was established under the auspices of the corporation
counsel’s office. This program permits those arrested with a .20 or
less blood alcchol level, who have no prior convictions or are not
involved in a serious accident, to be diverted from the criminal jus-
tice system, after pleading guilty, and then receive help from an
established and approved alcohol counseling center.

The cost burden of this program is totally the responsibility of
the respondent, and the recidivism rate is less than 4 percent, com-
pared to 16 to 18 percent for those who do not enter the program.

o o
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Since the implementation of these programs, there are nearly
4,000 drunk drivers arrested on a yearly basis compared with fewer
than 900 in the early 1970’s.

The average blood alcohol level has dropped from a .31 percent
at the time of arrest to .18. Traffic fatalities have decreased from
121 in 1970 to 46, an all-time low, in 1980, with alcchol being a
major factor decreasing from 57 percent to 33 percent.

These programs are the principal reasons for making the District
of Columbia the safest city in the United States to drive in. One of
the things we have to realize is that law enforcement administra-
tors have one common denominator, and that is the reduction of
crime in their community, and justifiably so.

However, as opposed to various other criminal justice programs,
highway safety does not take a front seat in many typical large
urban police departments. Rather, highway safety systems have to
be inborn; they have to be instilled through training, through
strong leadership and salesmanship; through a tie-in between high-
way functions, such as the reduction of drunk driving, and an
urban police function, such as the prevention of street crime, and
the tie-in is the understanding of the relationship between alcohol
and street crime. _

Federal highway safety programs had helped fill this gap left by
many police administrators in their commitment toward crime con-
trol and the deemphusis of traffic enforcement brought about by
this worthy objective. If this balance is to remain, then it is neces-
sary that Federal funding on a cost-sharing basis continue with
input from both local ana Federal sources in order to make our
highways the safest in the world.

In keeping with President Reagan’s philosophy of cost-efficient
programing, our alcohol countermeasures program and police traf-
fic services programs have been merged. Alcohol countermeasures
and police traffic services—that is, speed enforcement, accident in-
vestigation, et cetera—are the two predominant functions of any
urban police department’s traffic di~ision, and aggressive enforce-
pient of these two prominent causes of fatalities and serious traffic
accidents involving alcohol and speed will reduce the carnage on
our highways and our cities’ streets.

Thank you.

Senator Boscawitz. Thank you, Captain Layfield.

Our next panelist is Chief Joe Milner of the Department of
T sblic Safety, Austin, Tex.

Please proceed.

STATEMENT OF CHIEF JOE MILNER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY, AUSTIN, TEX.

Chief MiLNER. Thank you, very muck, Senator. I would like to
express my appreciation for the interest of this subcommittee in
this important subject.

I have submitted a detailed statement of my testimony, and I
would not be redundant by going through all the figures and the
statistics that the subcommittee has already taken testimony on. I
would simply state that the DWI problem is no different in Texas
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than across the Nation. It is one of our leading causes of traffic
fatalities.

From the standpoint of the enforcement officer, at the time he
confronts the drunken driver, it is not important to him whether it
happens to be a problem drinker, a social drinker, or what have
you; it is simply an immediate hazard that his job is to remove
from the highway.

You heard it mentioned earlier that it takes a great deal of time
for an officer to process a drinking driver. Obviously, while he is
processing one he is not available for enforcement of that law or
other laws.

I echo what has already been said—that perhaps stiffer penal-
ties, per se, are not the answer, but the certainty of apprehension
and the certainty of a swift adjudication with appropriate penalties

Woulq. be the greatest deterrent for reducing this, what I consider,
a nationwide problem.

That is all I have to say.

_Senator Boscuwrrz. What is your judgment on swift adjudica-
tion, and what should the penalties be, in your judgment?

Chief MiLNER. In my opinion, the greatest deterrent would be a
suspension of the driver’s license. If there was a mandatory suspen-
sion of the driver’s license of each person convicted of driving while
intoxicated, in my orinion that would create the best deterrent for
removing drinking drivers.

Senator BoscuwiITz. For what period of time?

Chief MiLNER. The period of time would be arbitrary, but 60 days
to 90 days minimum would probably be appropriate in my opinion.

Senator Boscawirz. Do you also feel that part of the statute
should not be plea bargaining—they should not be able to plead or
that charges should not be dropped for reckless driving?

Chief MILNER. Senator, the most frustrating thing to a law en-
forcement person is the lack of prosecutions. Plea bargaining is
something that occurs because of crowded dockets. The criminal
dockets of the Nation are so crowded; it is not unique to driving
while intoxicated. Crowc2d conditions force plea bargaining. It is
not a good way to handle it. I do not know of any other way, other
than increasing the staff of the prosecutor’s office.

Senator BoscHwitz. Thank you.

The next member of the panel is Mr. Milton R. Skyring, clerk of
the city court of Baton Rouge, La., and formerly in charge of the

videc; program of DUI Offenders, Baton Rouge City Police Depart-
ment.

Mr. Skyring?

STATEMENT OF MILTON R. SKYRING, CITY COURT CLERK AND
JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATOR AND PROJECT DIRECTOR, HIGH-
WAY SAFETY PROGRAM, BATON ROUGE, LA.

Mr. SkYRING. Senator, our local DWI countermeasures program
was established in 1979 with 402 seed money as a direct result of
Diane Steed’s efforts in the local community.

With the understanding that we would receive approximately $1
million for the 3-year period, we implemented an extremely com-
prehensive program. OQur program included public information and
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education, enforcement, the judiciary, probation and rehabilita-
tion, traffic records, legislation, and program management and
evaluation.

Basically, our program consists of assigning eight off-duty police
officers on Friday and Saturday nights from 8 p.m. to 6 a.m. the
following morning. This task force has two vans. Each van is
equipped with an intoxilyzer and videotape recording equipment
and sound recording equipment. Each van costs approximately
$37,000 to purchase and equip.

When the project originated, it took approximately 6 months for
an individual who was arrested to go to court. Within a matter of
90 to 120 days, we had reduced that period to 2 weeks.

We achieved this in three ways: First, a fourth division of the
city court was created to handle only DWIl-related cases. The grant
funds the judge’s salary, two clerical employees for the judge, two
clerical employees in the clerk’s office, and one courtroom bailiff.

Second, the grant funded one additional city prosecutor and a
clerical employee that handled only DWI cases in the DWI section
of the court.

Third, the grant allowed us to hire three additional probation of-
ficers to process all referrals, thereby enabling us to reduce the
presentence investigation time to 60 days. Now, from date of arrest
to date of sentencing is approximately 70 days in our court.

The videotape made at the time of arrest serves a multitude of
purposes. One of the very first experimental tapes we had was of
an individual who ran a .16. He was arrested on Saturday night,
was unable to bond out, and was brought into court for Monday
morning jail callout.

In my office we were reviewing the tapes, and someone recog-
nized the defendant as the same one as being in the courtroom. He
was brought in, and we let him review the tape with us.

Within approximately 2 minutes, he was begging us not to force
him to continue to watch the film. He was extremely embarrassed
and did not realize how he had acted under the influence of alco-
hol. It is our understanding that he subsequently sought medical
treatment for his problem.

Because of this person’s reaction to the film, we made a decision
to open the films up to defendants, defense attorneys, prosecuting
attorneys, and the probation officers.

Ironically, our preliminary figures for 1980 and 1531 show an
amazing correlation between DWI arrests recorded on videotape
and those individuals not recorded on tape. Specifically, of all cases
that went to trial and were found guilty by the judge, there was
only a l-percent difference between those on tape and those not on
tape.

Likewise, with those who went to trial and were found not guilty
by the judge, again, there was only a 1-percent difference. The larg-
est variation was in the area of “changed plea to guilty prior to
trial.” In this instance, 6 percent of all individuals whu are taped
plead guilty prior to trial.

Based on our findings—and, again, these are only after 1 year—
we would not recommend that every agency desirous of improving
their DWI conviction rate run out and purchase expensive video-
tape recording equipment.
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We do not profess to have the answers to the multitude of prob-
lems presented by the individuals who are driving while under the
influence. However, of the major cities in Louisiana where histori-
cally the number of serious accidents have been steadily increasing
each year, for the first time in Baton Rouge this numter has been
held at a constant figure for 2 years now—the same time as the
inception of our program. We would like to think that this is due to
our program. From October 1980 to September 1981, our conviction
rate has been 98 percent.

Finally, in closing, the greatest difference between our program
and the previous alcohol safety action projects is that ours includes
a legislatively mandated judgeship.

When Federal and State funding runs out in September of next
year, our program will continue and all the ancillary positions with

it. The only thing we will suffer is the lack of the public informa-
tion and education portion. )

Thank you.

Senator Boscuwirz. Let me say that you seem to have spread
this money quite a way. I see you had 11 additional people, as far
as I can judge, plus the vans, plus the eight off-duty police officers.
You have got a lot of mileage out of the money, I must say.

Pardon my ignorance; I am not a member of this committee, but
I am here because of my interest in the subject. I testified earlier
this morning, and Senator Dole asked me to conduct the hearing.

That videotape seems to me to be a very effective mechanism,
but you say that you do not recommend the videotape for each
individual department. :

Mr. SkYRING. Again, our figures are only based on 1 year’s activi-
ty; the_y are preliminary at best. They are very successful at the
probation end and the treatment portion of our program. It assists
the judiciary; it takes out the subjectiveness of the police testimo-
ny. The officer testifies that, “He swayed.” The gentleman is sit-
ting in front of the judge in his three-piece suit and is quite reputa-
ble in the community, yet on videotape this individual was swaying
and staggering.

Senator Boscuwirz. Is that admissible as evidence?

Mr. SKYRING. Yes, sir. We have been taken all the way up to the
Supreme Court.

Senator BoscHwiTz. So it is admissible. That would be something
t;ha‘t:s1 ?Would be very powerful. Is it something that has been widely
used?

Mr. SkYRING. As far as we understand, no other local court is
using it anywhere in the Nation. It is being used for arraignment
purposes, but it is not being used for trials. I may be incorrect.

Colonel Loucs. It is being used in Anne Arundel County.

Captain Layrirup. In the District of Columbia, we have used it
for the past 3 years. We did quit the use of it because of one major
factor, and that was the cost involved. You cannot continue to
rerun the same tapes, because they become evidentiary materials,
and they have to be preserved. When you make nearly 4,000 ar-
rests a year, that calls for a lot of funds to pay for a lot of tapes

that have to be preserved until such time as the case has been ad-
judicated.




78

Senator Boscawitz. I see. Are you able to get the cases through
as speedily as they are down in Baton Bouge?

Captain LAYFIELD. Thanks to our diversion program, we have a
very high percentage going into this program now, which means
that it really speeds up the total picture of the case. o

Senator Boscuwirz. Colonel, do you use that kind of thing in

ryland?
M%osionel LoucH. No; we have a problem with that. Our cases run
anywhere from 60 days to possibly 3 months before they are adjudi-
ted.
caSenator Boscawitz. You have to hold on to the tapes? How long
do you hold on to them? o

Mr. SKYRING. Thirty days, unless the individual takes an appeal.
After 30 days, his right to appeal has gone.

Senator BoscawiTz. So you reuse the tapes?

Mr. SkyrRING. Yes, sir. We can reuse the tapes as many as 30
times. ' ]

Colonel LoucH. But in Maryland we are not using the tapes in
the State police. Anne Arundel County is using them, but I think
they keep them for well over 1 year. .

Senator Boscawitz. Staff tells me he does not think such a tape
would be admissible in Maryland. .

Mr. VELDE. That was the problem with the Sting cases. We could
admit the audio portion but not the video under the rules of evi-
dence in Maryland as far as the Sting was concerned; I do not
know about the DWI cases. o .

Colonel LougH. I believe they are admitting the videotape por-
tion on DWI in Anne Arundel County. They are admissible.

Senator Boscawirz. It is always a pleasure to listen to the expe-
riences of Baton Rouge. Do you do that down in Texas, too?

Chief MiLNER. In various counties we have used that, but be-
cause, as mentioned, we file about 80,000 DWI cases a year, we just
could not afford the cost of that on a statewide basis. It has not
proven, at least on a very limited basis, that much better convic-
tion rate.

Senator Boscuwirtz. But you say that when the defendant sees
himself staggering around—— o _

Mr. SkYRING. As far as conviction goes, no, sir, it has not im-
proved our conviction rate at all. We handle approximately 3,000
DWTI's a year, and 98 percent of those plead guilty or are found
guilty. Of that number, fewer than 50 percent are on videotape.
Those figures I have used are only with videotape. . .

Senator BoscHwitz. Let me turn to the staff for a minute, inas-
much as I am not a member of this committee, and ask if tl}ey
have any questions or if there is anything further we should elicit
from these witnesses.

Mr. VeELog. Thank you, Senator. _ _

Have you ever experimented with officers using mobile portable
television equipment actually on the scene of the arrest?

Mr. SkYRING. That is what we have. _

Mr. VELDE. Oh, that is what you do. I thought it was back at the
station.

Mr. SkYRING. No, sir. We have two vans that are out on the road.
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Mr. VELDE. It is commonly used, I understand, in the station in
other jurisdictions.

Mr. SkYRING. I think that points up the lack of communication
between jurisdictions.

Mr. VELbE. Have any of your officers had experience with the
National Driver’s Registry?

Colonel LoucH. We participate in it; yes, sir.

Mr. VELDE. Did you use the Inlet system?

Colonel LoucH. Yes; we did.

Mr. VELDE. Inlet is still in operation, as I understand it,

What about the overall problem of exchanging driver record in-
formation with other jurisdictions? Do you have a problem in
Texas of persons with a revoked license status in Texas going to
other States, getting new driver’s licenses, or assuming another
name in Texas and getting back on the roads with a license under
false pretenses? ‘

Chief MiLNER. We do have problems, but I do not know the
extent of them. We notice it primarily in interstate long-haul truck
drivers who are commeonly licensed in many States. A suspension
to some of them in one State is not much of a deterrent,

Mr. VELDE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Boscuwirz. Let me ask a question that the staff has
posed. Do public attitudes toward drunk driving cause the public to
resent your enforcement efforts? I wonder, Colonel, if you would
speak briefly on that, and we will ask each one of you to speak.
What are the public attitudes toward your enforcement of statutes
with respect to drunk driving?

Colonel Lougs. I think the public attitude is probably one of the
most difficult problems we have in the enforcement of the drunk
driving laws. As other testimony indicated here today, many of the
people who are arrested for drunk driving are very reputable
people in the community. As they said, “There, but for the grace of
God, go I.” They are social drinkers. The old saying, “I just had one
for the road,” or one too many is probably not true. The statistics
are showing that not to be true now. Many of the people who are
being arrested now are shown to have, as a result of the breath
tests and the blood tests, to have a very high concentration of blood
fllcohol. The attitude of the general public is a very serious prob-
em.

Senator BoscHwITz. Are you saying that the public in general ob-
jects to your enforcement of these procedures, or are you saying
that those who are arrested object? Of course those who are arrest-
ed object.

Colonel LouGH. They really do not object to people being arrest-
ed so much; I think it is more just a general apathy on their part.
It has not really struck home to the people.

For example, my own daughter who comes from s police family,
did not realize that the drunk driving was really a serious problem
until it struck in her home and her son Brian was killed on August
21; she did not realize it was really a problem; the apathy was
there in the police family.

Senator Boscuwir~. I wonder if any of the others on the panel
want to discuss the public attitude toward drunk driving and
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whether there is resentment with respect to the enforcement that
ou do.

Y Captain LAYFIELD. Senator, I think that “apathy” is a very good
word to describe the problem that exists. I think that generally the
community wants to see the law enforced, but when they are sit-
ting in the jury box and they are hearing a case, they put them-
selves in the shoes of the defendant and say, “Well, I have done the
same thing. I was just fortunate in not getting caught.” I think
that apathy does exist very, very much.

Yet the public does say, “Well, we want it enforced, but don’t en-
force it against me; enforce it against everyone else out there who
is drinking.” I think this is the general feeling. Alcohol abuse itself
is a problem in the District of Columbia, as you may be aware.
There is more alcohol consumed in the District per capita than
anywhere in the United States. Without question, alcohol is a prob-
lem, especially in the District, and especially when you have a jury.
The chances are that some member of that jury may be an alcohol-
ic as well.

Colonel LouGH. One of the very first things that you hear asked
by a wife when she finds out her husband has been arrested for
drunk driving is, “Will it be in the local newspaper?”’ She asked
that before she finds out how drunk her husband was. They are
just more concerned about the embarrassment that it is going to
cause.

Chief MiLnER. The public supports a vigorous enforcement pro-
gram. I think the public apathy, as has been mentioned here, is re-
flected more in jury decisions or judges’ decisions than actual en-
forcement. They are all for removing the drunk driver from the
road. I think they recognize the problem there. It is only later that,
when you talk about the seriousness of the penalty, it is not related
to the problem.

Senator BoscawiTz. Do you have anything to add to that?

Mr. SKYRING. No. We have the complete support of our local
community. No one is against us in our enforcement.

Senator Boscewitz. We thank you, gentlemen, for coming here
today and testifying and participating in this important issue.

[The prepared statements of Colonel Lough, Chief Milner, and
Mr. Skyring follow:]
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PREPARED S\'I}ATEMENT oF CoL. Jounny G, LoueH

Mr. Chairman, other distinguished members of the Sub~committee,

I thank you for the invitation to testify on the problems dealing with

drunk drivers.

INTRODUCTION

A highway safety problem that has been addressed numerous times
and in diverse ways by Qarious groups within our society is the per-
sistent problem of the drinking driver and how the drinking driver
significantly correlates with the fatality rate on our highways.

The problem is not a State of Maryland problem alone, it is a
national problem. Preliminary estim;tes by NHTSA reveal that 51,700
lives were lost for the year 1980 due to traffic crashes. An average
of 14Z persons a day died from this senseless slaughter on our high-
ways. It is estimated that fifty percent of the deaths in traffic
crashes in the United States every year are alcohol-related, Maryland
experienced 782 highway fatalities in 1980. Of these fatél crashes,
60.2% of the victims tested had a positive BAC. Cost estimates by
the National Safety Council for 1979 revealed that motor vehicle acci-
dents cost the nation in excess of $35 billion. The Insurance Institute
on Highway Safety reports that since 1975 the total monetary loss

in highway crashes is second only to cancer in total dollars spent.

HISTORICAL REVIEW

Ever since the automobile began to make its appearance on our
streets and highways, we have been confronted by the hazard of the
drinking driver. It was not until 1968, however, that significant
efforts on DWI enforcement began with the Highway Safety Act of 1966,
and the 1968 Report to Congress on Alcohol and Highway Safety that
formed the basis for Alcohol Safety Action Projects (ASAPS). In

1979, NHTSA announced a renewed emphasis on curbing the drunk driver.

In the spring of 1980, Governor Harry Hughes of Maryland organized
a statewide task force in an effért to address the drinking driver
dilemma.

A review of Maryland's fatal accidents for 1980 revealed that
a low percentage of alcohol related crashes were being reported.
Further study found that the medical examiner's results showed a

greater alcohol involvement than the actual accident report. This
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prompted an indepth study of 1980 fatal agcidents which revealed that
" 627 of the drivers, 65% of the passengers, and 507 of the pedestrians
killed had a positive BAC: Seven out of ten of the driving victims
had BAC levels at or above the legal limit of .10%.

On May 1, 1981, Go&ernor Harry Hughes and State Police Super-
intendent Thomas S. Smith announced the most comprehensive effort
ever undertaken in Maryland to identify and remove drunk drivers
from the highway,

Our emphasis is being supported in part by a $150,000 federal
highway safety grant that pays a Trooper overtime to patrol roads
which have been identifjed as having a high number of alcohol related
accidents. Troopers also received additional tréining in ways to
spot drunk drivers and are using a special detection guide that
was developed by NHTSA.

POLICE ENFORCEMENT OF DWI
In 1980, 6,212 DWI arrests were made by the Maryland State

Police. During the first nine months of 1981, there have been 8,575
DWI arrests by our Troopers. This represents a 387 increase over
the 1980 total. A projection fog 1981 is that our Troopers will
apprehend nearly 11,500 drinking drivers. Furthermore, it is pro-
jected that 1981 statewide‘figureg Vill exceed 20,700 drinking driver
arrests.

A review of at fault drivers killed and tested in fatal crashes
for the first six months of 1981 revealed that 76.2% had positive

BAC. Additionally, 447 of the persons killed that were tested for

BAC during the same period had BAC at or above the legal limit of .10%.

As of May 1, 1981, Maryland was +12.3% in fatalities over the
same period in 1980. Our DWI program began on May 1, 1981 and as of
October 1, 1981, the fatalities were at +3.8% over 1980 figures.

0f those fataiities tested for BAC prior to program implementa-

tion, 60.2% of those victims tested hgd positive BAC. This percent

was consistent with the 1980 figures.

Of those fatalities tested for BAC during the second four month
period, 56.6% were found to have positive BAC., This represents a

3.6% reduction in overall aleohol related deaths when compared to

1980 figures.
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Total fatalities tested for BAC during the first eight months
of 1981 revealed a 58.4% BAC. This is a 1.8% reduction in aleohol
related fatalities when compared to the 60.2% for 1980,

The quantity of arrests has increased but the quality has not
diminished. We are, however, arresting a greater number of intoxi-
cated drivers with levels of .05 or more.

In 1968, a major study by the U,S. Department of Transportation
revealed that those with drinking problems, as well as social drinkers,
contributed disproportionately to highway deaths. Individuals with
chronic drinking problems were found to be responsible for about

two-thirds of the alcohol related deaths. Most ‘recent studies by

NHTSA in 1979 revealed that statistics compiled on drunk drivers
each year contradict the pobplar notion -f the poor guy who only
had one too many - 45 to 75% of drivers at fault in fatal crashes
were severely impaired by alecohol. The majority of drunk drivers
at fault in the more than 20,000 aleohol-related fatal crashes each
year are at or above the .10% blood alecohol level of intoxication.

LEGISLATION VS. ENFORCEMENT

The authority under which police apprehend and arrest drivers
for DWI is provided by state and municipal statutes that make it
unlawful to drive while intoxicated. While these statutes present
a legal framework within which the police officer may act, they also
are designed ‘to prctect tﬁe constitutional guarantees of individual
citizens,

Elements of the offense of DWI are subject to considerable
variations according to statutes of different states. Legal require-
ments dictate the nature and sequence of particular steps that the
police must follow. Thus, the officers must establish probable cause
prior to arrest, including detection of erratic drivirng behavior
and observation or testing the suspect.

Disposition of DWI cases administered by the Maryland State
Police in 1980 revealed that 4.1% received probation before Jjudgment,
Only 17% of all cases disposed of in 1980 received a DWT conviction.
The other cases were either lesser included offenses or dispbged of
by other means (reduced to another violation). Often, some law

enforcement officers perceived their efforts to apprehend and conviect
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the DWI offender as a futile attempt at best. A manifestation of their

cynicism permeates the criminal justice system and creates an unwill-

ingness on the part of law enforcement to divert manpower and resources

toward this traffic offense. According to most studies, public atti-

tudes may be the greatest single obstacle to a successful attack on
the problem of drinking and driving.

A package of six new laws which was developed by the Governmor's
Task Force on the Drinking Driver was signed into law by Governor

Harry Hyghes and became effective July 1, 1981. One law allows police

to conduct a roadside preliminary breath test of persons suspected
of driving drunk. This pre-arrest screening device can be used to
help to determine if the driver should be arrested.

Another law mandates a minimm license suspension of two months
ar.d provides for up to a six month maximum suspension for drivers
who refuse to take an evidentiary chemical test for alcohol once
they have been charged by a police officer with driving under the
influence. Another new law authorizes the arresting police officer
to determine the type of test to be administered when a motorist
initially selected one but later decides to change to another test
which is uﬁavailable within specified time limits.

Professional drivers will no longer be able to get an extension

of points in licensing actions where the subsequent points result

from an alechol conviction. The previous law allowed certain pro-

fessional drivers to accumulate 16 points before license suspension,

even if they had an alcohol conviction.
Under another law, the Motor Vehicle Administration will record

probation before judgment for alcohol offenses on the person's driving

record,
The sixth new law reduces the permissible blood alcohol level

for drivers using Maryland's highways.
Driving under the influence has been lowered from .10% BAC to
.08% BAC and driving while intoxicated has been lowered from .15% BAC

to .137% BAC.

RECOMMENDATIONS ON HOW LAW ENFORCEMENT PROCESSING OF DWI MAY
BE IMPROVED

1. Creation of a'Natioﬁal Blue Ribbon Task Force by the Presi-
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dent of the United States, not to study the problem of the* drunk
dri
Triver, but to address the problems encounktered by law enforéement
officers gnd others in removing the drunk driver from the highway
2. Creation of a National Breath Test Law whichrﬁ;ﬁld.set
mini i 3 ini '
imum requirements for training and instrument performance standards
3. .
Federal assistance in developing training programs for the
d i i '
eteétlon and apprehension of the drinking driver, This would include
audio visual aids, lesson plans and student guides‘
4' - - i
Federal assistance in the development of an accurate in-car
breath testing instrument,
5.. Streamline state laws for the arrest and Processing of
DWI offenders.
6. ] .
Federal statute which pProtects medical persons from eivil
liability who withdraw blood from persons arrested for DWI
6. i : i ’ |
Creation of a National Standard which would allow the results
of chemical tests to be admitted into evidence without tﬁe rerson

who conducted the test to be present unless summonsed by the defendant

SUMMARY

On August 21, 1981, the problem of the drunk driver took on an
entirely different perspective to me, My eight year old grandson
Brian Robertson, was killed py a second offender drunk driver He

was also driving on revoked license. When I visit my daughter and

son-in-law's home and see the loss, pain and change in their lives,
and what I feel ir my own beart and that of my wife, I realizé its |
time that those people in responsible pPositions do something about
this problem or be replaced by people who will.

Enforcement alone cannot provide a complete solution to the
problem of the drinking driver,

Drinking and driving constitutes a national highway safety
problem that the states have attempted to deal effectively with
for many years. Continued support from the Federal govermment in
the areas Previously addressed through the Highway Safety Act and
further support b& the Federal government of our recommendations
directed at unifying state efforts lo address this national menace

is necessary to deal with the problem,

-
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Jot E. MILNER

i

Mr. Chajrman and Committee Members, on behelf of the Texas
Department of Publ{c Safety I wish to express our appreciation for
the opportunity to testify on this 1mportant matter. The following
comments regarding the prob1em of driving while intoxicated are sub-
mitted for your consideration

The drinking driver's effect on the safety of citizens travel-
ing the streets and highways is comparable to a ma]ignan; condition.
Alcohol's influence on drivers has resulted in a devastating toll of
deaths, mangied bodies, and an astronomical economic Toss to¢ society.
Driving while intoxicated in Texas during 1980 was the primary con-
tributing factor in 875 fatal accidents; 1,006 traffic deaths; 15,464
injury accidents; 24,919 personal injuries; and 17,501 property damage

accidents for a total oF 33,840 accidents. Using the National Safety

Council's formula, the economic loss was estimated to be $685 million

statewide, the drinking driver attributed to 23% of the fatal traffic
accidents. The problem reflected in these statistics will probably
become much worsef%n\oun state due to the projected population in-
creases, economic arowth and business vitality of the sunbelt region.
Statistical data avajlable in Texas on alcohol related motor vehicle
accidents does not accurately measure the magnitude of this problem.

' We do not have statutory -authority for chemical testing of deceased
or disabled accident victims but based on findings from states that
have that authority, drinking drivers are 1nv01ved in 50% of all
fatal accidents, _

Enforcement of driving while intoxicated statutes has encountered
Timitations that can be attributed to inadequate resources. With in-
creased pubTic demand for police services in other areas, the re-
sources committed to traffig Taw enforcement by some administrators
are not sufficient to contrel or reduce the problem. There is just
not an adequate deterrent to drunk driving at the present time.

Texas Department of Pub]ic Safety troopers fi.ed 40,273 dr1v1ng while
intoxicated cases ia 1980. The state total of arrests in 1980 1s not
available, however, breath alcohol tests were conducted on 81,220

drivers Although this department's troopers continue to vigorously

enforce the driving while intoxicated statutes and do succeed in
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momentarily removing the hazardous driver from the streets and high-
ways, a significant number of persons arrested.are never brought to
trial. The most apparent reasons for Tack of prosecution are crowded
dockets in the existing courts and 1imited staffing of prosecuting
attorneys. This problem is not unique to the prosecution of driving
while intoxicated cases as it affects all criminal cases in the

criminal justice system. This indicates that increased funding is.

needed to expand the judicial system to meet the demand and ensure

a speedy trial for persons charged w1th offenses Cases and dispo-

sitions were as follows:

Total DWI Charge ' Not Local No Pros-
Year Arrests  Guilty Changed Probated Acquitted Located Dismissal ecution Other
1978 40621 6073 1919 18764 112 77 2308 6372 612
1979 40801(/' 7353 3433 23035 205 182 3492 7291 935
1980 40273 6689 2474 12101 131 110 2179 6256 6963*

* Includes 6326 arrests which resulted in deferred adjudication.

The Texas Legislature has amended the Misdemeanor Adult Probatjon
Act relating to driving while intoxicated effective January 1, 1982
which will allow the courts to require defendants as a condition of

probation to attend an educational program. The objectives of the

Program are to rehgbilitate persons who have been convicted of driving

while 1ntqnfcated. This educational program must be jointly approved
by the Texas Commission‘on Alcoholism, Texas Department of Public
Safety, Traffic Safety Sectlan of the State Department of Highways and
Public Transpontation and the Texas Adult Probation Commission.
Driyens licenses of persons who complete the program shall not be
automatically suspended. Failure to successfully complete the pro-
gram as a condition of probation requires automatic suspension of a
penson's‘driveps Ticense for a period of twelve months. This depart-
ment nas supported tpe requirement of an educational program upon
conviction to qualify for dr&vens‘11cense reinstatement; however,
rehgbi]itation»programs allow judicial discretign with good cause in
dealing with dfffening &haracteristics of offenders.
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The current trends in resolving this complex problem continue

to suggest the majority of the impetus should be enforcement and

adjudication with appropriate penalty. Historically, the citizens

" of this country seem to accept the horrendous loss from traffic ac-

cidents simply because they are categorized as accidents. Before

major reductions will be achieved, the state of citizen apathy and

disinterest must be reversed.. Therefore, public education and in-

volvement should become a high priority. It is time we p]ace traffic

safety education in the classrooms of this nation where attitudes can
be developed at an early age prior to the development of traditional

social attitudes toward the use of alcohol. Needed legisiative re-

sponse would follow widespread public support of alcohol counter-
measures, Significant public awareness and participation must be
achieved before new and innovative tdeas will achieve desired results.

The role of the federal level should be that of leadership and

supplemental funding to promote successful programs. Research in

enforcement strategies, public education, etc. should be of utmost
importance to provide expertise in program development. Implementa-
tion of programs can best be addressed by local authorities at the
state énd Tocal levels.

It is essential for our citizens! safety that the number of
drinking drive;s on our streets and highways be reduced significantly.
The combined efforts of Congress, State Legislatures, GovefnmentaT
Agencies, and Citizen Groups will be required. The most {mportant
chai]e&ge is a successful campaign to change citizen and 1ﬁdividua1
driver attitudes and modify behavior patterns regqrd1ng traffic
safety. Without this accomplishment, no real sustained progress to
resolve the problem of drinking drivers will be achieved:

In summary, the DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED PROBLEM is serious and
complex. A successful program will involve (1) Federal leadership
and funding sapport of local safety programs; (2) research to develop
more effective strategies; (3) countermeasures based on enforcement
and adjudication with appropriate penalty; (4)rehabilitation of
problem déinkers; and (5) public education to obtajn broad public

support,

i R e

Nt BN Nk oy b it b

~s Mg

o

NI < Mlanitn. SR

89

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MILTON R. SKYRING

My name is Milton R. Skyring. I am the clerk and judicial administrator for the
Baton Rouge city court. Additionally, I am the project director for the Baton Rouge
highway safety committee. We serve approximately 219,000 people within the city
limits and approximately 368,000 within the county or parish,

Our local DWI counter measures program was established in 1979 with 402 seed
money. Under the terms of the grant and through local initiative we established a
comprehensive DWI counter measures program which includes: (1) Public informa-
tion and education; (2) Enforcement; (3) The Judiciary; (4) Probation and Rehabilita-
tion; (5) Traffic Records; (6) Legislation; and (7) Program management and evalua-
tion. ’

With the understanding that the grant would total approximately $1 million over
a three year period. We were able to make projections on how to plan our campaign
against driving while under the influence of alcohol.

Basically, through statistics furnished to us from the Louisiana highway safety
commission, we assign 8 off-duty police officers, working extra duty, Friday and Sat-
urday nights from 8 p.m. to 6 a.m. We have 2 DWI vans furnished with the intoxi-
lyzer and video taping and sound recording equipment. Each van costs about $37,000
to equip and purchase.

When the project originated it took nearly 6 months from date of arrest to date of
trial. Trial dates are now set two weeks after arraignment. This reduction in admin-
istrative delay was achieved in 3 ways: First, a fourth division of court was achieved
through legislation to handle only DWI's and relatc? .ases. The grant funds the
judges salary: 2 minute clerks for the judge: 2 additio .al clerical employees in the
clerk’s office and one bailiff for the courtroom: Second, the grant funds 1 additional
city prosecutor and 1 clerical employee in the prosecutor’s office who handle only
DWTI cases: Third, and finally the grant allowed us to add 3 additional probation
officers to process all referrals, thereby enabling us to reduce the pre-sentence in-
vestigation time to 60 days. Total time from arrest to sentencing is about 70 days.

The video tape made at the time of arrest has served a multitude of purposes. If I
might add a short anecdote here, one of our very first experimental films was of an
individual who ran a .16. The individual was arrested on Saturday, was unable to
post bond, and appeared in court Monday for jail call-out. At the same time on
Monday morning we were reviewing the video tapes for proper sequence of arrests
procedures, lighting, sound, etc. someone recognized the defendant as the same
person in the courtroom and he was brought in to review the film. After less than 2
minutes of a 20 minute film the person begged us not to force him to continue to
watch the film. He stated he did not realize how he acted under the influence of
?lcohol and as we appreciate it he voluntarily sought medical attention for his prob-

em,

Because of this person’s reaction we subsequently made the video tapes available
to probation officers, defense attorneys and the defendant. .

Since the film records the entire arrest procedure the arresting officer has had to
become more precise in the arresting process. Of the 2 percent not guilty and 1 per-
cent dismissed in 1980-81 few of these can be attributed to officer error,

Ironically, our preliminary figures for 1980-81 show an amazing correlation be-
tween DWI arrests recorded on video tape and those not recorded on tape. Specifi-
cally, of all cases that went to trial and were found “guilty” by the Judge there is
only a 1-percent difference between those on tape and those not on tape. Similarly,
of all cases that went to trial and were found “not guilty” by the judge, there is
again only a 1 percent difference between the 2. The largest variation i5 in the area
of “changed plea to guilty” prior to trial. In this instance 6 percent more people on
video tape changed plea than those not on tape. '

Based on our findings I would not recommend that every agency desirous of im-
proving their DWI conviction rate run out and purchase expensive video tape re-
cording equipment. :

Additionally, over a 2-year period we were able to raise the penalty for DWI from
a ;Faximum of $200 and/or 60 days in jail to a maximumi of $500 and/or 180 days in
jail. ; : ,

We don’t profess to have the answers to the multitude of problems presented by ’7{/,/4,,7,<.

the individual who is driving while under the influence, However, of the major”
cities in Louisiana, where historically the number of serious accidents have/,bé/en
steadily increasing each year, for the first. time in Baton Rouge this numbér has
been held at a constant figure for 2 years in a row. ° "
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We would like to think this is due to our checkmate program. From October 1980
to September 1981 our convictioi: rate was 98 percent of all persons arrested for

DWL
And finally, in closing, the greatest difference between our program and other al-

cohol safety action projects of the past is that ours includes a legislatively created
judgeship. When Federal/State funding ends in October 1982 the judge’s position
and all ancillary offices will continue. The only function of this program that will

cease is the public information and education portion.

Senator Boscawirz. At this time we will call on the panel consist-
ing of representatives of the medical statistics profession: Dr. Roger
Maickel, head of the Department of Pharmacology and Toxicology
of the School of Pharmacy and Pharmacal Sciences of Purdue Uni-
versity; Dr. Alasdair Conn, medical director of the field operations
program, Maryland Institute for Emergency Medical Systems, Bal-
timore, Md.; and Prof. Leonard Schifrin of the Department oif Eco-
nomics, College of William and Mary, Williamsburg, Va.

Is Professor Schifrin here?

[No response.]
Senator BoscuwIrz. I understand that Professor Schifrin had to

be elsewhere at 2 o’ciock. We will include his statement in the

record. j
In that cage, Dr. Maickel, would you proceed?

STATEMENT OF DR. ROGER MAICKEL, HEAD, DEPARTMENT OF
PHARMACOLOGY AND TOXICOLOGY, SCHOOL OF PHARMACY
AND PHARMACAL SCIENCES, PURDUE UNIVERSITY, WEST LA-

FAYETTE, IND.

Dr. MaickeL. Thank you. I really appreciate the opportunity to
participate in this hearing. '

I am interested in the drinking driver, and I think a distinction
needs to be made between the drinking driver and the drunk
driver because of the problem of defining what is drinking or

drunkenness.
If you assume that 75 to 90 percent of all motor vehicle accidents

are due to human factors—and this would include impairment be-
cause of one reason or another—then you have different types of
impairment, which creates a problem. :

TERMINOLOGY

Terms such as DWAI—driving while ability is impaired—DUI—
driving under the influence, which could mean any drug—or
DWI—driving while intoxicated, which generally refers specifically
to alcohol—have no pharmacological specificity. They may have
legal specificity, but they certainly do not have it pharmacological-

ly.
" BAG
We do know—and this is well documented; it has been document-
ed for at least 40 years—that there is a significant impairment of
human behavior, the type of behavior that is required to perform

in a motor vehicle operating situation, at a blood alcohol level of
about .08 and up. This is well documented in studies all over the

world.

91

Senator BoscawiTz Doctor, let i
. . » 1et me once again
tlslﬁlder§tand1ng of some of the terminology. \%/'hategggse S?)E;n ; Iacl; .S[) y
at eight-tenths of 1 percent? | T meanss

Dr. MaickeL. Thi 113
milliliters of blood.l,SI refers to a blood level of 8 milligrams per 100

basis in the blood.

Sterf‘t}élss __1% 8th(?l Oenti{f'e basis‘ for the implied consent laws in most
Srates—.08, .10, A2, or .15-—-—_Wh1ch is taken as some sort of stand-
5 10 many cases prima facie evidence of intoxication
Denall\ilzlor BOSCHIWITZ. .08 is eight-tenths? '
r. MAICKEL. In ' i : i
Eusrope, T some States and in many countrles of Western
enator BoscHwrrz. Is that ej h
. 1ght-tenths of 1 ?
Dr. Maickzr. Yes; under this computed situaﬁ%ﬁfent'
Senator Boscawrrz, Thank you. .

DPRUGS OTHER THAN ALCOHOL

There is another confoundin i
: : Inding' variable that need -
Thore s bocn - o oF il hat ofher drugs may e myoive
- : controversy over this. I know th '
tional Highway Traffic Safet Adming L ow that the Na-
tive looking-into to see Whetli:ar r ot theion has done some effec-
et T 2 0 t there is a probl
clusion basically, to date at leasi? s, ¢ o problem. The con-
) ) 1 » 18, “Perhaps there is:
ably is, but we can’t pin it dow 1Sd ps there is; there prob-
other hand, we most aosn s 1 and say definitely there is. On the
? t say that there i »
Where do I see the role of tl};ec?i'nd { e 15 50 problem,
i $ . o, al Government? V. i
In three things: Facilitate the creai'er e Very simply,
e 1on of a national stand d
PEr se or implied consent law for I > ard and a
blood alcohol level is either at .08 1 G fevocation where the
) v V5 or .1. Get the exist; T
:ﬁfnrgage?gr he}\pmg the States and local jurisdictions E)galgxl]c{iiggg
g er. And, as much as possible, prevent new DWI’s from

getting on the road b E fge
across the country, Y educating, by assisting as much as possible

Thank you.
“Senator Boscawrrz, Thank you very much,

Dr. Conn, you are the medical  di
, Irector for the fj i
program of the Maryland Institute for Emergegc;elﬁe(()igg;? tlSO;::
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STATEMENT OF DR. ALASDAIR CONN, MEDICAL 1 .

FIELD OPERATIONS PROGRAM, MARYLAND INSTITUTE FOR
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SYSTEMS, BALTIMORE, MD.

Dr. Conn. Yes, sir.

Senator BoscHawitz. What is that? S

Dr. Conn. It is a combination, sir, of two organizations. I am
speaking here in the capacity of medical director of the field oper-
ations program for the State of Maryland. That means I am re-
sponsible for the medical direction of approximately 1?,000 emer-
gency medical technicians and 1,200 paramedics within the State of
Maryland. That is only part of my job. I am also a practicing sur-
geon, and I work at the Baltimore Shock Trauma Center.

Senator Boscawitz. I cmﬁld tiall from listening to you that you

m Maryland. [Laughter. _

W%i. féc())NN. Asy you a[re probably aware, within the _State of Mary-
land we have a Baltimore Shock Trauma Center serving as the cen-
tral hub with nine peripheral trauma centers, and these are all
linked by the Maryland State Police medivac helicopters. We have
10 helicopters with paramedics on bogrd. o

Severe accidents, industrial explosions, and other Maryland citi-
zens who have sustained acute trauma are ﬂoyvn fron} the scene,
and rather than being taken to the closest hospital, which may not
have the facilities to be able to deal with that pa.rtlgular problem,
they are flown to one of these trauma centers. Within t1_1esq hospi-
tals, obviously, we have got mandated immediate availability of
surgeons, anasthesiologists, operating rooms, and so.forth. _

Within the Central Baltimore Shock Trauma Unit, we deal with
approximately 1,400 patients per year. They are the most severe
accidents in the State whose population is 4.2 million. Our figures
indicate that approximately 60 percent of these admissions are
from road accidents, drivers and passengers of automobiles, pedes-
trians, or motor cyclists. o .

As part of the admission procedure, every patient who comes in
has a serum alcohol measure. Of those people coming in from road
accidents, 50 percent have detectable alcohol in their blood stream,
and four out of five of those have a level of greater than .1.

Annually, as you have heard from the statistics from the Sjcate of
Maryland, approximately 700 people are killed in traffic accidents.
What the Governor’s task force looked at was the number of people
of the drivers at fauit in those fatal accidents. A level of alcohol
was detected in over 90 percent of those drivers. . R

When we are dealing with an intoxicated drl_ver, it trgms].ates
into a considerable financial expense. Every patient who is flown
into the Baltimore Shock Trauma Unit only stays with us duz:mg
intensive care, an average of about 12 to 14 days, and his medical
expenses are some $12,000. o

Althought I have pointed out some figures of some of the pa-
tients who come in, I do not know the ﬁgupes of the intoxicated
driver in the large car hitting the small car with the two citizens—
driver and passenger—going around ?bout their daily busmqss:
Those figures are very difficult to obtain, but what you are seeing
is probably the tip of the iceberg.
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To put this into national perspective, as we have heard, the
impact is staggering. The cost of trauma care—accident care—this
year will be approximately $82 billion, and 115,000 Americans will
die of trauma accidents, :

I believe Senator Dole referred earlier to the Vietham war,
where 45,000 U.S. soldiers were killed by the enemy. In the same
period of time, 274,000 Americans died on the highway as a direct
consequence of alcohol intoxication.

We have heard a lot of suggestions about what we can do to help
this problem. Medically, I have only a few. One is the continuation
of the drive for dedicated trauma centers.

This initiative was only just begun 2 or 3 Years ago on a national
basis. Prof. Francis Small, professor of surgery at Harvard, recog-
nized this in his Scudder oration to the American College of Sur-
geons in October of 1981.

I also would stress that managing accidents in this way in dedi-
‘cated trauma units we can probably eradicate the death rate or cut
it down by approximately one-third, but if we are going to tackle
the problem we have got to begin at the basis—that is, getting the
drunk driver, identifying him early, removing him from the road,
and perhaps rehabilitating him correctly. .

As a sideline to that, we in the shock trauma unit deal with this
by bringing in some of these young offenders, They look at some of
the victims that we manage, and they look at the trauma that
these victims have sustained, and that small pilot project does
seem to be working. ‘

I thank you for your attention.

Senator Boscuwrrz. Thank you. I know the light is on, but have

%ro"i;l concluded your statement and made all the points you want
07

Dr. Conn. I believe 80; yes, sir. I have given a small written com-
ment, and that covers the major points.

Senator BoscuwiTz. We will put the entirety of it in the record,
so that the record is complete, .

Dr. ConnN. Thank you, sir.

Senator BoscHwiTz. Doctor, did you also have a statement?

Dr. MAICKEL. Yes, you have a copy of it. A

Senator BoscHwiTz. This is not a statement, it seems to be a
background paper. It will also be included in the record.

May I ask either one of you if there is a perceptual difference
between the injuries to a drunken driver and to the victims? Spe-
cifically, does the drunken driver’s condition—the relaxed aspect of
being drunk—defend him to some degree from being injured quite
as seriously as the victim?

Dr. ConN. Not that we can ascertain, sir; no.

Being intoxicated means that it is more difficult to assess their
neurological status. This is one of the difficulties that the paramed-
ics have at the scene. They are not sure whether they have a pa-
tient who has a severe head injury and 1 drink or he has had 15
drinks and a mild head injury. We get a certain number of those
patients flown in. ,

Senator BoscHwirz. Peopie do have 15 drinks. I remember once
during my campaign for this illustrious post I went out with one of
my staff people, and he had 12 martinis for lunch. It did not seem

o e
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to affect him nearly as much ‘as it did me. He was in treatment

very shortly after that.
Do you gentlemen have any questions?
Mr. VeLDE. No, thank you.

Mr. MansonN. No, thank you. .
Senator BoscawiTz. Your statements were very helpful and illu-

minating. I am not so familiar with medical care, and I can well
understand where that would lower the death rate and lower the
number of victims of this.

I thiak that taking people who are convicted or who are drunk
drivers to such a trauma unit must be quite impressive. It must
have an impact on them to prevent them from doing it again.

1 have heard of that. Is it widely done?

Dr. Conn. No, sir. This began as a pilot project in one of the
counties approximately 2 years ago. Repeat young offenders were
brought in, and on followup 6 months and a year later they were
still not in trouble again. That is now expanding, and I believe this
year we have got four counties involved in that program, and we
are encouraging other trauma centers to initiate similar programs.

Senator Boscawirz. Dr. Maickel?

Dr. MaickeL. That has been a problem in the past, in that there
has been a tendency to say, “Oh, we should not expose the youthful
driver to the terrifying face-to-face sight of a crash victim or a
crash.” T can assure you from my own experience, without doing .
any followup statistics, it is an effective deterrent.

Senator Boscawrrz. I would imagine it would be, and I would
have very little hesitation about parading those young, old, or
middle-aged drunk drivers through such a trauma ward. Is that
done on a national basis, Dr. Maickel?

Dr. MaickeL. Not at all. There are a few local facilities; Dr. Conn
has one, and there is one in California.

Dr. ConnN. Unfortunately, also, there are not many of these
trauma units yet. For example, if you have a severe accident, you
are normally taken to the closest hospital, so there is no concentra-
tion of these types of victims.

Senator Boscawirz. But if you go to any hospital practically,
there must be several rocms where one could do that.

Dr. MaickeL. True.

Senator Boscawrrz. I think that would be a very worthwile thing

to do.

Do you have any comments?

Mr. VELDE. No, thank you.

Senator Boscuwirz. Mr. Manson?

Mr. MansonN. Thank you.

Senator Boscuwirz. Counsel has some comments.

Mr. MansoN. Dr. Conn, I would just like to ask if you can identi-
fy why perhaps so little attention has been dedicated to the medi-
cal problems relating to drunk drivers as compared. with other
medical problems that we seem to hear so much about today.

Dr. Conn. I am not sure in the past, but I know that the position

now is changing, particularly because the medical profession is
very well aware of the rising costs and looking at ways in which we

can lower costs.
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from aspirin on up, do you ;‘11(1)%?

Dr. 1
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. RoGer P. MAICKEL

This statement addresses four interrelated areas of the problem

generally titled "'driving while intoxicated": (1) The pharmacological

effects of ethyl alcohol that are relevant to operation of a motor

vehicle; (2) The relationship of traffic fatalities to driving while
intoxicated; (3) The possible role of other drugs in highway safety; and (4)
The possible option(s) of the Federal Government in reducing the magnitude

of this problem.

1.0 BACKGROUND
Motor vehicle crashes are a major cause of death in the United States.

Over the past decade, the annual number of such fatalities (drivers,
Three sets

passengers, pedestrians) has consistently approximated 50,000.
(1) Vehicular ==

of factors emerge from a careful analysis of such accidents:
related to the design, construction, maintenarce, and operééing character~
istics of the motor vehicle; (2) Environmental -- related to operating and
traffic conditions, highways, time of day; (3) Driver character-

istics that may influence his/her ability to perform tasks involvgd in
operating a motor vehicle (Jones and Joscelyn, 1978). It is estimated

that 75 to 90 percent of all motor vehicle accidents are primarily due to

A major impact in this area is believed to be the alcohol

1g population (U.S. Department of Transpor-

In 1904, an article expressing

human_fac’ ors.
drinking behavior of the dr!
tation, 1968). This'is not new information.
concerin about the possible adverse effects of alcohoi consumption upon the

operators of !power motor wagons'' appeared in the Qua(terly'Journal of

tnebriety (U.S. Departmedt of Transportation, 1968).

2.0 TERMINOLOGY/SEMANTICS
N—————

This brief review of the simple, yet confusing, terminology Involved

will c]arify thjs presentation. i

® Drug may be defined as any substance (other than food) which,&%fter
entering the body, produces a significant biological effect./

® Alcohol will be exclusively defined as ethanol or ethyl alcohol.

® BAC, the abbreviation for "blood alcohol concentration,". is the
weight .(quantity) of alcohol in a given volume of blood, usually
expressed in the U.S.A. in terms of grams of alcohol per 100 milli-
liters of bluod {percent).
to 0.10 grams (100 milligrams, mg) of alcohol per 100 milliliters
(mL)- of blood.. T o :

® DWI, DUI, DWAI are acronyms used to describe the state of operating
a motor vehicle while tinder the influence of a drug such as aicohol.
DWi refers to "Driving While Intoxicated,' DUl to ''Driving While
Under the Influence," and DWAl to 'Driving While Ability is Impaired."
Depending on the terminology used in statutes and the jurisdiction
involved, such laws may be interpreted to hold for alcohol only,
drugs {including alcohol) in general, drugs in combinatici with
alcohol, or various permutations and combinations.

Thus, a BAC of 0.10 percent would be equivalent
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ggg?ggn;smoge::g:hto t:e agiléty of one drug to block or reverse the

. er when both are present in the bod i
arithmetic terms, antagonism may be expressed as 2 2 Z‘< An simple

another, resulting in a sim i

) ple summation of ma nitude :
wheq ?oth are present in the body. In simple grithmet?z :ffect(s),
addition may be expressed as 2 + 2 = 4, eTms

® Synergism or potentiation ref V
5 ers to the ability of one dru
the action(s) of another when both are present in the bodyg F?ne:?;;?z

arithmetic terms, synerqi iati
G » Synergism or potentiation may be expressed as

PHARMACOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF ALCOHOL

w
o

E
thyl alcohol is 3 smali molecule, capable of readily crossing bo&y

b . .
Mmémbranes and generally distributed throughout the water content of th
human body. 1t can be ‘absorbed throy o

gh the skin and
of the oral cavity, the mucous membrane

l . y
ut t“e most common si tes Of absol [ I
i i . . t ion are the Stomach

3.1 Characteristics of Alcohol Absorption

- After consuming one drink»containing alcohol, the BAC reaches a
maximum level in 20 to 60 minutes if stomach was empty, or 60 to 120

min i
utes if the stomach was full. In general, the rate of absorption

is related to the concentration of alcohol in the beverage consumed
reaching 3 maximum rate at about 20 to 25 percent (40-50 preof) ’

There are no fixed absorption rates for alcohol and no "magic Timits.v

- Nevertheless, several generalizations can be made. Absorption of

[——

.although concentrations jess than 0.03 per

alc ) sy .
ohol appears to be more rapid in experienced as compared to naive

d .
brinkerst The rate of absorption seems to be enhanced by carbonated
everages. In contrast, the rate of absorption appears to be slowed

‘ 4
' the Sub ect haS IOOd fn the Stomach. ”a'd é),(elcise, excitement
* ’

or fear, all of which are known to decreaséJZhe rate of blood flow

to the digestive tract, a)
e » also tend to reduce the rate
of a
absorption. eote!

géﬁ Characteristics of Alcohol Elimination

Once In the b]oodstfeam,

. alcohol Is eliminat
in the breath (this forms the ated iIn small amounts

sty e basis for breath alcohol measurement
hmv‘“{WhﬁnkYa, urine, an@iperspiration. Mare than 90 pe;éent f
alcohol elimination occurs viarggéhiéa! br . . °

ratz k
»f breakdown is relatively constant (0.015 percent BAC per hourj

cent BAC are destroyed

at a slow i ’
lower rate. This breakdown rate is sufficiently constant to

L3

eakdown in the 1liver, Thé &!l
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1me -
permlt extrapolation of approximate blood levels. at the tlmg of an
incident from BAC measurements made at a later time, assuming that .

no further consumption of alcohol occurred.

3.3 Relationship of Alcohol Levels tq Amount Consumed

A formﬁla is often used to relate the BAC at any given point fn
time to the amount of alcoholic beverages consumed prior to that tfme.
This formula (substantiated and corroborated by many workers) requnre?
a few basic assumptions: the beverages were consumed over a relatively
short period of time (1 to2 hours), and the body weight and body
water characteristics of the subject are not extremely unusual.

For the male, in whom body watér is 68 to 70 percent of body weight,
the formula is expressed as:

BAC x body wt. (lbs.) x 13.2
% alcohol in beverage

A (oz. of beverage) =

For females, in whom body water'is 56 percent of body weight, the
same formula is used, but the result iéwmultiplied by 0.8. Chart |
{1lustrates the application of this for@uia.

CHART 1

APPROXIMATE RELATIONSHIP OF BAC TO BODY WEIGHT
AND NUMBER OF DRINKS CONSUMED

'B0DY WEIGHT . (1bs)

No. of Drinks* 120 140 160 180 200 220
1
2 M
A
3 \
’ E
6 S
8 25 .21 9 a7 a5 L4
1 .04 .03 .03 .03 .02 .02
2 08| .07 .06 .05 .05 .04
3 J2 .00 .09 .08 g,o7.‘/ﬁ.}oe o
4 J6 .13 0 .2 .10 .09 .09 A
| A
> ‘ 413 ,
6 24 .20 .8 06 4 :
8 L B/ A T S NS N S

*1 drink equals 1 oz. of 100 proof whiskey, 4 oz. of Aw‘in‘e or, 12 0z.
of domestic. beer,
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> %9-

‘;éi Relationskip of Blood Alcohol Levels to Behavioral Effects
o

Examination of the relationship of BAC to behavioral effects
v identifies some aspects of human behaVior_and performance relevant

i

g  to skilfs directly involved in motor vehicle operation. These
1

i

i

_relationships include, but are not limited to:

i ® The ability to see clearly (static visual aruity) begins to

H show impairment at a BAC level of 0.05-0.08 percent and is

% significant in 85 percent of subjects at 0.125 percent BAC.

® The ability to see moving objects (Qynamic visual acuity)

a begins to show impairment at 0.03-0.08 percent BAC and is
significant in 11 subjects at 0.10 percent BAC.

® Night vision (the abilfiy to see dim objects) is significantly
impaired in all subjects at 0.08 percent BAC.
® Glare blindness is significantly impaired in 25 percent of

subjects at 0.10 percent BAC and in all subjects at 0.20
percent BAC.

& The ability to change focus rapidiy (accommodation) Is impaired
significantly in most subjects at BAC values of 0.08 percent

i _ _or higher.

3.4.2 Hearing ‘ -
impairment does not occur in alj subjects, but may include
decreases in both hearing ability (sounds must be louder and

higher pitches may not be heard) and auditory discrimination.

3.4.3 Judgmeﬁt

Impairment is generally Séen at BAC values of 0.08 percent or

higher. Distances and dimensionsya?e misjudged, speed is

underestimated, and situations are assessed more slowly with
a reduéed»quality of assessment and a higher probability of
inappropriate decisions. ' ‘ ’

3.4.4 Reaction Time -

Impairment begins In many subjects at 0.04 percent BAC and is

y significant in all subjects at BAC values in excess of 0.10
‘ percent.

-3.4.5 Coordination ':

,lmpairment«generally begqu at BAC values of 0.10 percent BAC,
with greatest effect on the]jearning process. vDEFFiéulties in
reciting the alphabet occur .in novice or inexperignced 6r}nker§
at BAC values of 0.10 pércent; experienced drinker% shbwféimila?‘
impairment at BAC. values of 0.15 percent. . ' } -

N Short-‘and long~term memory {§ impafred at 0.10 percent BAC, with
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Difficulties in reciting

effect on the learning process.
d drinkers at BAC

in novice or inexperience
nced drinkers show similar impair-

greatest
the alphabet occur
values of 0.10 percent; experiel
ment &t BAC values of 0.15 percent.

3.4.7 Reticular Activating System (RAS) -
1ized by the brain to accept,

Impairment begins at B
nt in most subjects at BAC

ially for tasks (such as

This system is uti process, and

distribute information.
0.03 percent and becomes significa

vatues of 0.06-0,08 percent, espec
t require divided attention.

AC values of

motor vehicle operation) tha

s no doubt that alcohol affects human behavior
tor vehicle operation.

etween the BAC value

In summary,. there i
mance of tasks such as mo

and impairs perfor
hat exist b

Chart 11 illustrates relationships t

and the type of impaltrment.

{P OF TRAFFIC FATALITIES 10 DRIVING WHILE INTOX1CATED

4.0 THE RELAT1ONSH
——

hips between drinking, driving,

he complexity of the situa
drivers with a

Attempts to demonstrate relations
hasize t
f crashes invclvfng
the second step is to

1ved in crashes

and motor vehicle accidents emp tion.

one must first estimate the number o

significant BAC. If this number is significant,
determine that drinking drivers are more frequently invo
than their non-drinking counterparts. 1f so, the third step is to

determine whether alcohol impairment of driving performance is the

or if some other factor(s) exist.

rive phenomena,
ohol could be

major causa&

Almost U5 years ago, Holcomb (1938) found that alc
implied as @ causative factor in a significant numbier of motor vehicle’
Many subsequent epiqemiological studies

A relatively consistent finding, when all crashes are
is that 45 to 55 percent of drivers fatally injured had
For single vehicle crashes that
e e reviewed and

accidents. have confirmed this
conciusion.
cons idered,
BAC values of 0.08 percent or higher.
fraction rises to 60-70 percent. These studies ar
d in Jones and Joscelyn, 1978.
such retrospective studies do mot
{and cannot) prove causaticn. they clearly imply alcohol as

tor. vehicle accidents. Charts t11A and 1118
1f the relative probability

at BAC values of

summarize
It is important to realize that

However,

a causative factor in mo
obabilistic relationship.
1ue of 0.00 percent,
"a fatal crash for the

illustrate such pr
t equals 1 at a BAC va

the probability of involvement in
n it is for a non-drinking driver

12 percent, the probability of
is two to three

of involvemen
0.12 percent,
driver is 12-22 times higher tha
At 2 BAC value of O.
-fatal, personal injury accident
inking driver (Chart 1118)..

(Chart t11A).
involvement in.a non
times greater than for the non-dr
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CHART II

AP
PROXIMATE BAC VALUES NEEDED TO AFFECT HUMAN FUNCTIONS

drivers; op r ind

. ’ en areas 1n .Cate whey-e S' n‘f

drivers. ndi gnm icant 'il!lpait'ment is seen in all
r n

304 1.1 *
| A
A P 1RHRE
TUINT BT 150 120 (8] (&) (A il
ul 1] |1 é ré T (M |E 3 g
L ' M
P S O L B R I P I L B A I TS B 1l
,‘R v N : V¥ T 1 D L N
L)l s 1A |2 T
al st 11l lu LT 1
% U M A N é D 0
Aj |E L N N
1 S
.20 " ' A S
A A c S
I U I
N 1 T
G| T Y
Y
S
.15 - Y
S
T
i
==
SEE
NS
10 S| S
' ~ 5 IS
NEBNEBE
NEBEEBS
NEBNEBS
S| §] 5
L el (SIS S
S| S ;; B4
= = =
NEBNEBS '
.05 = § § § NON-SIGNIFICANT OR
= A
S S §_ JIMCONSISTENT EFFECTS
N AT THESE LEVELS
0 e

.
PARAMETERS MEASURED

88-986 0—82——8

S

o

[ERE .

R,



i e T K b T LA Tt e

102

CHART III

RELATIONSHIP OF BAC VALUES TO RELATIVE PROBABILITY OF ACCIDENT

g

Hurst (1974)

(A) Fatal Crasnes Bt
28+
244
20+
164
124 f Hurst (1974)
“ ' Grand Rapids, MI
/
8- /
— 4~
5,
& o- . : :
2 o .04 .08 12 .16 .20
= , ,
=
[¥
© i .
[,
;E" p
[+2] .
2
& (B) Personal Injury Crashes
w ‘
= 28
f—
=
= 24
204
AHurst . (1974)
164 '-'4 Grand Rapids, MI
134 ,/
4
X I
J
8- /
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“. . e e .,o':%Farris et al, .
!‘ :__.M‘—. HuntSViTTe’ AL
0 - Y- S— : . . =
0 .04 .08 .12 .16 ‘ 52

MR,

Gt

L

. T R

RS

103

Thus, using the traffic crash toll for 1375, the numbers of intoxi-
cated drivers involved in accidents can bekapproxnmated:

® fatal crashes . . . . . . e e e e e 15,000
ﬁ'personal injury crashes . S e e e 120,000 .
L property damage crashes . . . . , , . . 765,000

These accidents cost socsety an estimated five bll]lon dollars Using
the 1975 figures, the number of crashes that could be prevented if
alcohol wére removed as. a probable causative factor are summarized

in Chart V. These estimates are based on the most stringent criteria
available. That is, they are the most conservative.

CHART 1V

ESTIMATED REDUCTION OF CRASHES IFwALCOHOL-RELATED
CRASHES ARE ELIMINATED*

o ESTIMATED  REDUCTION IN CRASHES:
BAC © FATAL PERSONAL INJURY ~ PROPERTY DAMAGE
>.05 . 13,600 118,800 965,000

>0 . 9,400 83,900 621,000
> 5,300 © 32,700 153,000
—_——

*Data are taken from Jones and Joscelyn (1978)

fi

2.0 THE POSSIBLE ROLE OF OTHEP DRUGS iN HIGHWAY SAFETY 3

Although alcohol is the most ]Ekely causative factor in motor
vehicle accidents, two other aspects also deserve mention. Other drugs
can impair safe motor vehicle operation, alone, or by means of drug-dpﬁb
(and. especially drug-aicohol) interactions. A brief overview must be
considered. ‘

g&i Other Drug That Can Impalr Safe Motor Vehlcle Operatlon

The data available are not as extensnve as for alcohol alone
Nevertheless,‘a brief listing of agents. known to alter human
_ behavior, especia]ly in terms of perturbation of performance in
complex tasks such as motor vehicle operation, include:

® antianxiety agents (chlordiazepoxide,JdIaZepam)

® Canhabis (marihuana)’ ‘

‘® narcotlc ‘analgesics (codeine, nycodone, propoxyphene)
° volatlle solvents ‘ :
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and pious platitudes") should be aveided. Instead, efforts should

) be made to achieve national distribution of educational and
i i ills

o sedative-hypnotics (sleeping pi

L) éntlhypertensive medications

e antihistamines (over-the-counter cold medicines)

-

informational materials to localities, organizations, and

T PR TR =
o o e o ara e Yrmi

B et gian g,
B T P e e

e jurisdittloﬁs that deal in person-to-person relationships. While
not advocating purely "scare! tactics, a strong and realistic

5.2 Drug-drug Interactionis Relevant to-tistor Vehicle Operation approach Is needed. The impaired driver should be clothed in the

: s same garb as the hardened criminal or, the deviant personality.
Again, extensive data are not available, however, based on g =4 a P Y
? .

available pharmacological information, the possibility of combination

effects must be considered for a number of agents. This is especially

)

6.3 Standardization and Increased Uniformity of Control Systems

It is e’ssential that some national norms be established. A
true for additive or synergistic effects with alcohol. Such

Federal DW! standard should be established. Many European

. i ot A 18 S o i OB S YA orpan

o . ; i i { f 0.05 i
combinations could easily result in a driver with a BAC value o i _ . 4 0.08 .
rcent showing a degree of performance impairment similar to one g . countries have accepte‘ UG percent BAC as a national norm for
pere D Tikely to act in combinétion ; ’ evidence of YWl with considerable success in reducing alcohol-
having a BAC of 0.15 percent. Drugs likely to ac ! . ‘ . L . .
with alcohol to produce either additive or synergistic results include } ' related highway accidents, injuries, and fatalities. In this
5.1 . " 4 3 country, a precedent exists in the 55 MPH speed limit. At a
i .1 as well as: ¢
all those listed in Section ‘ Federal level, a standard. for BAC/DWI would be both rational and
® antidepressant agents 'i ieasonable. Juridicial standards for handling the convicted
® antipsychotic agents , 5. i DWI could not be established at a. Federal level, but advisory
‘ recommendations wotld not be unwarranted.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO ADDRESS THE ISSUE OF THE
IMPAIRED DRIVER

6.4 Acceptance of Reality
—_—

The most crucial point, but also the most sensitive aspect of

Several extreme approaches could be adopted, ranging from total i the problem, is recognition of reality. Uﬁtil We, as a nation,

are willing to accept the fact that the impaired driver is a hazard
to society, any efforts to reduce the gravity of the situation will
be in vain. One example demonstrates this gravity. In 1979, a
total of 32,451 breath tests for alcohol was administered to

drivers through the Traffic Services Division of ‘the Michigan
ization and increased uniformity of control systems; and (4) accept- ; Department of State Police. Of these, 22,926 (70.4 percent)
ance of reality. '

S A T R R S LTI

disregard of the problem in the hope that it will "'go away'! to
mandating a rigid series of steps to enforce additional governmental
controls on the public. The most rational recommendations involve

Lo I e S gy

a series of efforts covering areas of: (1) research, identification,
and delineation; (2) education and heightened awareness; (3) standard-

yielded BAC values of 0.15 percent or greater. The figures for 1980
were 40,702 and 28,832, respectively; thus, 70.8 percent had BAC
values of 0.15 percent or greater. For the first six months of
1981, the ffgurés were 21,618 and 15,228, respectively, indicating
that 70.4 percent had BAC values of 0,15 percent or more. If the
fractions teé&ing &t BAC values of 0.10 bercent or greater are
sompared, theﬂrglative percentages are 93.1 percent (for 1979),
93.8 percent (for 1980), and 93.5 percent (For'the first half

of 1981). There is no question that these figure§ indlcate that
the vast majority of_drivers identified as being DW! were most
cerfainly drunk and would not operate a motor vehfcle witﬁ any
degree of safety! '

s

6.1 Research, Identification, and Delineation o

There is an imperative need for further research to determine

s

thie precise role of the drug-impaired driver in highway accidents.

Several points are involved. For example, determination of BAC
values in accldent-involved or obviously impaired drivers is a

S eiabid g
»

common procedure but present technology is Inadequate to evaluate

the possible contributions of other drugs. Routine testing

procedures to‘asseSS'impairment‘sf driving performance aré

virtually non-existent. Crash-risk probabilities for drug-alcohol
combinations need to be determined}ana'the magnitude of the "real ’

R RO e
-

" probt st be defined. J t |
world" problem must be defined Agalnst this type of document, one must place the common

observation of a lack of societal sensitivity to tﬁe problem.
Any visitor tq a traffic court wilj 58e a common occufierice~~
the legal plea bargain to a charge lesser than that-of a iiéense-

6.2 Education.and Heightened Awareness
-} .

The hazard of the impaired driver to society as a whole must
be brought to the attention of the public. Massive programs of
generalized statements in the media (“glittering generalities

-

[
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revocable offense such as DWl. Virtually every community is aware
of (and can identify) citizens who regularly (habitually?) leave

a bar, tavern, country club, or house party in a condition clearly
under the influence of alcohol and equally clearly incapable of
safely operating a motor vehicle. Yet those same communities are
unwilling or unable to deal with those individuals in a manner that
will prevent them from operating a motor vehicle in an obviously
inebriated condition.

No individual or group is exempt from this problem. The drunk
driver is not necessarily a chronic alcoholic. He or she may be a
laborer, a student, a lawyer, a Jjudge, a housewife, a physician, a
nurse, an executive, a politician, a bank teller, a‘law enforcement
officer; DWI does not have any constraints regarding age, sex, race,
creed;or color. The conservative may be under the influence of
alcohol, while the 1iberal may be under éhe influence of marihuana.
The rich may imbibe a $50 bottle of burgundy. The poor may
consume $2 bottles of muscatel. The net result is the same -~ DWt.
The best thing that we, as a nation, can hope for is that sometime
in the future we will accept the reality that, in order to save
lives, to save anguish, to save people, we must do everything possible

to:

® remove the known DW| from the highways
® reduce the likelihood of a new DWI reaching the highways

If the drunk driver were a risk only to himself/herself, the
problem would be simpler. The fact that the individual is a risk
to other citizens as well demands that the Federal Government take
an active, leading role in attacking the problem at the state and
local level.
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PREPARED STATEMENT -OF DR. ALASDAIR CONN

SENATOR DOLE AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ON
THE JUDICIARY. I AM SPEAKING 7O YOU IN MY CAPACITY AS
MEDICAL DIRECTOR OF THE FIELD OPERATIONS PROGRAMS FOR THE
GTATE OF MARYLAND. I AM RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MEDICAL
DIRECTION OF SOME ELEVEN HUNDRED (1,100) ADVANCED LIFE
SUPPORT PERSONNEL (PARAMEDICS) AND SOME TWELVE THOUSAND
(12,000) EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIANS WHO MAN THE AMBULANCES
AND RESCUE SQUADS WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND. I'M ALSO
SPEAKING AS A SURGEON WORKING WITHIN THE BALTIMORE SHOCK
TRAUMA CENTER. o

'WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND WE HAVE THE BALTIMORE
SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER SERVING AS THE CENTRAL HUB WITH NINE
PERIPHERAL TRAUMA CENTERS LINKSD BY THE MARYLAND STATE POLICE
AVIATION DIVISION“S TEN HELICOATERS. SEVERE ACCIDENTS,
INDUSTRIAL EXPLOSION VICTIMS, AND OTHER MARYLAND CITIZENS
WHO HAVE SUSTAINED ACUTE TRAUM\ ARE FLOWN DIRECTLY FROM
THE SCENE AND RATHER THAN TRANSFERRED TO THE CLOSEST HOSPITAL
WHERE THE FACILITIES NECESSARY TO TREAT THAT PATIENT'S
INJURIES MAY NOT BE IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE, THEY ARE FLOHWN
TO ONE OF THESE NINE HOSPITALS IN THE STATE. WITHIN THESE
HOSPITALS WE HAVE MANDATED IMMEDIATE AVAILABILITY OF SURGEONS,
ANETHESIOLOGISTS, AND OPERATING ROOMS NECESSARY TO KEEP THESE
VICTIMS ALIVE. '

WITHIN THE BALTIMORE SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER, WE DEAL
WITH APPROXIMATELY 1,350 PATIENTS PER YEAR. THESE ARE THE
MOST SEVERE ACCIDENT VICTIMS FROM ALL OVER THE STATE WHOSE
POPULATION IS 4.2 MILLION. My FIGURES INDICATE THAT APPROX-

IMATELY 60% OF OUR AbMISSIONS ARE FROM ROAD ACCIDENTS EITHER

DRIVERS OR PASSENGERS OF”AUTOMOBILES, MO;ORCYCLES, OR
PEDESTRIANS. THE OTHER VICTIMS ARE, OF COURSE, VICTIMS OF
ASSAULTS, INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENTS, OR EXPLOSIONS. AS PART OF

THE ADMISSION PROCEDURE, EVERY PATIENT HAS A SERUM ALCOHOL
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LEVEL MEASURED. OF THESE PEOPLE COMING IN, 50% HAVE

DETECTABLE ALCOHOL LEVELS IN TEEIR BLOODSTREAM AND OF THIS
50%, 30% OF THESE HAD A BLOOD ALCOHOL LEVEL OF 100 MILLIGRAMS

PERCENT OR GREATER. THIS LEVEL IS THE LEGAL LIMIT IN ALL

BUT THREE STATES. MARYLAND STILL HAS A HIGH LIMIT OF 0.13%

AS THE LEGAL DEFINITION OF INTOXICATION. THIS IS THE HIGHEST

.

IN THE NATION., THE LEVEL OF 0.08% WITHIN MARYLAND IS

CONSIDERED DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE.
ANNUALLY WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND, ABPROXIMATELY
700 PEOPLE ARE KILLED IN TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS ON MARYLAND

HIGHWAYS. STUDIES INDICATE THAT 90% OF THE AT FAULT DRIVERS

IN FATAL CRASHES HAD SOME DEGREE OF ALCOHOL IN THEIR SYSTEM

AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT.
DEALING WITH THE INTOXICATED DRIVER TRANSLATES

INTO CONSIDERABLE FINANCIAL EXPENSES. EVERY PATIENT FLOWN

INTO THE BALTIMORE SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER DEVELOPS A MEDICAL

BILL,OF APPROXIMATELY $12,000. THIS IS ONLY THEIR INTENSIVE

CARE STAY, FOR ONCE THEY ARE OVER THIS ACUTE PHASE, THEY
ARE TRANSFERRED BACK TO HOSPITALS NEAR THEIR HOME, TO OTHER
HOSPITALS WITHIN UNIVERSITY CENTERS OR OFF TO REHABILITATION.
THESE FIGURES, HORREEXING AS THEY MUST BE, PERHAPS HIDE
ANOTHER STATISTIC, ONE THAT IS DIFFICULT TO DELINEATEm
SEVERAL TIMES WE GET THE DRIVEB>AND THE PASSENGER OF A SMALL
CAR THAT HAS QNFORTUNATELY BELN IN A COLLISION, THE LARGER,
HEAVIER CAR DRIVEN BY AN INTOX:XCATED DRIVER WHO HAS, BECAUSE
OF THIS LARGER VEHICLE, SUSTAINED RELATIVELY MINIMAL INJURIES.
TO TRY TO éUT THIS INTO THE NATIONAL PERSPECTIVE,
THE IMPACT IS STAGGERING,GLQ? ME JUST ENUNCIATE TWO FURTHER
o o

FURY

QMA WILL COST THE UNITED STATES

STATISTICS. ONE IS THAT 7TRX
OF AMERICA 82 BILLION DOLLARS AND IT WILL KILL 115,000

AMERICANS - RELATIVELY YOUNG AMERICANS, ANDiALOT OF THEM
UNNECESSARILY. THE SECOND ONE IS EQUALLY HORRTFYING, IN

THE TEN YEARS OF THE VIETNAM WAR, 45,000 US SOLDIERS WERE
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KILLED BY THE ENEMY: AND 274,000°U.S. CITIZENS DIED IN™
‘MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS INVOLVING ALCOHOL, ., '

WHAT CAN BE DONE TO- REMEDY THIS NATIONAL PROBLEM?
1 HAVE, UNFORTUNATELY A FEW SUGGESTIONS. ONE Is THE CONTINUATION
OF DEDICATED HOSPITALS SPECIALILY EQUIPPED TO MANAGE THE CRITICALLY
INJURED PATIENT —. TRAUMA CENTERS . THIS INITIATIVE WAS BEGUN
SEVERAL YEARS AGO, puyp ONLY NOW IS BEGINNING To ACHIEVE THE -
RECOGNITION IT DESERVES. PROFESSOR FRANCIS MOORE, THE
EMERITUS PROFESSOR oF SURGERY OF HARVARD MEDICAL SCQOOL IN
HIS SCUDDER ORATION ON TRAUMA 70 THE AMERICAN COLLEGE OF

S
URGEONS IN OCTOBER OF 1981 8THATED "NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS

NEEP'FOR THE PATIENTS ON THE ROADSIDE To BE TAKEN TO THE
NEARB;T HqspI§AL WHICH WAy NOT HAVE Tug EQUIPMENT OR THE
PERSO?NEL ?o MANAGE HIS INJURY IN?A\EOMPETENT MEDICALLY
ACCEPTED FASHION. mTyIs INITIATIVE SKOULD BE ENCOURAGED, -
AT THE‘SAME T;ME WE SHOULD ENCOURAGE THE NATIONAL HIGHWAY
TRAFFIC SAFETY ASsocraTron TO TRY TO ENCOURAGE.PpEOPLE TO

UTILIZE PASSIVE RESTRAINT SYSTEMS IN CARS. BEFORE I WORKED

AT TE ‘
THE SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER, I pip NOT USE MY SAFETY BELT:
NOW I DO. SO ALL THE TIMg. ‘

' MOST OF THE ADVANCES. Thap WE HAVE COME TO EXpECT
TH : : ) |
HE ERADICATION OF SMALL pox AND POLIO FROM THE UNITED
STAYLES . BEE 7
S HAS BEEN BY THE ysg OF VACCINES AND THE ESTABLISHMENT
OF CLEAN. ; 7
N. WATER CODES HAVE DRAMATICALLY DECREASED THE INCIDENCE
OF INFECTIOUS DISEASES FRdﬁiWATER:SOURCES‘
WE MUST ALLOW THE POLICE FORCES ON. OuR HIGHWAYS
AND B ’ . -
BYWAYS TO MAKE RANDOM STOPS AND MANDATE ALCOHOL TESTING
TO ANY SpSPICI?Q§ INDIVIDUALS. WE MusT WITHOLD LICE&SES

FROM THOSE FOUND DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED, AND WE MUST
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BRING HOME TO THE INDIVIDUAL FOUND GUILTY, THE SERIOUSNESS

OF HIS CRIME. IN MARYLAND, WE OFTEN REHABILITATE THESE PROBLEM
DRIVERS AND IS PARTICULARLY A PROBLEM AMONG /THE YOUNG THROUGH
THE TRAUMA UNIT, AS THEY SEE PATIENTS BEING FLOWN IN. A
SURPRISINGLY IT IS THIS ONE PROGRAM THAT IS HAVING THE MOST

EFFECT IN PREVENTING THESE YOUNG OFFENDERS FROM BECOMING

HABITUAL OFFENDERS. MY MOTTO AS A TRAUMA SURGEON SHOULD -
BE "HELP PUT US OUT OF BUSINESS" AND I AM HOPING WITHIN
THE NEXT FEW YEARS A MAJOR PUSH IN REMOVING THE DRIUNK
DRIVER FROM TEE HIGHWAYS WILL 1O EXACTLY ‘THAT.

I THANK YOU FOR YOUR ATTENTION.

.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PROF. LEONARD G. SCHIFRIN

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members:

My statement has two quite separate parts. Iﬁ the f;rst half, I will
provide some economic dimension to ;he ovzrall probleg of #icohol 2buse,
with special focus on the societal impacts of motér veﬁicle accidents wbege
alcohol i8 a factor. The(second part of wy statemeut cons;ders other facutg
of beverage Qlcohoi‘ptoduction and consumption, notably the\@agnitqde and
pattern of alcohol tgxea accruing to various levels of’goverﬁﬁgnt,and the
responsiveness of the demand for liquor to changes in its pricél\including‘

M

variations in price caused by additional taxation.. %

I. The Societsl Costs of Alcohol Abuse

Aleoliol abuse imposes very large societal costs in the forms of m&verse

health effects and pasycho-social impacts, whether measured in terms of dkach,

\i}lqesa, or other health criteria, Or.in terms of the real economic Ibsse§§

téey generate., Other researchers (Ralph E. Berry, Jr. and James P. Bolandf\
v , Y
estimated these losses to have been iu the $40-43 billion range in 1975. LY

@

My own estimation, following their procedurszy, puts -the losses at a mich

and 103 billion for 1979 (increasisig primarily due to infiation). ? ' )
My éstimntipys for 1975 and 1979, and the major componénts'tﬁerefh. are )

shovn in Table 1:“‘ 2 .-*,. ER \
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TABLE 1
Estimated Societai Costs Related to Alcohol Abuse, 1979 ) i
($ mil lions) = J ;
Kevised Updated .- ’
: _ 1975 . 1979 ' o :
Categorz Estimate Estimate Basie fer Update ; . - ;
Lot production $24,174 - $42,610 $37,881 - $66,770 56.7% increase in total | "
(civ.) : ' ‘ employee compensation
(mil.) 411 454 10,5% increase in total
‘ military payroll
Health care costs 12,743 . 20,465 60.6% increase. in national 1
1 . ' health care expenditures N
. o
L , . ; ‘ , , R
“===Motor vehigle crash costs 5,143 - 6,768 '31.6% increase in total
: ' . T cost of highway accidents H
; . Pize loésee 434 647 49.1% mean. increase in total r
3 T ‘ > employee compensa’ion, health
: . i care expenditures, and general _ =
‘ ‘ . o rate of inflaticn ("N” defxatorindex)
; . ‘Vielent crime - : . e £y
: z St e 2,857 v 4,477 56.7% increase in total .
| - : : 3 oM : employee compensation
! " Secial response
! { R pones (1,940 3,467 78.7% increase in government \
i S o — ’ \ 'receipts 1ess transfer paymenta v
A STotaLs - ° $47,702 - $65,727 §74,159 - $103,048 , .
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The economic losses-of alcchol abuse, by any measure, are large even
when compared with the economic losses imposed by or associated with other

major groups of disorders such as cancer, heart and vascular disease,

reypiratory disease, _r metabolic disease. Fhftﬁer, vhen society's responses

to fhese disease categories are coapared, ;he research and other efforts ir
regard to alcohol gbuse are far smailer than the response to the other

disease categories. These latter two points are indicated in Table 2,
from a recent report by the Institute of Medicine of the Natioqal Acadeny

of Science. (Note here that the costs of alcohol abuse are the lower

estimates provided by Berry and Boland, rather than my higher ones.)

TABLE 2
Health Research Dollars in Relation to Economic Cost

RIH/ADAMHA Research Dollars

Lead Institute Par Thousand
Research Effort = Economic Cost Dollars of Cost

Digorder
' 1978 1975
$ in millions $ in billions (U.S.) $
Alcoholism/Abuse 16® 43¢ 0.4
Cancer 627 . 19d 30
Heart & Vascular Disease 284 464 6
69b 194 4

Respiratory Diseiise

R

Sources:

8ADAMHA Data Book, 1979

bBasic Data Relating to the NIH, 1979

CBerry et al.
‘dﬂealth US, 1978 (Paringer et al., May 1977 report)

Institute of Meditine, National Academy of Sciencés,.AlcoholismI

SOURCE :
Alcohol Abuse, and Related Problems: Oppoftunities for Research, p. 7.

Since this Committee's attention focusgu on the role of slcohol abuse
in motor ;ehicle crash costﬁ. I’wquld like to return to the data in Table 1.
Th§'1979 estimate given there for ﬁotor vehicle accidents where alcohol is
a factor is $6.8 billion, but even this figure dogs not contain all of the

relevant costs. Some highway deaths and health care cost :effects of these

11'{3 L

the so-called "social response” to 2lcohol-related problems ig calculated

highway safety, and criminal justice Bystems. When all of these elements
are taken into account, the 1979 costs of alcéhol-telated vehicular cragheg

(stil]l me§snred conservatively) run to $8.6 billson. The components of that

total are pfovided below 1n Table 3,

TABLE 3
Alcohol-Related Motor Vehicle Accident Costs, 1979

' Car
~2%egory of Impact Cost ($b.) -

Fatalities '

Personal injury ; $4.2 *

Property damage 1.2 »

Health care costs : #

Alcohol programs related to driving 2

Welfare administration; highway +133
safety; criminal Justice

. (proportionate share) 357

———
TOTAL o

*Presegt value of lost future production

I emghasize that thege estimates are conservative, Fitat,'l have not
included losses in non—narketlproduction (househo1d wvork and coumﬁniiy
service),_privete court and legii césts, insurance administration,
accident invescigation, or vehicular aécidentshi;volving pedéat}ians in
whon high Blood‘Alﬁphol Concentrhtiqnl (BACs) wers obgerved, bri-atiiy due
to either luék of niequatewdata or for consistency with other studies in
this general ares, ' A o -

More importfptly, thpse aééidentsnvhe:gualcqhbl'iu a factor are defined
in my estimate- ag those in which aleohol is present in the driver at a BAC
level of ,102 or Pighgr.” Yet some, and perhapa coﬁaiderable driver impair-

meat may cccur at Ioger BAC levels than »102; a numher of auchoritiea believe
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Viewing the data in Table 4 on vehicular sccidents vihere alcohol was
a factor, and comparing the proportion of all accidents in which QAC levele
of .05Z or higher were present with the proportivn in which BAC levels of

.10Z or higher were present, some interesting observations emerge.

\' TABLE 4

T Estimates Net Percentage of Crashes )

\ to Alcohol Abuse, By Type of Crash e

Estimated Net Percentage.s aghes

Due to Aicohol Abus

Type of Crash BACe +05% BAC > .10Z
Fatality 41.5 32.5

Personal Injury , M‘h

*Minor/Moderate *\ 8.5

*Severe/Critical ’ ‘\Rarg 3 7.5 .
3.0

Property Damage Only

Source: Berry/Boland

First, by whichever definition of alcohol impairment we employ, t

data show chat the more serious the accident type, the mo cohol is

8 factor. In other words, high blood alcohol levels contribute dispropor-

tionately to accident severity.

Second, most of the accidents where an alcohol level of at least .05%

is pressnt also remain in our data vhen the impairment level ieg raised te

.10Z. Thus, these data also support the conclusion that high BAC levels

contribute disproportionately to nceident frequeacy.

Since accidents are influenced by factors other than alcohol consumption,
such as road conditions, weather conditions, traffic denaity, time of day/
night, etc.. alecohol consumption cannot be identifned as the ecle cause of
any given accident. Yet, vhen these other factors can be held constant,

llcohol inteke, sometimes at .OSZ BAC levels, but clearly at .101 BAC. 1evele,

distinctly makes a snbstantial difference in the vehiculer accident data.

II. Some Economic Facets of Beverag: Alcohol Production and Consumpticn
o DDE SCOTDALC racels ot heverape

Turning now to another economic perspective on alcoholic beverages, I
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would like to discuss briefly some aspects of their production and consumption.
These aspeéts include the taxation of .beverage alcohol, and some charaec+

teristics of the nemand.for this group cf products.

Beverage Alcchol Taxation.

- Exclise taxes, license fees, and other taxes and charges on beverage
alcohol together comprise one of the largest components of revenue to the
various levels of government. In 1980, the Federsl government collected
somewhat more than $5.7 billion in alcohol tuxes, and for all levels of
government the revenues totaled approximately $12 billion. The greatest
proportion (about two-thirds) of this,revenne,came‘from 1iquor, 30 percenn_
from bzer, and the remainder from wine. )

Total public revenues have increeoed steadily since repeal, especially
for statefand,local governments. ' State and local taxes usually are telated
te the price of beverage alechol, while the Federal tax 18 based on volume.
If tai: rates are not changed, inflation of liquor Prices, automatically
brings revenue inereases to governments that levy'nlcohol sales or excise
taxes, but not to those that levy volume taxes. Further, -the states and
localities have genefhlly raised alcohol tax rates, while the Federal volume
tax has remained constant since 1951. Thus, 'state and local mevenues from
alcohol have grown because of three factors: greater consumption, higher
tax rateo, and higher prices; Faderal revenues have grown, at least cincew
1851, only as consumption has grown. ‘

It is clear that total alcohol taxes accruing to all levels of govern-
ment fall far short of the total economie costs of alcoholism and alcohol
abuse that have been presented earlier in this :eport. In effect, aoci;tj
il compensated in the form of tax revenues to the thent of less than 17
ceats, and perhaps as little as 12 gents, for each dollat of alcohol-related
eosts it bears,

It is probably true, though, that specific taxes levied on many industriee

provide public fevenuee only a frection as‘iarge as the societal costs their

A products impooe..rThe beverapge alcohol industries may aven compensate society

to a relatively greater extent than do other industries. But two qualifi-~

cations put the tax-social coet relaticnship of the alcohol it watries into
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perspéctive. First, the fact that a mmber of other industries nmay pay

smaller relativa tax compensations to society could imply that all of them

might warranl higher tax burdens. Second, tax revenues should be compared
to net social costs, that is, costs winus cocietal benefits. When the
benefits of the output of such industries is industrial tools, motor vehicles,
and coal mining are considered, they appear tuv offset in large yait the
sizeable mortality, morbidity, and other costs deriving from the production
or use of their products. In most such cases, we assumc that, on belance,
fhere exist net social benefits -- that total benefits outweigh total costs.
For alcohol, firearms, and tobacco, the balance '. such that there probably
are net social costs, i.e., that total benefits from these products fall
éonsiderably short of the total costs they impose on society. This analysis
suggests that in relation to these net soccial costs, alcohol based tax
revenues are indeed very modest.
The $5.7 billion éoming from the beverage-alcohol industries to the
.general fund of the Yederal government further dwarfs the'Fedetal‘reaeatch
. outlay on alcoholism described earlier, and also looms many times higher
than the budgetary commitment to the National Institute on Aléoholism and
Alcohol Abuse, Most state alcohol-tax revenues also go into their general
funds. Only 20 states earmark any ;art of theiy funds for alcoholism treot-
ment or research programs, and most of these designate only a small portion.

Data on these 20 states are presented below in Table 5.

° TABLE 5

States with Taxes Farmarked for Zlcoholism

State ' . ___Control Taxes Earmarked
Alabama  Yes 10 percent tax on spirits and wine
‘ : sold by state stores-~1/2 to Mental
Health Fund.
D.C. No* 6 percent of licensé fees (except Class E -
) retail druggist).appropriated for creatment
S and rehabilitation of alcoholics. -
Indiana No Additional fee of $30 on all retail permits
' to Commission on Alcoholism. .
‘Miéhigan Yes 1 percent tax on liquor sold for off-premise

- consumption for the Alcoholism Fund,
-
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TABLE 5 (coatinued)
State .. .Control

Taxes Earmarked

v

2 cent and’ 5 cent per bottle tax on Beer
and Naturally Fevmented Wine to respective
county commissioners for alcoholism
rehabilitation. County Dispensaries’

~ Profits--County Boards may expend 7 per-
cent for alcohol education or rehabili-
tation. .

North Carolina Yes

33 1/3 percent of Privilege Tax Revenue -
to be distributed to the Mental Health,
Alcoholism, and Drug Services Account.

Oregon Yes

South Dakota No 5 cent per gallon on distilled spirits
and 30 cent per barrel on High Point

Beer to Division of Alcoholism.

2 percent of sums designated for munici-
palities and counties to Department of
Mental Health to assist in carrying out
provisions of the comprehensive’ Alcohol
and Drug Treatment Act of 1973.

50 cent of each State Purchaser Permit

Utah Yes
. Fee to State Board of Alcoholism,

A

(1) 10 and 15 percent state sales taxes,‘
28 percent to cities, 7 percent to

. counties--2 percent of thig distri-

~ bution to be spent in alcoholism

programs.,

Washington Yes

(2) Profits of stores--40 percent to
cities, 10 percent to counties; 2
percent of this to alcoholism
programs .

+ (3) Class A~F License Fees~-20 percent
to State Department of Social and
Health Services.

(4) First $1 million of Class "H" license
. fees, penalties and forfeitures to
Washington-State University and Uni-
versity of Washington for medical
and biological research.
Wisconsin No Distilled Spirits and Wine taxes——4
percent of these to the administration
and enforcement of the beverage tax laws
and for the cost of administering alcohol
studies.
[\
PRSI
Source: Distilled Spirits Council of the U.S., 1976 Public Revenues from

Alcoholic Beverages, Part IV 12/, '

\
Beverage alcohol production 1s a $50 billion industry in the United

States, and the sbsolute volume of tax revenues it generates is large. Yet,
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for the most part, little of this revenue is redirected back toward preventing
or resolving the societal impacts of alecohol zbuce. One implication of thin
fact is thet, from the goveramental point of view, beverage alcohel is a

good source of general revenues that governments are reluctant to earmark

for specific use.

Raising Beverage Alcohol Taxes: The Price Elasticity of Demand for Liquor

What then of the wisdom of using additfonal taxes to attack the problems

of alcohol abuse? If, on the one hand, demand is sensitive to pfice increases,

~ additional taxes might discourage use sufficiently to reduce the associlated
Problems by a significant amount. On tlie other hand, if higher pxicea'do not
discourage consumption, then additional taxes may produce new revenues that
might be earmarked for alcohol abuse programs, without causing any sizeable
production and employment effects on the industry. What does the avai%able
evidence tell about these two very different possibilities?

Tentative estinnt;s‘of éhe price elasticity of demand for liquor plase
it in the range of 0.2 to 0.5 (i.g., & 1 percent increase in liquor prices
is estimated to reduce quantity demanded by 0.2 percent to 0.5 percent, a
less than proportiongte response). Accordingly, such price inelagticity
suggests that additional taxes on liquor would have only a modest effect on -

consumption, particularly if all beverage alcohol were to incur the additional

tax. The policy implications deriving from this observation relate to the

two hypotheses pozed above: (1) higher taxes for the specific purpose of

curbing consumption are not likely to be successful unless they are very

high; but (2) higher taxes to generate revenues that could be directed
considerable addinional funds with 1fctle impact ;n the total quantity of
alcoholvproducediand consumed in the ¥.S., or on employmeqt and other
economic dimensions of the beverage alechol iﬁdustries. Admittedly, further
research on chis particular feature of the demand for beverage alcohai is - |
needed before decisions of this sort should be made.’bﬁt; in =y opinioen,

the very large negative social effects of aicohol abuse, in vehicular
acclidents and in othervforms, warrant seriﬁus conéidefation of alcohol“sut-

taxes to provide even modest funds t6 attack these compelling problems,
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Senator Boscawr
very much.

Whereupon, at
the call of the Chai

TZ. We
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will now adjourn the hearing. Thank you

m., the hearing was recessed, subject to
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ADDITIONAL STATEMENTS FOR THE RECORD
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STATEMENT
x of the

o . AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION

The American Med{cal Association is very concerned about the pubiic
health aspects of drunk driving. The following data and observations are i
provided to the Committee with the hope that wider recognition of the ;

A
injury and destruction caused by drunk drivers will generate effective

%f programs to ameliorate the problem. ' : i

Acute traumatic injuries are the leading cause of death of persons in '

PN

the United States who are 1 to 44 years old. According to the Institute

g of Medicine, such injuries are second in economic cost among all -
-} ~

ilinesses; in terms of time lost from work or school ‘visits to

I I T

physicians and hospitals, and years of life lost to society, few if any '

| conditions have the overall impact of injuries,

o s e e

v Al

Motor vehicle crashes are responsible for about half of all desths

e
o
@

due to injuries. in 1979, about 51 900 persons in the U.S. died in such

o

catastrophes. Alcohol is a Very significant factor in vehicle-related

At s

crashes and deaths. Of drivers who are fatally injured in’ single-vehicle

o 2 o

crashes, 652 have blood alcohol concentrations of .10% (100 mg/lOOml) or
above. If a person dier in an early morning crash ‘the chances are 3 in
5 that he or she was intoxicated. About 6% of all drivers involved in

o o v

crashes are intoxicated by legal standards. Surveys of representative

e e

e =y

i
z

areas in this country showed that depending on the’ time of day,; 2~tov101

Ve . RS «

of a11 drivers are intoxicated.

N
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The consensus among experts is that the ability to drive a car is

detinitely impaired at blood aicchol comcentrations (BACs) of .05% and

above. A related problem is that while self confidence fncreases with

v =3
alcohol use, actual abilizy decreases. Concentrations of .08% or above
are not compatible with the safe operation of a vehicle; the higher the

(

level of alcohol in the blood, the greater is the likelihood of being
responsible for = crash. h ’

AMA believes that a blood alcohol concentration of 100 mg/100 ml
should be set by state laws as constituting prima_faEiE.evidence of
intoxication. The effect of alcohol on any one individual depends on
physiological factors such as ane's weiéht; whether one has eaten

recently, tolerance to alcohol, overall health status and use of

- medications, and on psychological factors such as fatigue and personality

makeup. Blodd alcchol levels that impair term-age drivers may be lower

than for adults, and the effects of marijuana when combined with alcohol

are of particular concern at present. ‘

Safety programs and standards regarding’alcohol‘as-they relate to
traffic problems have traditionally been the province of the states} and
AMA believes such issues should continue to be addressed at the state
level. The federal government however might well consider the’
development of model guidelines for consideration by to the states;
Studies undertaken recently by New York State may be particularly useful.

Fortunately, the average, non—intoxicated driver can take some -
actions to prevent injury in the event of a crash.v One of the best
preventive measures is the use of the lapbelt—shoulder harness, which is @i:;
about 452 effective in preventing serious injury. Larger, heavier

vehicles offer more protection in a crash than lighter ones, and the -

, serious injury rates are only half as high on divided highwavs as on

two-lane roads with two-way traffic. Reducing speed limits to 55 mph had ’}
a salutary effect in reducing deaths from crashes, even in the face of
greater exposure to craahes, that is, mere vehicle miles traveled. ;

Passive preventive measures, however, in which the individual need

& o

carry out no specific act to reap the benefits are the ideal. Examples

of safe, effective, passive preventives in other areas of public health
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include the ehlorination ‘of water, the pasteurization of milk, and the
use ol high penetration resistant (HRP) windshields. If some of the
factors that contribute to injuries could be changed, such as the
relatively hard internal surfaces of motor vehicles and their relatlvely

weak passenger enclosures injuries might more effectively be prevented.

Because the use., of alcohol 1s so widespread in our society, and human
character is so difficult to modify, neutralizing or overcoming the
"alcohol factor" in vehicle—related injuries, and in injuries of all

kinds, will be extremely difficult.

*kk

Attached is a bibliography of sources of additional information for

possible use by the Subcommittee.

'
o

;1' Accident Facts. Chicago, National Safety Council, 1980.

2. Rice DP, Feldman JJ, and White KL: The current burden of {llness in
the United States. Paper’ ‘presented at Institute of Medicine,
National Academy of Sciences, Washington, D.C.

3. Doege, TGC: An injury is no accidentob New Enél J. Med 298:509-510
(March 2); 1978.

4. Hartunian NS, Smart CN .and Thompson MS: Incidence and economic costs
of cancer, motor vehicle injuries, coronary heart disease and stroke

-éaocomparative analysis. Amer J Public Health 70: 1249-1260 (Dec),
1980. ‘

5. Perrine MW: Alcohol involvement in h*ghway crashes.v Clinies in
‘Plastic -Surgery 2:11-34 (Jan), 1975. » '

6. Wolfe AC: 1973 U,S. National roadside breathtesting survey. Hit Lab
Reports 4:1-16 (July), 1974.

7. Alcohol and the Impaired Driver. AMA Chicago, 1968.

8. ggnes JR and Doege TC: Seat belts and safety. JAMA 246:1660 (Oct
o 1981, .. v ‘ :
. ; o .

SIS

"9, Doege. TC and Levy PS: Changes in fatal and nonfatal crash rates on a

Atollnhighway. Amer J Epidemiol 103; 236—241 1976.

10. Robertson LS: Motor Vehicle injuries. Public Health Reviews 6:25-35
(June), 1977. - .

- 11. Dedera S: Drinking and Driving. AMA, chicago;§i9z7r,r

12. Deluca JR: Alcohol and Health. 4th Special Report to the U.S.
,C;ggress._ Department of Health and Human Services, Washington, e,
1981. ' '

13. Anonymous: Drinking driving laws: ‘what works? washington, DC
Insurance’Institute for Righway Safety, 1981. .
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' national cnilzens f or

P.0. BOX 42018 / WASHINGTON, D.C. 20015 / PHONEA 301/469-6588

TESTIMONY FOR U.S, SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ON COURTS
November 6, 1981 ' '

Citizens for Safe Drivers(CSD) is a national non-profit public
interest organization dedicated to reducing deaths and injuries on our
highways by working on the problems of the drunk driver and other
chronic offenders. Our members across the country include concerned
citizeﬁs, highwayvsafetykexperts, law enforcemént officials, health
professionals, and fémilies and friendS»of highway crash victims...
both as 1nd1v1dua1 members and as affiliate groups. V

We welcome this opportunity to conment on the courts in relation
to problem drivers part1cu1ar1y‘the drunkfdrlver.

We continually receive phone calls And letters. from the families
of highway crash victims. They are angry because the court system in its
efforts to prot;ct.the rights of theyprqblém driver ignores the rights
of the families of victims, They are outraged because the courts consider
the 11ve11hood of the defendant who k111ed their loved one more important
than the llfe of fthe victim. They are frustrated because most of the
courts give fam111es l1tt1e or no 1nfbrmat10n about the criminal court
‘hearing, often,misinforming‘them about their .rights under a system which
seeks to work primarily f&r the déEE#daﬁt; They are‘§hattered bgcause
the céurts“demeans‘the vicfims and their fﬁmilies.in the ﬁrbcesé.

Their experience with the c¢ourts.adds a traumatic burden to their

" grief.
Courts and the juries are infected by the "there but for the

grace,of God go I" syndrome which. causes them to overempathize with
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the defendants. But few judges or juries oT prosécutors consider
themselves. as potential highway crash victims. Yet the hational Safety
Council predicts that one out of twe Americans in their lifetime will
be involved in a serious  highway crash resulting in either death or
a disabling injury. ' ' : »

" We recall one mother of a victim lamenting that "they never
once called David by his name...always it was 'that kid' or 'the
deceased.'" To the court heé was a non-person...a nobody."

We have found that we can be most helpful to the families of victims

by redirecting their grief and anger into positive social action...to

’

save other lives.

The victim's family is usuaily concerned first about some specific
aspect in the crash which killed their loved ‘one. It may be the failure
to give a BAC(blood alcohol content) test or its inadmissability as
evidence; the complexity of the laws and its strong -tendency to protect
the defendant; or the weaknessess of the“vehicular homo¢ide laws which
make it almost impossible to convict the killer; or the wrongful déath
laws ﬁhich consider the value of our childrén's lives as nothing; the
insensitivity of the system which allows the drunk driver to get back
in a car and continue to drive again, often years before any decision
is made in his case. In state after state, the enﬁire system of érunk“
driving laws fiES»tthhahdS of driver licensing officials, police, and
the courts. Even where strong laws do exist they often are not enforced
by the police or used by ths ¢otirts.,

As a resulé'pf citizeﬁs public information and media campaigns,
some states have begun to take a new look at their drunk driving laws
and to strengthen them. Maine now has mandatory penalties for drunk

driving. Its courts should be watched to see how théy are reéacting.

" Wiil the courts in Maine(ﬁere&y?ﬁﬁwﬁgrade‘thé charges ‘of ‘alcohol to'

avo1d the mandatory penalties? Or will they reaIly use the iaw? '
Over the past’ several years;a few other ‘states such as New York,
Maryland and 1111n015 have made ‘some progress. In most states the

first problém that must be tackled is "probation befbfe'judgment"
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_sometimes called "court jurisdiction' or given some other name,

This system wipes the alcohol charge off the record if the driver
takes an alcohol or driver safety course and has a clear record for N
the duration of his 3 to 6 months probation. Each time the offender
comes before the court for repeat offenses, he is treated as a first
offender, sometimes in several counties or municipalities at the same
time.

We feel strongly that the key to dealing with the problem of drunk
drivers and chronic offenders, who are overrepresented in serious
crashes, is an accurate, complete, and timely driver records system
within each states with full interchange of records between the states
and complet; use of the National Driver Register to prevent drivers
already suspended or revoked in one state from rushing to another state
to obtain a license.

Unless the court knows whether the driver is a one-time offender,

a near-problem driver, or a trué problem driver, it cannot appropriately
propose treatment or sentencing. . -

Although the courts are supposed to consider the full driver record
before sentencing, many judges fail to check them. Prosecutors also neced
to consider this valuable information in determining how to handle the
7charges.

In many cases the driver record...for all intents and purposes. ..,
is falsified when charges are downgraded or plea bargained out of alcohol
to reckless drlvang or even to non-moving v1olat10ns. In Jowa, some
courts have been,reported to reduce serious charges to phony loud muffler
violations. By

Even where there is an official conviction for an alcohol offense
or other moving violation, some courts fail or delay sending this
information back to the central state file and it is lost to the record
system, i

In our highly mobile society many driving violations occur in
states other than tﬁe state of residence. Some states, like Connecticut,

do not forward the record of the conviction back to the home state. In
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other states like Colorado, when a report on a Colorado driver is received
from another state it is filed:..in the wastebasket. Or if a state does
record the violation, it enters a reduced number of points. The driver
himself often obtains multiple licenses to spread points among a number
of states to avoid suspension. When the driver moves to a new state, he

is born again with z clean record. And if the judges want to check the

Tecord, there is none to be found.

In almost every state the driver records system needs to be'upgraéed.
In some states, these records are stacked’in boxes, inacessible and
unavailable if requested by the courts. Each court needs a computer
terminal to quickly determine the driver record and .to quickly relay back
its own decisions.

The states need uniform ticketing systems so they can account
for every ticket and the disposition of the case can be recorded,
Continuous research needs to be conducted to determine whether the courts
are giving consistent and full sentences based on the complete fhctsxor
merely continuing - slap-on-the-wrist justice.™

Families of victims want stronger laws and want them to be

effective. We want the chances that a drinking driver will be

.~ arrested to be great enough so that it will act as a deterrent to driving

‘while drunk. We also want the records to be accﬁrate, compleve, and
timely so that judges can give fair sentences and So that the alcohol
treatment professionalslgan provide suitable‘rehabilitation.vWe want
the courts to giverpenalties that are consistent and appropriate to
the offense. ‘ ‘
Deterring drinking and dfiving will not only rednce the number of
victims but will also reduce the likelihood of the drinking driver |
himself belng killed or 1nJured .
Drunk driving is part and parcéiwof the.total problem driver issue
and driver records are a significant key to the solution. We believe
that the fa11ure of safety professionals and citizens alike to recognize

this fact is partly responsible for the past 1nab111ty to lessen’ the

problem of the drunk driver.
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Violations and accidents by the unidentified drunk driver...the

driver whose blood alcohol content has not been tested, or whose charges

have been downgraded, or whose violation has resulted from drinking at -

a lower than legal 1imit...should not be overlooked or minimized.

The role of driver license suspensions and/revocations as a safety
tool must be given more emphasis as a penalty by the courts.

The California Hagen Report indicates that even in hard core
multiple offending drunk driving cases, license suspensioné and revocations
are by far the most effective penalty...more so than jail, fines, or:
treatment, and the effects on reducing crashes last up to 4 years.

In this era of budget austerity, it is important to find new ways to

pay for the costs of reducing alcohol related crashes.

We recommend that part of the needed funds for suggested safety
programs be obtained from an alcohol excise tax placed in a Traffic
Safety Trust Fund similar to the Highway Trust Fund obtained from
gasoline taxes. . | |

- Funds from this source should be allocated to the states on a
formula based on adherence to safety program which can help alleviate
the drunk driver and other chronic offender problems. Among these
problems are unform ticketing; accﬁrate,-conplete, and timely driver
records systems botthithin states and for interstate exchange of records,
and for records coordination with the NDR system; uniform and stronéer
drunk driving laws; consistent enforcement and consistent penalties
commensurate with the violation; training of judges fer alcohol and
injury cases; use of terminals by the courts for immediate access to
driver records before sentenqing; driver history profiles; research
on disposition of cases and resulting driver crashes and violations;
membership and conformify withlgtate driver licensing compacts; alcohol

counseling, treatment and driver improvement programs; and other related ¢

safety programs.
The federal excise tax on alcohol has not been increased in many

years.>1f increased in the same proportion to the price of alcohol when

the tax was last adjusted, thé available funds would be a major source

for safety projects,
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The overall court system has begun to consider the victims and to
use victim impact statements in their sentencing process but the traffic

court, regardless of the severity of the violation and its resulting

deaths or maimings,still has little concern for the victim and the family

of the victim.

We commend this committee for looking into this problem at this
time because the 53,000 highway deaths in 1980 are expected to reach
70,000 annually by 1990.

What other major epidemic would get such ghort shrift by the
Segment of authority that could do the most to correct the problem?
The court affects most every phase of the process. Yet the court's attitude
and often inappropriate sentencing discourages the police who see their
efforts wasted. It devastates the families of highway crash victims, invites
the irresponsible driver to continue his unlawful and dangerous behavior

’

and indi .
indicates to our Youth that society does not care. The courts must

act responsibly.
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